Risk Factors Comparison 2024-02-15 to 2023-02-15 Form: 10-K

Legend: New Text Remeved-Fext-Unchanged Text Moved Text Section

For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10- K (Form 10- K), the terms “ TriNet, ” “ the Company, ” “ we, ” “us ” and
our ” refer to TriNet Group, Inc., and its subsidiaries. This Form 10- K contains statements that are not historical in nature, are
predictive in nature, or that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions or otherwise contain forward- looking statements
within the meaning of Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Forward- looking statements are often identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, * ability,
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“anticipate, ” “ believe, ” “ can, ” *“ continue, ” “ could, ” ““ design, ” “ estimate, ” *“ expect, ” *“ forecast, ” * hope, ” “ impact,
intend, ” “ may, ” *“ outlook, ” ““ plan, ” “ potential, ” ““ predict, ” *“ project, ” < seek, ” ““ should, ” “ strategy, ”* “ target, ” “ value,
7 “will, ” “ would ” and similar expressions or variations intended to identify forward- looking statements. Examples of

forward- looking statements include, among others, TriNet’ s expectations regarding: market response to new support, service
and product offerings, including our Enrich, }oM-Broker Select and tax credit products +the-tmpaet-oftheZenefits-and-Claras
1Sttt i ; our ability to successfully diversify our overall service and technology offerings to support
SMBs throughout their lifecycle; our plans and ability to grow our client base; the impact efthat stopping our annuat
discretionary credit program may have on client loyalty and attrition; the impact of our ongoing efforts to ensure that
our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers and the impact on our WSE count; the impact of our
TriNet PeopleForce conference; our expectations regarding medical utilization rates by our WSEs and the impact of inflation
on our insurance costs ; the effect that our stock repurchase and-tender-offerprograms— program will have on our business;
the impact of our vertical approach; our ability to leverage our scale and industry HR experience to deliver vertical focused
offerings; the impact of planned improvements to our technology platform and HRIS software and whether they will meet the
needs of our current clients and attract new ones ; the implementation of our ERP system and its impact on our internal
financial controls and operations; our ability to improve operating efficiencies; the impact of our client service initiatives and
whether they enhance client experience and satisfaction; our continued ability to provide access to a broad range of benefit
programs on a cost- effective basis; our expectations regarding the volume and severity of insurance claims and insurance claim
trends; the effectiveness of our risk strategies for, and management of, workers' compensation, health benefit insurance costs and
deductibles, and EPLI risk; the metrics that may be indicators of future financial performance; the relative value of our benefit
offerings versus those SMBs can independently obtain; the impact that our benefit offerings have for SMBs seeking to attract
and retain employees; the principal competitive drivers in our market; our plans to grow net new clients ;-and manage client
attrition; our investment strategy and its impact on our ability to generate future interest income, net income, and Adjusted
EBITDA; seasonal trends and their impact on our business; fluctuations in the period- to- period timing of when we incur
certain operating expenses; the estimates and assumptions we use to prepare our financial statements ; our belief we can meet
our present and reasonably foreseeable cash needs and future commitments through existing liquid assets and
continuing cash flows from corporate operating activities ; and other expectations, outlooks and forecasts on our future
business, operational and financial performance. Important factors that could cause actual results, level of activity, performance
or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward- looking statements are discussed above
and throughout this Form 10- K, including under Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, and Part II, Item 7. MD & A, and in the other
periodic filings we make with the SEC, and including risk factors associated with: our ability to manage unexpected changes in
workers’ compensation and health insurance claims and costs by WSEs worksite-employees; our ability to mitigate the unique
business risks we face as a co- employer; the effects of volatility in the financial and economic environment on the businesses
that make up our client base; loss of clients for reasons beyond our control and the short- term contracts we typically use with
our clients; the impact of regional or industry- specific economic and health factors on our operations; the impact of failures or
limitations in the business systems and centers we rely upon; the impact of discontinuing our Reeevery-discretionary €redits
credits on our business and client loyalty and retention; changes in our insurance coverage or our relationships with key
insurance carriers; our ability to improve our services and technology to satisfy client and regulatory expectations; our ability to
effectively integrate businesses we have acquired or may acquire in the future; our ability to effectively manage and improve our
operational effectiveness and resiliency; our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; the effects of increased competition
and our ability to compete effectively; the impact on our business of cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related
incidents; our ability to protect against and remediate cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents,
whether intentional or inadvertent and whether attributable to us or our service providers; our ability to comply with evolving
data privacy and security laws; our ability to manage changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of the complex
laws and regulations that govern our business; changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and employee benefits;
our ability to be recognized as an employer of worksite employees and for our benefits plans to satisfy all requirements under
federal and state regulations; changes in the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer, employee or
independent contractor; the impact of new and changing laws regarding remete- TRINET32023 FORM 10- K
BUSINESSremote work; our ability to comply with the licensing requirements that govern our HEM-solutions; the outcome of
existing and future legal and tax proceedings; fluctuation in our results of operations and stock price due to factors outside of our
control; our ability to comply with the restrictions of our credit facility and meet our debt obligations; and FRENEF32622
FORMIO6-—KBUSINESSand-the impact of concentrated ownership in our stock by Atairos and other large stockholders. Any of
these factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from our anticipated results. Forward- looking statements are not



guarantees of future performance, but are based on management’ s expectations as of the date of this Form 10- K and
assumptions that are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. Forward-
looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance
or achievements to be materially different from our current expectations and any past results, performance or achievements.
Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward- looking statements. The
information provided in this Form 10- K is based upon the facts and circumstances known as of the date of this Form 10- K, and
any forward- looking statements made by us in this Form 10- K speak only as of the date of this Form 10- K. We undertake no
obligation to revise or update any of the information provided in this Form 10- K, except as required by law. The MD & A of
this Form 10- K includes references to our performance measures presented in conformity with GAAP and other non- GAAP
financial measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate resources and to use as
performance measures in our executive compensation plans. Refer to the Non- GAAP Financial Measures within our MD & A
for definitions and reconciliations from GAAP measures. Website Disclosures We use our website (www. trinet. com) to
announce material non- public information to the public and to comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair
Disclosure (Reg FD). We also use our website to communicate with the public about our Company, our services, and other
matters. Our SEC filings, press releases and recent public conference calls and webcasts can also be found on our website. The
information we post on our website could be deemed to be material information under Reg FD. We encourage investors and
others interested in our Company to review the information we post on our website. Information contained in or accessible
through our website is not a part of this report. FRINEF42622----- TRINET4 2023 FORM 10- K PART I Item 1. Business
TriNet is a leading provider of comprehensive and flexible HCM solutions designed to address a wide range of SMB needs as
they change over time. Our flexible HCM solutions free SMBs from HR complexities and empower SMBs to focus on what
matters most- growing their business and enabling their people. TriNet offers access to human capital expertise, benefits,
payroll, risk mitigation and compliance, all enabled by industry leading technology capabilities. TriNet' s suite of products also
includes services and software- based solutions to help streamline workflows by connecting HR, benefits, payroll, time and
attendance, and employee engagement. Clients can use our industry tailored PEO services and technology platform to receive the
full benefit of our HCM services enabling their WSEs to participate in our TriNet- sponsored employee benefit plans. Clients can
alternatively choose to use our self- directed, cloud- based HRIS software solution and add HR services such as payroll and
access to benefits management as needed. By providing PEO and HRIS services, we believe that we can support a wider range
of SMBs and create a pipeline of HRIS clients that may be able to benefit from and transition to TriNet’ s higher- touch PEO
services at future points in their business lifecycle. In order to better serve TriNet’ s customers throughout their business
lifecycle, we are investing in our technology platform so that it can accommodate both PEO and HRIS customers. Since
our founding in 1988, TriNet has served, and continues to serve, thousands of SMBs. In 20222023 , we processed $ 73-72
billion in payroll and payroll taxes for our clients and ended the year with approximately 22, 666-600 clients, 348-347 , 766-500
WSEs and 248200 , 580-800 HRIS Users primarily in the U. S. Our Service Models We deliver a comprehensive suite of HCM
services that help our clients administer and manage various HR- related needs and functions, such as compensation, benefits,
payroll processing, tax credit support, employee data, health insurance, workers' compensation, EPLI and other employment risk
mitigation programs, employee performance management and training, on- boarding and off- boarding, and other transactional
HR needs using our PEO and HRIS technology platforms and our HCM, benefits and compliance expertise. We deliver our
services through two primary models, higher- touch PEO services and our more self- directed HRIS services. PEO Services
TriNet has historically focused almost exclusively on the PEO business stnee-ts-fermation-and PEO services remain our core
busmess Our PEO serv1ces offer clients our most complete HCM solutlon generally 1nclud1ng all of the services described
below rinetading ding-th s-with-aeeess ans-. We leverage our scale
and industry HR experlence to dehver our PEO service offerlngs tailored for SMBS in spemﬁc 1ndustry verticals. We believe our
vertical approach is a key differentiator for us and creates additional value for our clients by addressing their industry- specific
HR needs. We offer six industry- tailored vertical PEO services: TriNet Financial Services, TriNet Life Sciences, TriNet Main
Street, TriNet Nonprofit, TriNet Professional Services, and TriNet Technology. HRIS Services Our HRIS services primarily
eonsist-consists of eurTFriNetZenefitssolutions;whieh-offerehents-aeeessto-our self- directed, cloud- based HRIS software
solution which allows clients to manage their HR needs and the option to add tools additienatservieessuch as payroll
processing and benefits management teels-to provide HCM solutions that grewflex dynamically over time based on the needs of
our clients. Our HRIS services do not include access to our co- employment services, or access to our TriNet sponsored health
benefit plans. However, These-these services can also include tax credit support via our TriNet Clarus R D team and-,
additional cloud- based software integrations and incremental administrative services . TRINET52622----- TRINETS 2023
FORM 10- K Our Services Our comprehensive HR solutions include the following capabilities: HR CONSULTING
EXPERTISEBENEFITOPTIONSPAYROLL SERVICESRISK MITIGATION TECHNOLOGYPLATFORM HR €ensulting
Expertise We use the collective knowledge and experience of our teams of HR, benefits, payroll, risk management and
compliance professionals to help our PEO and HRIS clients manage many of the administrative, regulatory and practical
requirements associated with being employers. We do this by incorporating our knowledge and experience into our services and
our technology platforms and by making our professionals available to consult with clients on a variety of HR needs, including
talent management, retention and terminations, benefits enrollment, immigration and visas, payroll tax credits, employment
compliance and regulatory developments and many other industry- specific and general HR topics. Depending on their needs,
our clients, WSEs and HRIS Users have access to varying levels of service and support from our professionals, ranging from call
center support to pooled HR resources. Our professionals also provide additional specialized HR consulting services upon
request. Benefit Options In our PEO business, we utilize our scale to provide our WSEs access to a broad range of TriNet-
sponsored employee benefit and insurance programs with choice and at costs that we believe most of our clients would be




unable to obtain on their own. We believe that our TriNet- sponsored programs help our PEO clients compete for talent against
larger businesses. Our benefit and insurance programs are designed to comply with federal, state and local regulations, and our
benefit and insurance service offerings include plan selection and administration, enrollment management, leave management,
plan document distribution and WSE and client communications. Under these benefit and insurance programs, we pay third-
party insurance carriers for WSE insurance benefits and reimburse insurance carriers or third- party administrators for claims
payments within our insurance deductible layer, where applicable. We sponsor and administer several employee benefit plans
for our WSEs through a broad range of carriers, including group health, dental, vision, short- and long- term disability, and life
insurance as an employer plan sponsor under Section 3 (5) of ERISA. We also provide for other benefit programs to be made
available to WSEs, including flexible spending accounts, health savings accounts, retirement benefits, COBRA benefits,
supplemental insurance, commuter benefits, home insurance, critical illness insurance, accident insurance, hospital indemnity,
pet insurance, and auto insurance. For further discussion of our insurance programs, including policies where we reimburse our
carriers for certain amounts relating to claims, refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
of this Form 10- K. We also offer PEO clients the option to obtain their own client- sponsored benefits through our $6M-OMS
product family . Our ¥0M-OMS clients receive PEO services like HR, payroll, payroll tax, and risk management from TriNet
while sponsoring their own ebtaining-elient—spensered-health benefits fremrobtained through a third-—party-broker. Our
HRIS clients use our HRIS software solution to manage their own selected group health plans. For our HRIS clients, we provide
access to benefit programs for HRIS Users where we are not an employer plan sponsor under ERISA, such as flexible spending
accounts, health savings accounts, retirement benefits, COBRA benefits, supplemental insurance, commuter benefits, critical
illness insurance, accident insurance, and hospital indemnity. FRINEF62622---- TRINET6 2023 FORM 10- K Payroll Services
We help our PEO and HRIS clients manage their employee compensation by providing multi- state payroll processing, tax
administration and tax credit services and other payroll- related services, such as time and attendance management, time off and
overtime tracking, and expense management solutions. Our clients, WSEs, and HRIS Users can access payroll and tax
information using our various online and mobile tools. Our payroll tax administration and tax credit services include calculating,
withholding, remitting and reporting certain federal, state and local payroll and unemployment taxes on behalf of clients, WSEs,
and HRIS Users. While all of our PEO clients receive payroll and payroll tax administration tax services, our HRIS clients can
choose whether to manage these services themselves. Through TriNet enrreeently-aequired-Clarus R D business-, we also help
SMBs take advantage of federal and state payroll tax credits, particularly PATH Act R & D tax credits, one of the largest
payroll tax incentives available to US businesses. TriNet Clarus R D uses #ts-ewn-a proprietary software solution and payroll
tax experts to support clients and help them determine their tax credits. SMBs do not need to use TriNet” s PEO or HRIS
services to use TriNet Clarus R D ' s tax credit services . Risk Mitigation We monitor employment- related legal and
regulatory developments at the federal, state, and local levels to help our PEO and HRIS clients comply with employment laws
and mitigate many of the risks associated with being an employer. We provide HR guidance on employment laws and
regulations, such as those relating to minimum wage, unemployment insurance, family and medical leave and anti-
discrimination. For our PEO clients, we also ensure that our TriNet- sponsored benefit plans comply with applicable laws and
regulations, like the ACA, reducing this compliance burden to our clients. Our PEO services provide fully- insured workers'
compensation insurance coverage for our clients and WSEs through insurance policies that we negotiate with third- party
insurance carriers. We manage the deductible risk that we assume in connection with these policies by being selective in the
types of businesses that we take on as new clients, and by monitoring claims data and the-performance of our carriers and third-
party claims management service providers. In addition, we advise clients on workers’ compensation best practices, including
by performing workplace assessment consultations and assisting with client efforts to identify conditions or practices that might
lead to employee injuries. We also provide EPLI coverage for our PEO clients through an insurance policy that we obtain from
a third- party EPLI carrier. This policy provides coverage for certain claims that arise in the course of the employment
relationship, such as discrimination, harassment, and certain other employee claims, with a per- claim retention amount. The
retention amount under this policy, which functions like a deductible, is allocated on a pre- determined basis between the client
and TriNet. Our professionals assist our clients in implementing HR best practices to help avoid and reduce the cost of
employment- related liabilities. Our preferred outside employment law firms defend covered EPLI claims. Technology Platform
We currently use separate technology platforms for our PEO and HRIS clients. Our PEO technology platform includes online
and mobile tools that allow our clients and WSEs to store, view, and manage HR information and administer a variety of HR
transactions, such as payroll processing, tax administration, tax credits, employee onboarding and termination, employee
performance, time and attendance, compensation reporting, expense management, and benefits enrollment and administration.
Our online tools also incorporate workforce analytics, allowing PEO clients to generate HR data-, payroll, total compensation
and other custom reports. Our HRIS software allows our HRIS clients to manage most of the same functions as our PEO
technology platform and it is optimized to provide HRIS clients with customizable and flexible reporting tools and analytics to
fit specific client needs. Our TriNet Clarus R D tax credit services tises— use its-owia proprietary cloud- based software

platform to srmpllfy and support various state and federal tax credrts for SMBs We—eent—mua-l%y—rﬂ-vest—t-}me—aﬂd—fesettfees—te

¥RI—N—E—T—7—292—2—~——— TRINET7 2023 F ORM 1() K Our PEO Co- Ernployment Model Our PEO services operate using a co-
employment model, under which employment- related responsibilities are allocated by contract between us and our PEO clients.
The co- employment model allows WSEs to receive the full benefit of our services, including providing WSEs with access to
TriNet- sponsored employee benefit plan offerings. Each of our PEO clients enters into a client service agreement with us that
defines the suite of services and benefits to be provided by us, the fees payable to us, and the division of responsibilities between
us and our clients as co- employers. WSEs also separately acknowledge the co- employment relationship and the allocation of
employment- related responsibilities between TriNet and eur-the ettents— client co- employer . The division of responsibilities




under our client service agreements is typically as follows: TriNet Responsibilities We generally assume responsibility for, and
manage certain risks associated with: ¢ payments of salaries, wages and certain other compensation to WSEs from our own bank
accounts (based on client reports and payments), including the processing of garnishment and wage deduction orders, ¢
reporting of wages, withholding and deposit of associated payroll taxes as the employer of record, ¢ provision and maintenance
of workers' compensation insurance and workers' compensation claims processing, ¢ access to, and administration of, group
health, welfare, and retirement benefits to WSEs under TriNet- sponsored benefit plans, * compliance with applicable law for
certain TriNet- sponsored employee benefits offered to WSEs, ¢ administration of unemployment claims and pest- employment
COBRA benefits , and * provision of various HR policies and agreements, including employee handbooks and worksite
employee agreements describing the co- employment relationship. Client Responsibilities Our clients are responsible for
employment- related responsibilities that we do not specifically assume, generally including: ¢ day- to- day management of their
worksites and WSEs, * compliance with laws associated with the classification of employees as exempt or non- exempt, such as
overtime pay and minimum wage law compliance, ¢ accurate and timely reporting to TriNet of compensation and deduction
information, including information relating to hours worked, rates of pay, salaries, wages and other compensation, and work
locations, ¢ accurate and timely reporting to TriNet of information relating to workplace injuries, employee hires and
termination, and certain other information relevant to TriNet’ s services, * provision and administration of any employee benefits
not provided by TriNet, such as equity incentive plans, * compliance with all laws and regulations applicable to the clients'
workplace and business, including work eligibility laws, laws relating to workplace safety or the environment, laws relating to
family and medical leave, laws pertaining to employee organizing efforts and collective bargaining and employee termination
notice requirements, * payment of TriNet invoices, which include salary, wages and other relevant compensation to WSEs and
applicable employment taxes and service fees, and ¢ all other matters for which TriNet does not assume responsibility under the
client service agreement, such as intellectual property ownership and protection and liability for products produced and services
provided by the client company to its own clients. As a result of co- employment relationships for PEO services, we are liable
for payment of salary, wages and certain other compensation to the WSEs as reported and paid to us by our client, and we are
responsible for providing specified employee benefits to such persons to the extent provided in each client service agreement
and under federal and state law. In most instances, clients are required to remit payment prior to the applicable payroll date by
wire transfer or ACH. FRIENEF82622—--- TRINETS8 2023 FORM 10- K For our PEO services, we also assume responsibility
for payment and liability for the withholding and remittance of federal and state income and employment taxes with respect to
salaries, wages and certain other compensation paid to WSEs, although we reserve the right to seek recourse against our clients
for any liabilities arising out of their conduct. We perform these functions as the statutory employer for federal employment tax
purposes, since our clients transfer legal control over these payroll functions to us. The laws that govern the payment of salaries,
wages and related payroll taxes for our WSEs are complex and the various federal, state and local laws that govern such
payments can vary significantly. Based on applicable law in any jurisdiction, we or our client may be held ultimately liable for
those obligations if we fail to remit taxes. Our HRIS services do not involve co- employment, and this reduces the responsibility
and liability that we assume when providing these services. For example, while our software may facilitate payroll processing
for HRIS clients, TriNet is not the employer of record and acts only in a software provider role. HRIS clients generally remain
responsible for, among other things, payroll funding, workers’ compensation insurance, obtaining and administering group
health, welfare and retirement benefits, administering unemployment claims, and in some cases payroll tax reporting. The
higher level of responsibility that our PEOs assume, and risks that our PEOs manage, for our PEO clients is a key differentiator
between our PEO and HRIS services. Market Trends and Developments Affecting Our Business in 2622-2023 The U. S.
economy grew modestly durlng e*peﬂeﬂeed-agmﬁeanﬂy—slewefgfeﬂﬁh—m—z@%mn w1th unemployment remaining than
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the followmg 1ndustry trends in %922—2023 . SMB Econonnc Performance Over any year%l-le—U—S—eeoﬂom-te—gfewt-h
stewed-, SMB-SMBs generally experience staffing changes ‘s-eontintted-to-hire-, albeit-at-either resulting in a net increase
or decrease in staffing. In 2023 the extent of net staffing increases differed significantly lewerdevels-thanin2624—The

extentofhiring-differed-based on industry and geographic region. Our clients Ferexample;-SMBs-t-theleisure-and-hospitality
industriesgenerally-cxperienced greaterrebounds-significant staffing reductions in hiring-than-the technology sector, and

reductions in the professional services sector, while staffing levels in other industries remained stable. Overall in 2622
2023 as-, our SMB chents still 1ncreased their stafﬁng, however t-hey— the increase was feeevefed—ffeﬂa—t-he—s&gm-ﬁeaﬂt

significantly
historic trends

and Volatility. %&e—euﬂn 2023 we experlenced increased health beneﬁts utlhzatlon msara-nee—pl&ns—expeﬁeneed-a-n—and
inflation inereased-amotnt-of medieal-elaims-in health 2022 -eur-insuranee-costs remaitted-below-our-projeetions-. We believe
this occurred in part due to market- w1de pharmaceutical price 1ncreases, as a—resu-lt—well as the 1mpact of r1s1ng wages

osts ,—&nd—t-he—ela%ms—e*peﬁenee—e-f—ettf

whlch led to 1ncreased costs assoclated w1th contract renewals between health tnsuf&ﬂee—pla-ns-did-net—develep—at—lnsurers
and health care providers. These hlgher costs over the sa-me—fete—as—eur—fee—mefeases-year were and contlnue to be




S-€ W RAsation-eoverag mote-employees-an v laims. » Tax Credit Backlogs. Many
of the key economic asustdnce ploomms that SMBs relied on du11n<y the COVID- 9 pandemic have now expired before-2622-,
including the : ployree-Employee retentionrRetention tax-Tax eredit
Credit (ERTC) pfegf&rﬁs—&ﬂd—PP-P—}e&n—pfegfa-ms— Alt 10ug h these programs have expired, processing backlogs and a
temporary halt in September 2023 in processing new ERTC claims at the IRS have resultingresulted in many SMBs,
including some of our clients, continuing to wait to receive their tax credits. In seme-many cases, SMB-SMBs may-atso-still
patttetpate-participated in these programs retroactively via payroll tax filing amendments. As-a-result-The regulatory
uncertainty surrounding the end date for the filing of ERTC claims and its impact on our PEO clients in particular
exacerbates this trend and its impact. * Interest Rates. The same rise in interest rates that is contributing to lower overall
hiring among our SMB clients also contributed to higher interest income we expeetreceive on our cash deposits and
higher interest expense on our debt. While the Federal Reserve' s last increase to the Federal Funds Rate was in the
middle of 2023, the impacts of the higher rates continue to contribute devete-substantial-time-andresourees-to helpmgour
ehients-file-earnings, as well as contributed to higher interest costs as we issued debt and reeover-these-tax-borrowed on our
eredits— credit line in August and September of 2023 . - Privacy Laws and Regulations. We have seen increased focus at
every level of government inside and outside of the United States on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security,
dlsdosme tmnster and othel plocessnm of conhdentlal sensm\ e and personal mfounatlon Sﬂeh—ds well as the grownng use

lntelllgence wh-leh—beeeﬁte—effee{-we—rn%e%— As the patuhwmk of st&te—pfwaey—ldws becomes IHCIEJSIHgly complex, we expect

the effort and cost of complymo w ith all of the requirements to also increase and the likelihood of Compllame fdllules to rise =

group mdlket
r-for plans the

health plans s+, with the exceptlon New

PEOs thatregister as MEW As under state ]av\ —Meanwhite 0 50 e oftt
PEO-health-insuranee-praetiees-. State regulations on PEO health plans can llmlt our optlons for providing T11Net sponsored
benefits to our PEO clients or eliminate those benefits entirely, so we devote substantial time and resources to monitor and
respond to these developments. We expect to continue to see similar legislative and regulatory efforts across the country.
TRINET9 2023 FORM 10- K For more information regarding the developments above, refer to Part II, Item 7. MD & A in this
Form 10- K sand-Part I, Item 1 A. Risk Factors , and Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity . Our Technology and Service
Development Efforts We continued to make ﬂgnmcant investments in our PEO and HRIS technology platferarplatforms .
These investments are and-HRIS-seftware-with-prejeets-intended to provide our clients, WSEs, and HRIS Users with enhanced
functionality, ease of use, HR management options, security and an everalt-enhaneed-optimized user experience. We intend to
continue making these and other similar investments in 2623-2024 and beyond. We believe the continued investment in
improving our technology platfermand-HRISseftware-will drive operating efficiencies and improve client retention and
satisfaction over the long term. ©ur-In 2023, we began combining our PEO and HRIS technology platform into a single
modern cloud- based platform that can support all of our customers with a technology that enables more self- service
capabilities. By creating these new cloud- based services we are able to invest in common services that can benefit both
our PEO and HRIS seftware-customers. These cloud services are eas1er to deploy, modlfy and mamtam whlch w1ll &Hews
- allow us , over time, to achieve faster time to market. The first dtve e ]

services wrt-heﬂt—usmg—a—ee-on this next generation cloud - emp-}ey-meﬂt—medel-based platform went live in 2023 and as we

continue to bring more innovation to our entire customer base we expect that our investment and prioritization in this
area will increase . We believe this will enables— enable us to expand-the-SMBs-we-serve-and-dynamiealty-service SMBs
throughout a larger portion of their lifecycle. Additionally, our TriNet Clarus R D cloud- based tax—suppoertsoftware platform
allows us to better-serve our existing SMB clients and to serve SMBs that may-are not need-currently a client of our PEO or
HRIS services with tax credit support services . The fiew-scrvices we provide through our HRIS seftware-and TriNet Clarus R
D alse-software platforms ereates—- create a potential pipeline of SMB clients that may benefit from, and transition to, TriNet’
s higher- touch PEO services at future points in their lifecycle . In 2023 TriNet moved all of our applications, computing and
storage to the cloud in a multi- cloud strategy which enabled the shutdown of all on- premise data centers. We believe
this cloud migration will enable TriNet to deploy solutions quickly and manage costs effectively by taking advantage of
the ability to expand or change with our growing needs while allowing our colleagues to focus on high value activities in
support of our customers. This strategy is aligned with our sustainability goals to reduce waste and improve energy
consumption . Our Clients and (Jeoudphles Our chents are dlsmbuted across a variety of mdusmes We suppmt these different
clients using our suite of HCM offerings ;e 3 : e
seftware-and-serviees-. Our PEO clients g genelally execute annual service contracts with us that automatlmlly renew. In most




cases, our PEO clients may cancel these contracts with 30 days' notice to us and we may cancel these contracts with 30 days'
notice to our clients . Our HRIS clients execute contracts with monthly or annual terms and clients can typically cancel these
contracts with 30 days’ notice to us. In some cases, our clients may incur fees associated with early termination fees-. Our top
five PEO markets are California, New York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts, which account for approximately €5-64 % of our
total WSEs for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . Nearly all of our revenues are generated within the United States and
its territories and substantially all our long- lived assets are located in the United States. Our Competitors We face competition
from: « PEOs that compete directly with us, « HRIS software providers that compete directly with us, * payroll processing agents
and other HCM services providers that do not use a PEO model, TRENEFH02622FORM10-K— HRaﬂd—r&fGﬂﬂaﬁeﬁ—sys’éems
departments-and personnel of companies that administer employee benefits, payroll and HR for their companies in- house, *
providers of certain endpoint HR services, including payroll, employee benefits, business process outsourcers with high- volume
transaction and administrative capabilities, and other third- party administrators, and ¢ insurance brokers who allow third- party
HR systems to integrate with their technology platform. PEO services remain our core business and other PEOs continue to
represent our most significant competition. Our PEO service competitors include large PEOs such as the TotalSource unit of
Automatic Data Processing, Inc., the TRINET10 2023 FORM 10- K PEO operations of Paychex, Inc. and Insperity, Inc., as
well as numerous specialized and smaller PEOs and similar HR service providers with PEO operations. Our HRIS service
competitors include software and HCM service providers such as Rippling, Gusto, Automatic Data Processing, Inc. and Bamboo
in addition to smaller national and local providers. Our tax credit services face competition from large CPA firms, such as PWe
PwC , E-Ernst & ¥-Young , Moss Adams, and KPMG and smaller software companies and CPA firms, such as alliantgroup,
Ardius, Cherry Bekaert and Eide Bailly. We believe that a key reason why our PEO services are attractive to SMBs is because
of our ability to provide access to a broad range of FrilNet—spensered-workers compensation, health insurance and other benefits
programs on a cost- effective basis. We compete with insurance brokers and other providers of insurance and benefits coverage,
and our PEO offerings must be priced competitively with those provided by these competitors in order for us to attract and retain
our clients. Our PEO clients are typically looking for high- touch HR compliance and services support, TriNet sponsored
employee benefits, TriNet responsibility for processing payroll and payroll taxes as-a-ee—employer-, and access to EPLI claims
support and other substantial HR services. By contrast, many of our HRIS clients are looking for more self- directed, focused
and less expensive HRIS aeeess-andpayrottsappert-scrvices. We do not co- employ our HRIS Users and do not provide TriNet
sponsored health benefits, workers’ compensation eeverage-, or EPLI coverage . As a result, our HRIS preduetservices
competes with services provided by a wider array of HCM companies and HRIS providers outside of the PEO industry. For
additional information about our competition, please refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the
heading —" We must continue to work to improve our services to meet the expectations of our clients and regulators, or we may
lose our clients and materially harm our business". Our Sales and Marketing Organizations We sell our solutions primarily
online and through our direct sales organlzatlon We have aligned our PEO sales organization by industry vertical and-unieue
produet-offerings-with the goal of growing profitable market share in targeted industries. Our PEO vertical approach deepens
our network of relationships and gives us an understanding of the unique HR needs facing SMBs in those industries. Our sales
representatives are supported by marketing, lead generation efforts, and referral sources and networks. We increasingly use
technology and remote communication tools to engage with customers and prospects virtually. We typically sponsor and
participate in associations and events around the country to promote our PEO and HRIS services and we also utilize these
forums to target specific vertical and geographic markets. Events include our 4th 3rd-Annual-TriNet PeopleForce conference,
and informational webinars periodically throughout the year on a wide variety of business topics relevant to our SMB prospects
and clients. We also generate sales opportunities, and promote brand awareness, client retention , and build our reputation as
HCM thought leaders, within key industry verticals, through marketing alliances and other indirect channels, such as accounting
firms, venture capital firms, incubators, insurance brokers, and vertical market industry associations. Additionally, we utilize
digital marketing programs, including digital advertising, search and email marketing, to create awareness and interest in all of
our services. Our marketing and corporate communications organization is charged with driving overall brand awareness,
managing lead generation, creating and managing our website and other online properties, creating content for all marketing and
communication channels including our outbound and inbound marketing efforts, media relations, and managing our
sponsorships, major marketing events, and internal and external communications. SMBs are increasingly using digital tools like
tele- presence and web engagements and we work to engage with SMBs in these FRINEFH2022-FORM16-K-ways. [n 2622
2023 . we taunehed-continued to use numerous digital channels for engagement, including conversational marketing
enhancements on our website tn—fespeﬂse—te—eustemefs—ehaﬂgiﬂg—pfefefeﬂees— Our marketing team also focused on strategic
marketing, communications via social media, branding initiatives, and crisis communication plans, in part by augmenting our
comprehensive company brand campaign, Incredible Starts Here, with our marketing campaign, People Matter, that included
omni- channel initiatives using social media, digital, television, radio and out- of- home media. TRINET11 2023 FORM 10- K
The Laws and Regulations that Affect Our Business Our business operates in a complex legal and regulatory environment due to
a myriad of federal, state and local laws and regulations that impact our business. Below is a summary of what we believe are
the most important legal and regulatory issues specific to our business. For additional information on the impact of these and
other laws and regulations on our business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K,
under the heading-" Legal and Compliance Risks". Employer Status under ERISA and State Laws As part of our PEO services,
we sponsor employee benefit plan offerings as the employer of our WSEs under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the" Code"), ERISA and applicable state law. The term “ employer ” has different definitions for different purposes under the
Code and ERISA, and for most purposes are interpreted under complex multi- factor tests under common law. As an employer
of WSEs, we must manage our benefit plans in accordance with ERISA requirements, which can impact how we fulfill plan

obligations, how we price services ywhether-and-how-we-use-diseretionaryetredits-, the features of our benefit plans, and how



we administer and operate our plans. We believe we manage our benefit plans in accordance with ERISA requirements and that
we are an employer of our WSEs in the U. S. under the Code, the employer of our WSEs in the U. S. for the purposes of
ERISA, as well as qualifying as an employer under various state laws, but this status could be subject to challenge by various
regulators. We believe that our benefit plans are exempt from many state regulations under ERISA, but our position could be
challenged by state regulators or as a result of new laws, regulations, agency guidance, audits or caselaw at the federal and state
levels. For additional information on our state and federal employer status and the ERISA and other state requirements that
apply to us and their collective impact on our business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this
Form 10- K, under the heading-" If we are not recognized as an employer of worksite employees, and if our benefit plans are
deemed to not satisfy plan requirements, under federal and state regulations, we and our clients could be adversely impacted".
Health Insurance and Health Care Reform Our sponsored employee health and welfare offerings are an important component of
the services that we provide. The future of health care reform continues to evolve in the U. S. For example, the passage of the
ACA in 2010 implemented sweeping health care reforms with staggered effective dates from 2010 through 2022, and many
provisions in the ACA are still subject to the issuance of additional guidance from the DOL, the IRS, the U. S. Department of
Health and Human Services and various U. S. states. Passage of the TCJA in 2017 eliminated the individual mandate tax
penalty under the ACA beginning in 2019, while retaining employer ACA mandate obligations. States have developed, and will
continue to develop, varying approaches to state- based health exchanges and mandates. Further significant changes to health
care statutes, regulations and policy at the federal, state and local levels could occur in 2623-2024 and beyond, including the
potential further modification or amendment of the ACA, and we may need to adapt the manner in which we conduct our
business as a result of any such changes. For additional information on health care reform and its impact on our business and
results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Changing laws and
regulations governing health insurance and other traditional employee benefits at the federal, state and local level could
negatively affect our business". FRENEF22022-FORM1H6-K-Data Privacy and Security Regulations We collect, store, use,
retain, disclose, transfer and otherwise process a significant amount of confidential, sensitive and personal information from and
about our actual and potential clients, WSEs, HRIS Users and colleagues, and we are subject to a variety of federal, state and
foretgn-international laws, rules, and regulations in connection with such activities. As a sponsor of employee benefit plans, we
also have access to certain protected health information (PHI) of our WSEs and colleagues. Management of PHI is subject to
several regulations at the federal level, including HIPAA and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains restrictions and health data
privacy, security and breach notification requirements with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI. Further, there are penalties
and fines for HIPAA violations. Because TriNet sponsored health plans are covered entities under HIPAA, we are required to
comply with HIPAA' s portability, privacy, and security requirements. We are also subject, among other applicable federal laws,
rules and regulatrons to the rules and regulat1ons promulgated under the authorrty of the F ederal Trade Comrnlss10n Severat

y o : 0 tons—\We expect that the federal government s approach
to data privacy and securlty rules and regulatlons will continue to evolve in the coming years. TRINET12 2023 FORM 10- K
At the state and local level, there is increased focus on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure,
transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal information. In recent years, many states have proposed or
enacted new laws or amended existing laws —sueh—as—and we eXpect -t-he—them to continue to do S0 Ga-l-l-feﬁﬂa—GGPA—aﬂd
GP-I%ﬁ—aﬁd-new—data—pmmey—fules—m the future €o v .
2623-. As the state privacy laws becomes increasingly complex we expect the cost and effort of comply1ng with all of the
requirements to increase and the hkehhood of comphance fallures to nse Lack of unlformlty of New—fedefa-l—state—aﬁd—loea-l

data-privaey-seetrity-laws impose :
stefe—use—retam—diselese—tfa-nsfefandregulatmns herwise-proeesseomtdentt

w111 lncrease as et-her—varmus states and countnes enact data prlvacy laws creates srgnrﬁcant legal complexrtres for companres

like TriNet that operate nationwide and in India and Canada are v
Mereover-Also , all 50 U. S. states, the District of Columbia, Guam, Puerto R1co the Vlrgrn lslands and Canada have enacted
data breach notification laws that may require us to notify WSEs, HRIS Users, clients, colleagues, third parties or regulators in
the event of unauthorized access to or disclosure of personal or confidential information. Complying with existing and new data
privacy and security regulations could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices in a
manner adverse to our business. For additional information on the privacy and security of the confidential, sensitive and
personal information and PHI we possess and the potential impact to our business if we fail to protect such information, refer to
Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity and cach of the risk factors included in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under
the heading-" Data Privacy and Security Risks". Licensing Laws Nearly all states have adopted laws and regulations for
licensing, registration, certification or recognition of PEOs and the IRS has implemented a voluntary federal certification
program for PEOs. We expect states without such laws and regulations to adopt them in the future. While these laws and
regulations can vary widely, most regulators monitor the financial health and other relevant business information of PEOs on an
annual or quarterly basis. In some cases, these laws and regulations codify and clarify the co- employment relationship for
certain payroll, unemployment, workers' compensation and other employment- related purposes or require specific client
contractual terms and / or WSE disclosures. We believe we comply in all material respects with the applicable PEO laws and
regulations in each state and jurisdiction in which we provide PEO services. Every state regulates insurance practices conducted
within their jurisdiction. While we do not broker insurance, certain of our PEO and HRIS services involve assisting our clients in




obtaining and managing employee benefits . We partner with brokers to provide these services and have elected to obtain state
insurance licenses as a result. As each state’ s licensing requirements differ, maintaining current licenses is complex and we are
subject to insurance audits, investigations and fines if we fail to comply with insurance license requirements. Other state
regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies involved in the transmission of cash, such as banks, and
other money transmitters. We do not believe that our current activities require any such licenses, but we and others in our
industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past and could receive them in the future. TRINET132622
FORMI6-—¥For additional information on the impact of licensing laws, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-
K, under the heading" If we do not comply with our regulatory license requirements, or if we are deemed to be operating in
various non- PEO licensed industries without the required licenses, we and our clients could be adversely impacted".
TRINET13 2023 FORM 10- K Payroll Taxes, Unemployment Taxes and Payroll Tax Credits We must also comply with the
federal and state payroll tax and unemployment tax requirements that apply where our clients are located. Tax reform efforts,
and other payroll tax changes, at the federal, state and local level can impact our payroll tax reporting obligations for our clients
and the services we can provide. State unemployment tax rates vary by state based -in part ;-on prior years’ total wages,
unemployment taxes paid and unemployment claims experience and may also vary based on the overall claims experience of a
PEO in states in which we are required to report and pay unemployment taxes using one of our accounts and rates. As a result,
depending on where client WSEs perform services for our clients, the fees we charge PEO clients for unemployment taxes can
be higher or lower than a client could obtain without use of a PEO. In some cases, taxing authorities can retroactively increase
the unemployment taxes we pay to cover deficiencies in the unemployment tax funds. We also rely on our clients to accurately
inform us of the work and residence locations for their WSEs and HRIS Users, and inaccurate information, whether due to
remote work policies or otherwise, can impact our payroll tax obligations and the obligations of our clients, WSEs and HRIS
Users. We have seen a growing trend, particularly at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other related
payroll tax programs as a mechanism for incentivizing SMB development and +es-economic recovery. These programs are
popular because they allow SMBs, which often have business income tax losses, to realize benefits via payroll tax reductions,
rather than business income tax reductions. As a result, many of our SMB clients require that we support these programs.
Examples of these programs include the federal 2015 PATH Act, and-the-merereeent-CARES Act and FFCRA Act. The PATH
Act allows SMBs to use R & D tax credits submitted on the SMB’ s business income tax return to reduce SMB-certain payroll
taxes. The CARES Act and FFCRA Act introduced payroll tax eredit-credits and employer Social Security deferral programs
that allowed SMBs to receive payroll tax reductions and refunds or to defer the employer portion of Social Security based on
qualifications and employment practices. We act as the employer of record for federal payroll tax reporting for our PEO clients.
This means that we file client tax credit claims, and pass the associated tax credit refunds to our elent-clients and-sabmit-thetr
Seetat-Seeutity-deferral-repayments-based on information supplied by our clients, which we do not control. These programs
have generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and these programs are subject to broad agency interpretations
given their complexity. While our clients are contractually responsible to us for their errors in tax credit submissions and for
repaying us for all rejected tax credits under our service contracts, taxing authorities may still look to TriNet for repayment and
we may not be able to effectively enforce or collect on these obligations. For additional information tax credit programs, and the
risks they post to our operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Our business is
subject to numerous complex laws, and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of these laws could negatively
affect our business." Other Employment Regulations We must also comply with labor and employment laws, which eanchange
frequently at the federal, state and local level. In particular for our PEO services, regulatory focus on the classification of
employers employees and independent contractors has the potential to significantly change how we and other PEOs operate and

the serv1ces that we and other PEOs can provide to our chents and WSES Forexample-Californta-ABS-eould-potentially

tmeens&m&ena{-aﬂd-m&éefappeal—eﬂieﬁfates—States afe—contmue to eeﬂetdefmg———— cons1der or have adopted changlng i
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independent contractors and sweh-any change in these definitions may impact our ability to provide certain PEO and HRIS
services er-produets-to certain employers or employees. We must also comply with state and federal rules and guidelines around
both independent contractor and joint employer status. Standards for determining independent contractor and joint employer
status vary from law to law and state to state, and changes to and new interpretations of these standards can limit the client
workers to which we can provide services and increase the likelihood of claims that we are a anempleyer-or-joint employer of
client WSEs or an employer of HRIS Users. For example, at-the-federaHevetIn January 2024, the DOL reeentlyproposed a
new rule for determining independent contractor status and in August 2023, the DOL also-indieated-thatitmaypropose
proposed new regulations that address the salary requirements for white collar minimum FRINEFH42622-FORMH0-K-wage
and overtime exemptions under the FLSA. Meanwhile, the National-H-aborRelationsBeard--NLRB yhas-propesed-also
modified its own independent contractors test in June 2023 and issued a new rate-standard for determining whether two
businesses are joint employers under the Nattonal-aborRelattonsAetNLRA ¥in October 2023 . We do not believe that we
are a joint employer under any law or rule, or that these rule changes impact our status as a co- employer. However, laws
regarding independent contractor and joint employer status can impact the types of SMB workers we can service and the
potential liability that we have for the actions of our SMB clients and their employees. For additional information, refer to Part I,
Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" The definition of employers, employees and independent
TRINET14 2023 FORM 10- K contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an
employer or an employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may negatively affect our business".
Our Human Capital Resources As of December 31, 20222023 , we had approximately 348-347 , 766-500 W SEs, 248-200 , 566




800 HRIS Users and 3, 600 colleagues. Oversight and Management At TriNet, we power the success of SMBs by small-and
ﬂ&ed-ltm&-—s&ed—bustﬂess—suppomng their growth and enabling their people. Together, we strive to become the most trusted
advisor to SMBs by harnessing the power of scale. We recognize the incredible opportunity that can only be realized by working
together, with a shared view of how we support our clients, WSEs and HRIS Users. This is illustrated in our core values: ¢ Lead
with the customer- We are accessible, responsive and empowered to serve our customers. We are successful when our
customers are successful. « Stand together- We bring together diverse backgrounds, experiences and ideas to create better
outcomes. We collaborate across boundaries, communicate openly and respect each other. * Act with integrity- We are honest,
transparent, ethical and fair. We take pride in always doing what’ s right for our customers and colleagues. * Make an impact-
We act with purpose, are deliberate in our planning and quick in execution. We are accountable to each other and empowered to
make decisions. ¢ Be incredible- We invest in the development of our colleagues. We push the boundaries of what' s possible,
lead the way and innovate to accomplish the extraordinary. We regularly conduct surveys to seek feedback from our colleagues
on a variety of topics, including confidence in company leadership, competitiveness of our compensation and benefits package,
career growth opportunities and opportunities to improve the attractiveness of our company with existing and potential
colleagues. The results are shared with our colleagues and reviewed by senior leadership, who analyze areas of progress or
deterioration and prioritize actions and activities in response to this feedback to drive meaningful improvements in colleague
engagement. None of our colleagues are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Attracting and Retaining Gut-our
Colleagues We must attract, develop and retain highly motivated and qualified colleagues to continue to provide the services
that our clients need, to achieve our strategic objectives, and to grow our business. We do this by: ¢ offering competitive
compensation and benefits packages, including comprehensive health benefits and our 401 (k) retirement savings plan, with an
immediately vested employer match of up to 4 % of cash compensation,  supporting a pay for performance culture through the
use of cash and equity incentives tied to the performance of our company and individual performance, ¢ offering an ESPP that
allows our colleagues to purchase our shares at a discount to market value, which fosters a stronger sense of ownership and
aligns the interests of our colleagues with our stockholders, ¢ investing in the professional growth of our colleagues with tuition
and continuing education reimbursement, wellbeing programs, and comprehensive training and development activities and
opportunities both inside and outside of our company, * creating and maintaining a diverse and inclusive colleague base by, for
example, the use of colleague- led resource groups and a diversity and inclusion training curriculum for our colleagues, and
FRINEFH52022- FORM16-¥— supporting workplace flexibility for our colleagues by adopting remote work policies, and
providing access to telemedicine services. For more information about how we help our PEO and HRIS clients manage their
own human capital resources and satisty their own HR- related needs, see the section above titled “ Our Services ”. TRINET15
2023 FORM 10- K Our Approach to Acquisitions Historically, we have pursued acquisitions to expand our service capabilities,
technology offerings, and supplement our growth. Our acqulsmon targets have included PEOs and-other-HR-selationproviders;
as well as HCM technology and serviee-services companies ystaehasZenefits-and-ClarasRD-to supplement or enhance our
existing-HCM serviee-services and-teehnotogy-setations-. We intend to continue to pursue acquisitions, where appropriate, that
will enable us to add new clients, WSEs or HRIS Users, expand our presence in certain geographies or industry verticals, or
expand our HEM-technology capabilities and-or services efferings-. The Impact of Seasonality on Our Business Our business is
affected by seasonality in client business activity, hiring and benefit selections, health claims costs and payroll taxes: « PEO
clients generally change their payroll service providers at the beginning of the payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a
result, we have historically experienced our highest volumes of new clients joining and terminating clients in the month of
January. Our HRIS clients are generally less affected by these considerations. « WSEs select our TriNet- sponsored benefit plans
during their respective open enrollment periods, which occur throughout the year. We generally have—reeent-ly—e*peﬂer}e%
experience the largest proportion of WSE benefit changes in the first and second quarters. * Health claims costs tend to increase
throughout the year as the utilization of medical services above each WSE' s deductible causes our insurance costs to increase.
In addition, the overall use of medical services by WSEs, including elective procedures, tends to increase later in the calendar
year. * Certain payroll tax related billings are based on annual taxable wage bases up to a set cap. WSEs and HRIS Users
frequently meet these wage base caps in the first two quarters of the year, depending on the compensation level, resulting in
lower related billing contributions to PSR in the latter half of the year. Our Owned and Licensed Intellectual Property We own
or license from third parties various software and s-as-weH-as-other intellectual property rights, used in our business. We
Generally-we-protect our intellectual property rights through the use of confidentiality and non- disclosure agreements ane
polietes-with our empleyees-colleagues and third- party partners and vendors as well as policies incorporated and enforceable
by contract . We also own registered trademarks in the United States, Australia, Canada, the United Kingdom, and the
European Union covering our name and other trademarks and logos that we believe are materially important to our operations.
We generally protect our trademarks through federal registration or through the commercial use of our trademarks. Trademark
registrations must generally be renewed every five to ten years and we renew the registration of trademarks that we deem to
have continuing value to our business. Corporate and Other Available Information We were incorporated in 1988 as TriNet
Employer Group, Inc., a California corporation. We reincorporated as TriNet Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation, in
2000 and during that year changed our name to TriNet Group, Inc. Our principal executive office is located at One Park Place,
Suite 600, Dublin, CA 94568 and our telephone number is (510) 352- 5000. Our website address is www. trinet. com.
Information contained in or accessible through our website is not a part of this report. Our Annual Reports on Form 10- K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10- Q, Current Reports on Form 8- K, and amendments to those reports are available free of charge
at investor. trinet. com as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Alternatively,
the public may access these reports at the SEC' s website at www. sec. gov. The contents of these websites are not incorporated
into this report and are not part of this report. FRINEFH62022----- TRINET16 2023 FORM 10- K RISK FACTORSItem 1A.
Risk Factors Below is a discussion of the risks that we believe are significant to our business. These risks are not the only ones



we face. We may face additional risks that we do not currently consider to be significant or of which we are not currently aware,
and any of these risks could cause our actual results to differ materially from historical or anticipated results. You should
carefully consider these risks along with the other information provided in this Form 10- K, including the information in"
Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our accompanying consolidated
financial statements, as well as the information under the heading" Cautionary Note Regarding Forward- Looking Statements"
before investing in any of our securities. We may amend, supplement or add to the risk factors described below from time to
time in future reports filed with the SEC. Operational Risks Unexpected changes in workers' compensation and health insurance
costs and claims by worksite employees could harm our business. Our insurance costs, which comprise a significant portion of
our overall costs, are significantly affected by WSEs health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We use
fully insured risk- based, and fully insured guaranteed- cost, insurance plans provided by third- party insurance carriers. Under
risk- based policies, we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed- upon per- person deductible layer
up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier and
year. Under guaranteed- cost policies, our carriers establish the premiums, and we are not responsible for any deductible. Refer
to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for further discussion of these
policies. Under our risk- based health insurance policies, which make up the majority of our health plans and claims paid in
2622-2023 , we assume the risk of variability in future health claims costs for our enrollees. We have experienced variability,
and may experience variability in the future, in the amounts that we are required to pay within our deductible layer under these
policies. This variability arises from changes to the components of MCT, defined as changes in participant use of services,
including the introduction of new treatment options, changes in treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost
of providing treatment, and timing of services provided to plan participants. MCT trends change over time, and other seasonal
trends and variability may develop, which makes it difficult for us to predict this aspect of our business and our failure to
accurately predict these trends could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
For example, while the amount of medical claims we experienced in 2023 increased i#ras compared to 2022, our insurance
costs remained slightly below expectations , which still had a significant impact on our results due to volume . Under our
fully insured workers' compensation insurance policies, we assume the risk for losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence
(deductible layer). The ultimate cost of the workers’ compensation services provided will not be known until all the claims are
settled. If we do not accurately predict the risks that we assume, we may not charge adequate fees to cover our costs, which
could reduce our net income and result in a material adverse effect on our business. Our ability to predict these costs is timited
impacted by unexpected increases in frequency or severlty of clalms which can Vary due to changes in the cost of treatments or
clalm settlernents 0 W d : be ;

0 0 vork—We accrue for the estlmated future costs of reimbursing
our Workers compensatlon and health insurance carriers under our insurance policies. We use -I-n—ZGQQ—we—begaﬂ—ustng—lnternal
actuaries to develop health nstaranee-claims estimates and we eentite-to-use external actuaries and our own experience to
develop workers’ compensation estimates, but the volume and severity of claims activity is intherently-tnpredietable-difficult to
accurately predict . Estimating these accrued costs requires us to consider a number of factors, such as the components of
MCT, seasonal trends and the impact of events like the COVID- 19 pandemic, which requires significant judgment. In addition,
the usefulness of historic claims data is impacted by our rates of WSE and client turnover and we renew our carrier contracts
and set fees in advance of benefit periods. In past periods, we have experienced insurance costs that were either higher or lower
than our expectations and estimates. If we were to experience either outcome in the future, it could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation. Higher- than- expected insurance costs result in lower net
income. Because we set fees in advance of plan periods, lower- than- expected insurance costs can be an indicator that insurance
costs are developing more slowly than our prOJectrons Wthh are reflected i in our fees, and th1s can have a negatlve unpact on
client retentron and new sales v W ; ; : v

addrtron clalms are not statlc and if we subsequently receive updated 1nf0rmat10n 1ndlcat1ng that the Volurne and severlty of
insurance claims were higher or lower than previously estimated and reported, our insurance costs could be higher or lower,
respectively, in that period or subsequent periods as we adjust our accrued costs accordingly, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We have experienced both favorable and
unfavorable insurance cost variability due to claims activity in the past and could have similar or worse experiences in the

future. Refer to Critical Accounting Judgments and Estimates in Part II, Item 7. MD & A, of this Form 10- K for further
discussion of these estimates. TRINET17 2023 FORM 10- K Our co- employment relationship with our worksite employees
exposes us to unique business risks. We—afe—t-he—ee—emp{eyefe-ﬁeheﬁt—WLS-Es—As a co- employer of client WSEs, we assume
some of the risks and obligations of an employer. For instance, in the past we have been required to provide access to health
benefits to WSEs even when the cost of providing those benefits exceeded the service fees received from our clients. The extent
of our responsibility for other aspects of our co- employer relationship with WSEs remains subject to regulatory uncertainty at
the federal, state and local levels. For example, in certain states, PEOs are responsible for paying salaries, wages and related
payroll taxes of WSEs, even if our clients have not timely remitted payments to us whether due to insolvency, their bank
going into receivership, or other events that may be out of our control . WSEs work in our clients' workplaces. Our ability to
control the workplace environment of our clients is limited. Yet, we may be subject to liability for violations of labor and
employment laws, workers' compensation laws, industry- specific laws that apply to the businesses our clients operate, and other
laws that apply to our clients or to employers generally. We may also be liable for acts, omissions or violations by clients or



WSEs, even if we do not participate in such acts, omissions or violations. We seek to mitigate these risks through our client
agreements and insurance coverage. Our client agreements allocate responsibilities between us and our clients and provide that
our clients will fund certain obligations in advance and indemnify us for any liability attributable to their own or our WSEs'
conduct. However, we may not be able to effectively enforce or collect on these obligations. In addition, we maintain insurance
coverage, including workers’ compensation and EPLI coverage, to limit our and our clients' exposure to various WSE- related
claims. We are still responsible for deductible layers under our EPLI policies, and these policies generally exclude coverage for
claims relating to the classification of employees as exempt or non- exempt, other wage and hour issues, and employment
contract disputes. We cannot assure you that our insurance will be sufficient in amount or scope to cover all claims that may be
asserted against us and for which we are unable to obtain indemnification from our clients. Negative publicity relating to events
or activities attributed to us or our colleagues as a result of the actions of our clients and WSEs, or others associated with them,
whether or not justified, may tarnish our reputation and reduce the value of our brand, which could have a material adverse
impact on our ability to attract and retain clients. Our SMB clients are particularly affected by volatility in the economic
environment. SMBs SmaH-and-medinm-—size-businesses-can be particularly susceptible to changes in the level of overall
economic activity in the markets in which they operate. These businesses are often exposed to credit and cash liquidity risks ,
including exposure as a result of the failure of their financial institutions, that larger businesses may be able to avoid, and
during periods of weak economic conditions, including periods of increased inflation and increased borrowing costs, SMB smatt
businress-failures tend to increase, and employment levels tend to decrease. During these periods, our clients can and do freeze
hiring, terminate their employees, and reduce compensation and benefits levels, any of which would negatively affect our
revenues and margins if we are unable to reduce our operating expenses sufficiently or quickly enough. During these periods,
we have also seen and expect to see, reduced demand for our services, increased client terminations, fewer new clients, and
clients seeking to renegotiate our contracts and prices. When our clients leave us or reduce their headcount, we typically see
increases in the volume and severity of unemployment claims, COBRA claims, disability claims, and workers’ compensation
claims. We may be unable to recover costs related to these claims based on the fees established in our client service agreements,
and any failure to recover such costs may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. We lose clients for many reasons that we cannot control or easily predict and, generally, our clients sign service
agreements that they can cancel on short notice. FRINEFH82022-FORM16-K-Our standard client service agreements can
generally be canceled by our clients with 30 days’ prior written notice. We regularly experience client attrition and decreases in
new client sales due to a variety of factors that are difficult for us to control or predict, including the overall national economic
conditions, client mergers and acquisitions, changes in medical utilization and related costs, client business failure and liquidity
issues, the effects of competition, and client decisions to administer all or a portion of their HR needs in- house without using
our services. If we experience client attrition for any of the above reasons in excess of our historic and estimated rates it could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Geographic and industry market
concentration makes our results of operations vulnerable to regional and industry- specific economic and health factors. PEO
services remain our core business. Our top five PEO markets, California, New York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts,
accounted for approximately €5-64 % in aggregate of our paid WSEs for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . If any of
those geographic regions suffers a downturn, even if the economy at the national level remains strong, or experiences higher
than expected medical services utilization, due to regional health issues, the portion of our business attributable to clients in that
region could be adversely affected, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of
operations. TRINET18 2023 FORM 10- K [n addition, most of our PEO clients operate in a relatively small number of
verticals, including the technology, professional services, financial services, life sciences and not- for- profit verticals. As a
result, if any of those verticals, or any industry within one of those verticals, suffers a downturn, even if the economy at the
national level remains strong, the portion of our business attributable to clients in that industry could be adversely affected,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Any failure in the
business systems or service centers that we or our service providers rely upon, could negatively impact our clients, harm our
reputation and expose us to significant, unanticipated liability. Our business is highly dependent on in- house and third- party
business systems and service centers. The operation of our business relies on the complex integration of numerous hardware and
software subsystems across several service centers to manage a large volume of daily client, WSE and HRIS User transactions.
For example, we rely on software systems , including the software systems used by our banking institutions, to process
payroll, payroll tax and benefits data and make related payments, and to access insurance carrier networks and databases that
manage WSE and HRIS User benefits and claims. These software systems run on computer hardware that we or our service
providers house in various service centers. These centers and systems have been, and could be disrupted by equipment failures,
computer server or systems failures, network outages, ransomware attacks and other malicious acts, software errors or defects,
vendor performance problems, banking failures, power failures, natural disasters, terrorist actions or similar events. We have,
for example, experienced office closures on the east coast on multiple occasions over the past few years due to hurricane and
storm threats, in Texas due to climate- related power grid issues, and in California due to increased wildfire threats in the state.
Our offices and service centers in these and other locations will continue to face the risk of closure or damage in the future due
to climate ehange-related events . Any such disruption, even if only for a short period of time and even if we are not at fault,
can have a significant impact on our clients, WSEs and HRIS Users by preventing us from timely processing payroll, paying
payroll taxes and other liabilities and otherwise disrupting our business operations . As a result, any such disruption could
cause us to lose clients, negatively impact our ability to attract new clients, and reduce our revenues and increase our costs, any
of which could result in a material adverse effect on our reputatlon busmess and results of operatlons Gur—aﬁﬁetmeed
Dlscontmulng our dlscretlonary e1=edrts—~ credlt program had-ste




results of operation and financial condition. We have-offered various discretionary credits to eligible clients in 2020, 2021 and
2022. These credits were based on TriNet health insurance costs over specified periods and were intended we-announeed-them
to assist in the economic recovery of our SMB clients during the COVID- 19 pandemic, to promote client loyalty and
incentivize client retention, and to dlfferentlate TriNet from its peers in the PEO 1ndustry and in other Competlng HR services
1ndustr1es We did not offer ; : :

dlscretlonary credlts ean—hel-p—meeﬂﬁﬁze-may cause those eheﬁt—chents -iey&lﬁ—a-nd—re’feﬂ&eﬁ—rf—we deteﬂfnne—t-hat—t-he—eiatms

et tre-it-ir-a t i t retained because of the discretionary elieﬁt.—l-f—ettf
credlts —tneiudn&g—fufufe-to leave. Cllent attrltion due to the stoppage of the dlscretlonary credits we—may—&meimee,—f&i-l—te

ﬂegaﬁveiy—a-ffeeted,—whieh—could resuitinreduce our revenues and have a materlal adverse effect on our busrness ﬁnanc1a1
condition and results of operations. Changes in our insurance coverage, or in our relationships with key insurance carriers, could
harm our business. Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain competitive health and workers' compensation
coverage options and insurance rates through well- known insurance carriers. If we are unable to maintain competitive insurance
rates or obtain popular and desirable coverage plans through well- known insurance carriers, it could affect our ability to attract
and retain clients, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. Where we sponsor insurance coverage and we are
not responsible for any deductibles, our carriers set the fixed cost of the plan, which may lead to uncompetitive fees. Even
where we sponsor insurance under which we are responsible for deductibles, we may not be able to control our costs in a way
that would make our fees competitive. In addition, broad adoption of our services in certain geographic regions or industries may
make it more difficult for us to obtain competitive health and / or workers' compensation insurance rates due to concentration of
clients within a particular region or industry. For example, we have significant concentrations of PEO clients in California, New
York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts, which account for approximately 65-64 % in aggregate of our paid WSEs for the year
ended December 31, 2822-2023 . The loss of any one or more of our key insurance vendors in these areas, or our inability to
partner with the most desirable carriers in these areas, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operations. We must continue to work to improve our services to meet the expectations of our clients and regulators, or we
may lose our clients and materially harm our business. In order to attract and retain clients, we believe that we must compete in
our industry effectively on the basis of the value proposition that we deliver to our clients, which includes TRINET19 2023
FORM 10- K - client experience and satisfaction, * the relevance and cost- effectiveness of our PEO benefit plans, « our PEO
vertical market expertise, * our service and product pricing, ¢ our brand awareness and reputation, ¢ our ability to innovate and
respond to client needs and regulatory mandates rapidly, ¢ the performance of our online and mobile solutions, software and
technology platforms, and ¢ our human resources subject matter expertise. The expectations of our clients and prospective
clients in these areas change over time as a result of many factors outside of our control, such as competition, regulatory and
technical changes, and changing trends in the demands employees place on SMB employers. To satisfy client expectations and
regulatory requirements, we must timely and effectively identify and develop, or license and contract appropriate technologies
and services, and incorporate such technologies and services into the solutions that we provide. New services or upgrades may
not be released according to schedule or may contain defects when released. If our new technologies and services perform
poorly, or fail to satisfy regulatory requirements, we could experience client dissatisfaction, adverse publicity, loss of sales, and

client clanns agalnst us, any of which could materially harm our busmess For example We-e*peﬂeﬂeed-h-tgher—t-haﬂ—e*peeteé

hke other PEOs, our federal R & D tax Credlt programs require the IRS to prov1de tax credit refunds for our chents In 51tuat10ns
where IRS refunds were delayed, even where we were not at fault, we have experienced client terminations and dissatisfaction,
and we may experience similar outcomes in the future. Even where we can satisfy client expectations and regulatory
requirements, we may not be able to do so on a cost- effective basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and our results of operations. We could lose market share if our competitors develop superior technologies and
services or satisfy client or regulatory demands before we are FRENEF202622FORMI0-K-able to do so. If we are unable to
satisfy the evolving technology and service expectations and regulatory requirements, then we sweulé-may experience lower
client satisfaction, fewer new clients and higher client attrition, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. We
have acquired, and may in the future acquire, other businesses and technologies, which can divert management' s attention and
create integration risks and other risks for our business. We have completed numerous acquisitions of other businesses and
technologies over the years, and we expect that we will continue to pursue future acquisitions. Acquisitions yineluadingour2022
aequisittons-of Zenefits-and-ClarasRD;-involve numerous risks, some of which we have experienced in the past and which we
may experience in the future, including: ¢ over- valuing and over- paying for businesses and technologies, * increased operating
costs and unanticipated costs to successfully integrate the clients, WSEs and HRIS Users, operations, systems, technologies,
services and personnel of the acquired business, ¢ establishing or maintaining required internal controls, procedures and policies
for the acquired business, * unanticipated costs and risks arising from the unique corporate culture and risk appetite of acquired
businesses, * diversion of management’ s attention from other business concerns, ¢ litigation resulting from the activities of the




acquired business, ¢ insufficient revenues, insurance or seller indemnification to offset increased expenses associated with the
acquisitions and unanticipated liabilities of the acquired businesses, * entering markets in which we have no prior experience and
may not succeed, and ¢ potential loss of key employees or key clients of the acquired business as a result of the acquisition or
integration of the acquired business. We have experienced increased operating costs to resolve the challenges of prior
acquisitions. If we fail to appropriately integrate any acquired business, we may fail to achieve our growth, service enhancement
or operational efficiency objectives, and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be harmed.
TRINET20 2023 FORM 10- K For example, TriNet has focused almost exclusively on the PEO business since its formation
and PEO services remain our core business. Zenefits-Our HRIS and tax credit offerings €tarasRP-are not PEO businesses.
They utilize separate software and technology platforms, and they service SMB clients that can have very different needs from
our traditional PEO clients. These businesses may divert management attention from our core PEO business to its detriment.
Conversely, we may lack the experience needed in these non- PEO businesses to manage them effectively. Any such outcome
could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our efforts to improve our
operational effectiveness and resiliency require significant time, resources and costs and if these efforts fail or significantly
divert management attention, our business and results of operations may suffer. We have changed our operations and client
service processes in recent periods in order to improve our operational effectiveness and resiliency, and we will continue to do so
in the future. For example, over the course of 2022 and 2023 we upgraded have-beenupgrading-and released rething-outa new
company- wide enterprise resource planning (ERP) system. If our new ERP system reH—eutis-detayed-does not function as
intended and designed , management attention may be diverted, and we may see increased operational costs while we
remediate any issues m&mf&rn—ﬁve—E—RP—s—ys’fems— We are also working on other projects intended to upgrade our technology
platform and the client support tools we use, increase workflow automation {and-mitigate-againsttherisk-efhuman-error)-, and
improve the retention of, and access to, institutional knowledge . For example, over 2023 we expended considerable time and
resources on decoupling and modernizing our PEO and HRIS platforms. We will continue to expend considerable
resources on these efforts through 2024. If we are unable to achieve our goals, management attention may be diverted
and we may experience competitive challenges, client dissatisfaction, program delays and increased operational costs to
remediate any resulting issues . We have and will continue to devote substantial time, money and management resources to
these projects. Managing these projects also typically requires changes to our internal operational, financial and management
controls and-as well as our reporting systems and procedures. We As-a-restlt;-we-cannot guarantee that our efforts will achieve
our goals in a timely or cost- effective manner or at all, and we cannot guarantee that we can carry out these projects without a
negative impact on our day- to- day operations and client satisfaction. If our current and future projects are delayed or
unsuccessful, of if any changes to our controls, reporting systems, or procedures are deficient, client satisfaction may
suffer, we may lose clients or fail to onboard new clients at expected rates, and we may incur substantial unanticipated costs to
complete these projects. Any of these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. If we are unable to attract, maintain and manage qualified personnel, including our sales force, our
business may be harmed. FRENEF2H2022-FORMH6-K-T0 succeed, we must be able to attract and retain highly motivated and
qualified personnel. Competition for skilled employees is intense and like many businesses , #f-we are susceptible to
fluctuations in the labor market. For example, as we continue to expand our operations in India, we are also entering a
new labor market. If we are unable to attract and retain the-qualified personnel , in either or both of the US and India (or
any other jurisdiction into which we need-expand) , our business may suffer. For example Eike-many-businesses-, for a
varlety of reasons, including due to changes in feeeﬂt—yeafs—lndustry or chent focus, compensatlon structure, thlrd- party

productlve for some perlod of time followmg their hlrlng, Wthh results in 1ncrea§ed near- term Coqts to us relatlve to their actual
sales contributions during this period. If we are unable to effectively train and maintain an adequately seasoned and sized sales
force, new client onboarding will not increase at the rate that we anticipate, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Our industry is competitive, which may limit our ability to maintain or
increase our market share or improve our results of operations. We face significant competition on a national and regional level
from other PEOs, ASOs that do not use co- employment relationships, and HRIS software providers, as well as from other
existing, and potential, companies and industries that service, or may in the future service, client HCM needs. Refer to the
heading ““ Competition ”” under Part I, Item 1. Business, above for more details. Our competitors, regardless of industry, may
have greater marketing and financial resources than we have, and may be better positioned than we are in certain markets.
Increased competition in our industry could result in price reductions or loss of market share, any of which could harm our
business. We expect that we will continue to experience competitive pricing pressure and competition from new technologies
and HCM service models, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our business. Cyber- attacks, breaches,
disclosures or other data- related incidents could result in reduced revenue, increased costs, liability claims, regulatory penalties,
regulatory disclosure requirements and damage to our reputation. TRINET21 2023 FORM 10- K We and our third- party
service providers and subcontractors collect, store, use, retain, disclose, transfer and process a significant amount of confidential,
sensitive and personal information from and about our actual and potential clients, WSEs, HRIS Users and colleagues, including
bank account numbers, social security numbers, tax information, PHI, health claim information, retirement account information,
and payroll data. Maintaining the security and confidentiality of this information is critically important to our clients, WSEs,
HRIS Users and colleagues. For more information regarding our cybersecurity risk management framework and
governance, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity. Due to the size and complexity of our technology platform and services,



the amount of Conﬁdentlal %ensmve and perqonal mformatlon that we store and-the-number-ofehents; WSEs; HRIS Users;

8 v eft-, we and our service providers are potentially susceptible to a
Varlety of mtentlonal or madvertent cyber attacks, breaches dlsclosures and other data- related incidents and threats.
Cybersecurity threats can take a variety of forms. Malicious actors may develop and deploy viruses, worms and other malicious
software programs that attack our networks and data centers or those of our service providers. Malicious actors may also direct
social engineering, phishing, credential stuffing, ransomware, denial or degradation of service attacks and similar types of
attacks against any or all of us, our clients and our service providers. Other threats include inadvertent security breaches or
disclosure, misuse or unauthorized access or other improper actions by our colleagues, clients, WSEs, HRIS Users, service
providers and other business partners. Cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents are increasing in
frequency and evolving in nature. While we devote substantial time and resources to training our colleagues to identify and
avoid such incidents, no training or cybersecurity program can offer absolute protection against such attacks and incidents. Any
actual or attempted cyber- attack, breach, disclosure or other data- related incident, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, reputation, financial condition or results of operation. Any-aetaal-Public perception of, or attempted-breach-even
inaccurate or unfounded rumors of, any such cyber- attacks, breaches, disetosure-disclosures ofthe-econfidential- sensttive
or other data- related el-teﬂts—= mcldents J&‘&LSEs—HGP:/I—Hsefs-a:ﬂel

s eohe S operation.
5PRI-N-E—T—2—2—2—92—2—F9RM—1—9——I€Any such cyber attacki breaches dlsclosures or other data- related 1n01dent€ could result in
material financial liability by : * resulting-in-causing us to incur material fines, penalties, orders, sanctions and proceedings or
actions against us or our service providers by regulatory authorities, clients and other third parties, * requiring us to indemnify
clients and other third parties, * damaging our reputation, * feretng-causing us to incur significant expenses to defend our actions
and practices, ¢ delaying product and service development plan% . causmg resuhting-t-unrelated compliance breaches through
as-areswit-ofsystem failures or management distraction, and * increasing our costs of doing business. TriNet does not need to be
the direct target of such cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data- related incidents, for them to have a material adverse
effect on our operations. A cyber- attack on a key third- party software service provider, or a new vulnerability identified in
software that we use, could disrupt our services or compromise client data entrusted to that service provider. In March 2022, a
hacking group announced that they had compromised several systems, including those of Microsoft and Okta, both TriNet
vendors. After review, our security team determined that no security compromises had occurred within TriNet ! s systems
related to any of these incidents, but this is no guarantee that a future vulnerability or incident would not result in a security
compromise. New software vulnerabilities are identified regularly, by organizations like the U. S. Cybersecurity and
Infrastructure Security Agency €€F5A)-. Similar cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents, including
those resulting from a vulnerability, involving a client could also result in access to TriNet’ s systems. Any such incidents, even
if not initially directed at TriNet, could also have a material adverse effect on our business operations, result in liability, fines
and penalties or other regulatory sanctions, a loss of confidence in our ability to provide our services, and / or harm our
reputation and relationships with current or potential clients. We, our clients and our service providers have been the victims of

cyber attacki breaches dlsclosure or other data related 1n01dent€ in the pa%t—aﬂd-we—eﬂ%eheﬁfs—aﬂd-eﬁr—sei%e-pfeﬁdefs

conﬁdentlal sensitive or pelsonal 1nf0rmat10n we possess, and we , our clients and our service prov1ders expect to be victims
again in they—- the eeuld-future. Similarly, we and our service providers have expertenee-experienced sueh-disruption to,
or unauthorized access to, our networks, applications, bank accounts and other key systems in the past and similar
events may oceur again in the future. We have reported data breaches to regulators, affected individuals, clients and other third
parties in the past and we expect to do so in the future as appropriate . While we do not believe that any such past events
constitute a material cybersecurity incident or resulted in material expenditures er-a-materiaHoss-ofeonfidential;-sensitive-or
persenatinformation-, future events could stthresult in a material adverse impact on our TRINET22 2023 FORM 10- K
operations. As-diseussed-above-For more information regarding our analysis of material cybersecurity incidents , the-refer
to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity. The costs associated with any cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosure or other data- related
incidents could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Although we maintain
insurance coverage for such events, the amount of our insurance may not cover these costs, and we cannot be certain that cyber
insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny
coverage as to any future claim. Our efforts to protect against and to remediate cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other
data- related incidents, may not succeed and any such event, whether intentional or inadvertent and whether attributable to us or
our service providers, could have a material adverse effect on our business, and reputation. We have implemented policy,
procedural, technical, physical, and administrative controls with the aim of protecting our networks, applications, bank accounts,

and the Conﬁdentlal %ensmve and perqonal mformatlon entruqted to us, tﬂel-ud-rﬁg—baﬂieaeeeuﬂt—nﬁmbeﬁrseeta-l-seetw&y-

dafa—&ﬂd—et-her—P—I—H—from cyber attacki breaches dlsclosures and other data- related 1n01dent€ Whlle we, and our service




providers, have security measures and programs in place to prevent —deteet—and respond to cyber attacks, breaches, disclosures
and other data- related incidents y z alva

disclosures and 0ther data related 1nc1dent§ whether 1ntent10na1 or inadvertent and Whether 1nterna1 or eXternal Moreover,and
FRINEF232622FORM10-K-we, our clients or our service providers also may not discover a cyber- attack, breach, disclosure
or other data- related incident for a significant period of time after the incident occurs . For more information regarding our
cybersecurity risk management framework and governance, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity . We perform risk-
based assessments of our vendors and service providers, but our assessments may be incomplete or not detect vulnerabilities that
can impact our business. Vendors and service provider% with access to our data and systems typically undergo additional
security review procedures. In addition, we require those vendors and service providers to undertake additional security
measures aecordrng to the inherent risk of the system access or proce%%lng aetrvrty eontemplated in the contract. We—typw&Hy

we do not control our service pr0v1der% and our ablhty to monitor their data %ecurlty is hmlted so we cannot ensure the security
measures they take will be sufficient to protect our confidential, sensitive and personal information. Due to applicable laws and
regulations or contractual obligations, we may be held responsible for any cyber- attack, breach, disclosure or other data- related
incident attributed to our service providers regarding the information we share with them and any contractual protections we
may have from our service providers may not be sufficient to adequately protect us from any such liabilities and losses. We have
invested, and plan to continue investing, in resources to protect our information security ecosystem against cyber- attacks,
breaches, drielosurei and 0ther data related incidents, and to investigate and remediate any 1nf0r1nat10n %ecurrty vulnerabrhtleq

etueewn—staﬁda-rds—ﬂowever the security protections and %trategle% that we implement, and the 1nve§t1gat10n and remediation
efforts we undertake, may not be successful . The use of artificial intelligence and machine learning ("' AI- ML") tools by
cyber threat actors may create new types of attacks that are difficult or impossible for our existing security controls to
detect and prevent. While we continue to invest in new security tools and technologies that aim to counteract this
weaponization of AI- ML, those measures may fall behind the capabilities of the threat actors . Any cyber- attack, breach,
disclosure or other data- related incident, whether intentional or inadvertent, could result in the access, public disclosure, loss or
theft of our clients', WSEs', HRIS Users’ and colleagues’ confidential, sensitive and personal information, which could
negatively affect our ability to attract new clients, cause existing clients to terminate their agreements with us, result in
significant reputational damage and subject us to significant lawsuits, regulatory fines, or other actions or liabilities, any of
which could materially and adversely affect our business and operating results. We must comply with constantly evolving, data
privacy and security laws and regulations, which may require substantial costs or changes to our business, and any actual or
perceived compliance failure could result in reduced revenue, increased costs, liability claims, regulatory penalties, and damage
to our reputation. We are subject to various federal, state and local laws, rules, and regulations, as well as contractual
obligations, relating to the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of confidential,
sensitive and personal information. Existing laws and regulations are constantly evolving, and new laws and regulations that
apply to our business are berng 1ntr0duced at every level of government inside and outqrde of the United States. Dependlng For

broader in scope, or offer greater 1nd1v1dual rrghtq with respect to eonﬁdentlal %ensrtlve and perqonal 1nformat10n than federal,
international or other state laws, and such laws may differ from each other, which may complicate compliance efforts, requiring
attention to changing regulatory requirements. As the patchwork of state—prlvacy laws to which we are subject becomes

increasingly complex, the cost of complying with all of the requlrements erl rrie and —\Ve—afe—werkrﬂg—te—eefnp{-y—wrt-h—a-l-}

appheablestaterequirements; but-we cannot guarantee thatwe-wilnotineursignifteanteoststo-eoms ' Sremen
etr-our compliance thateur-cfforts will be successful. TRINET23 2023 FORM 10- K For detalls regardrng these data privacy

and security laws and regulations discussed above and that apply to our operations, refer to Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form
10- K, under the heading “ The Laws and Regulations that affect Our Business: Data Privacy and Security Regulations ”
Complying with these and any other data privacy and security laws, rules and regulations, and with any new laws or regulations
or changes to existing laws, could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices in a manner
adverse to our business, divert resources from other initiatives and projects, and restrict the way products and services involving

data are offered all of Wthh may have a rnaterral adverse effeet on our business. -Fefe*a-m-p-le,—we—have—metured—aﬂd—e*peet—te

Desprte our efforts in the future we may be unable to make requrred changes and modrﬂeatron% t0 our T—R—I—N-E—T%4%922—FGRM
+0-K-business practices in a eommererally rea%onable manner, or at all. Given the rapid development of cybersecurrty and data
pr1vacy laws : pretation-o nfore W d-reg ;

costs and we rnay be expoqed to %1gnrﬂeant penaltre% or habrhty for non- compliance, the po%%lblhty of fines, lawsuits (including
class action privacy litigation), regulatory investigations, criminal or civil sanctions, audits, adverse media coverage, public



censure, other claims, significant costs for remediation and damage to our reputation, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business and operations. Any inability, or the perception of any inability, to adequately address data privacy or
data- related concerns, even if unfounded, or to comply with applicable laws, regulations, standards and other obligations
relating to data privacy and security, could result in additional cost and liability to us, damage our relationships with clients and
have a material adverse effect on our business. As a sponsor of employee benefit plans with access to certain PHI, we are subject
to regulation at the federal level, including under the HIPAA and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains restrictions and health data
privacy, security and breach notlﬁcatlon requlrements with respect to the use and dlsclosure of PHI There are penalties and
ﬁneq for HIPAA VlOlathIE Due Addittona § ssted-e see est—praetieesg
fet-'rfemeﬂt—p}aﬂs—we-ma-'tﬂta-'m—fGﬁour 1nternat10nal footprmt W oHowi qaisitionofZen 1
%92—2— we have an—rﬂefeased-eﬂstemeﬁcustomers and eel-league—colleagues pfesenee—outslde of the United States sineluding

3, . If we fail to comply with applicable
data privacy regulatlom in the countries in which we send and receive personal data, we may be exposed to regulatory action
and fines, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. The services we provide to our clients are subject to
numerous complex federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those described in Part I, Item 1. Business, of this
Form 10- K. These laws and regulations cover a diverse range of topics, including employer status, employee and independent
contractor classifications, employee benefits, health and retirement plans, workers' compensation, bakirg-banking and money
transmission, employment and payroll tax, worksite safety, insurance and-bamleng-, wage and hour, anti- discrimination, and
many topics specific to the industries of our clients. Many of these laws do not specifically address PEOs or co- employment
relationships, and regulators are often unfamiliar with the PEO industry and co- employment relationships, which can lead to
unpredictable application, interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations at the federal, state and local levels in
relation to our business. Our HRIS services can also be subject to complex federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding
payroll agents, employment and payroll taxes, insurance producers, banking and money transmission, and other licensing
requirements. The tax eredit support services we that-ClarasRD-prevides— provide are also subject to federal, state and local
regulations regarding tax preparation and practice that limit the services they-we can provide to SMBs. While regulations
governing HRIS services and tax credit support services do not involve the complexity of a co- employment relationship, these
services are in some ways also highly regulated and such regulations can, and do, change regularly at the federal, state and local
levels . For example, in mid- January the House of Representatives passed the Tax Relief for American Families and
Workers Act of 2024 (TRAFWA) which, if it were to become law, would require that the IRS not accept further claims
for the CARES Act Employee Retention Tax Credit (ERTC) after January 31, 2024, which results in a shorter time to
file than would normally be permitted under federal filing rules. This change would negatively impact SMBs by
terminating the availability of the ERTC early . Any new laws, changes in existing laws, or any adverse application,
interpretation or enforcement of new or existing laws, including those described in Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form 10- K,
whether they apply to employers generally or specifically to PEOs or to our co- employment relationships could: ¢ reduce or
eliminate the value and benefits that clients realize by using our services, ¢ change or eliminate the types of services we provide,
* require us to make significant changes to how we do business and provide services, ¢ require us to modify our current business
practices or operations, ¢ affect the extent and type of employee benefits that employers and co- employers can or must provide
employees, TRINET24 2023 FORM 10- K - alter the amount, timing and type of taxes employers, co- employers, clients,
WSEs, and HRIS Users are required to pay and that we must manage for and collect from our clients, * increase the cost and
complexity of the licensing requirements for our business operations, ¢ create or increase our liability and responsibilities to our
clients and WSEs, HRIS Users, and / or FRINEF252022 FORM10-K— mandate new compliance requirements, disclosures or
services. Any of the above could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
For example, we have seen a growing trend, particularly at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other
related payroll tax programs as a mechanism for incentivizing SMB development and ~efeconomic recovery. These programs
are popular because they allow SMBs, which often have income tax losses, to realize benefits via payroll tax reductions, rather
than income tax reductions. However, these programs have generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and rely
on calculations contained in client income tax returns £which PEOs do not process in their role as the co- employer y-ase+or
other client data that cannot be verified by a PEO, even though the resulting tax benefits are processed through the PEO’ s
payroll tax returns. Because minimal guidance exists in the statutes that create these programs, they are subject to broad and
varied agency interpretation and eenfasten-application . In addition, the processes used to evaluate payroll tax filings are
designed with individual taxpayers in mind, not PEOs that aggregate the filings of many clients, which can further increase
ageney-eonfuston-varied interpretation by agencies and make it difficult to predict ageney-their interpretations—
interpretation and application. For example, we must claim PEO client ERTCs in aggregate on our federal tax filings
and such filings are inherently more complex. The constrained timeline in the TRAFWA coupled with the complexity of
our federal filings may result in our PEO clients being negatively impacted in a manner that is more significant than the
impact that the TRAFWA, if it were to become law, would have on SMBs not using our PEO services . Some of these
programs include the 2015 PATH Act, which allows SMBs to use R & D tax credits submitted on the SMB’ s income tax return
to reduce the SMB’ s payroll taxes, and the CARES Act and FFCRA Act payroll tax credit and payroll tax deferral program
enacted in 2020 and 2021, which allow SMBs to defer certain payroll tax obligations to a later date or to receive payroll tax
credits based on SMB employment practices that are beyond our control. The IRS has taken positions that we and other PEOs,
rather than clients, are responsible for client errors and repaying rejected tax credit claims under these and similar programs.
While our clients are contractually responsible for repaying us for any rejected tax credits under these programs, a contract does
not guarantee our ability to recover rejected tax credits and any failure to recover rejected tax credits from our clients would




increase our operating expenses, which could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Similarly, the IRS has taken positions that the tax benefits under some of these programs should be calculated on an
aggregate PEO, rather than individual client, basis, which can limit whether and how we obtain credits for our clients. We
cannot predict how these positions will ultimately be resolved and if they are resolved unfavorably, we may be forced to
discontinue supporting some or all of these programs, incur tax expenses that we cannot recover from our clients, and divert
management’ s attention to defending our positions, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
attract and retain SMB clients or on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition ;-inrespense-te
€OAD-19-, many states have also implemented assistance programs, such as mandatory employee leave requirements and
other employment- and employment tax- related incentives. Our SMB clients rely on us to help them take advantage of these
programs, and new laws, regulations and agency or judicial interpretations of these laws could change or eliminate existing
programs at any time, which could force us to discontinue supporting these programs or incur liability that we cannot recover
from our clients, which could cause us to lose clients and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and other traditional employee benefits at the
federal, state and local level could negatively affect our business. Changes to and continued uncertainty regarding the
implementation and future of health care reform in the United States, at the federal, state and local level, has the potential to
substantially change the health insurance market for SMBs and how such employers provide health insurance to their
employees, which could have a materially adverse effect on how we provide our sponsored health benefits to our WSEs, and our
ability to attract and retain our clients. In addition, changes at the federal, state and local level to the laws and regulations
regarding other traditional employee benefits, such as retirement and workers’ compensation benefits, also have the potential to
substantially change the types of benefit programs that are available to SMBs and that we and other PEOs may be required to
offer. Our ability to comply with, and adapt our service offerings to take advantage of, any such changes could require
significant additional costs, divert management attention, or be prohibitive based on cost, technology or other factors, which
could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. TRINET2S 2023 FORM
10- K If we are not recognized as an employer of our worksite employees, and if our benefit plans are deemed to not satisfy plan
requirements, under federal and state regulations, we and our clients could be adversely impacted. In order to sponsor some of
our most important employee benefit plan offerings for WSEs, including health plans, we must qualify as an employer of WSEs,
and our plans must qualify as employer- sponsored plans, under FRINEF262022FORM10-K-applicable provisions of the
Code and ERISA. In particular, our status as the employer for the purposes of ERISA is important because ERISA preempts
state laws that otherwise might apply to, and limit, our benefit plan offerings. The definition of employer under the Code and
ERISA is not uniform and is defined in part by different facts and circumstances tests, and there is no definitive judicial
interpretation of employer in the context of PEOs. Generally, the tests used under the Code or ERISA are designed to evaluate
whether an individual is an independent contractor or employee, and they confer substantial weight to whether a purported
employer has the right to direct and control the details of an individual' s work. Some factors that may be considered important
under these tests have included the employer’ s degree of behavioral control (for example the extent of instructions, training and
evaluation of the work), financial control and the economic aspects of the work relationship, the type of relationship, as
evidenced by the specific contract, if any, whether employee benefits are provided, whether the work is indefinite in duration or
project- based, and whether it is a regular part of the employer’ s business. We believe that we qualify as the sole employer of
WSEs for the purposes of Sections 3 (5) and 3 (40) of ERISA and that our health plans are single- employer plans that, as such,
are entitled to ERISA’ s preemption of state law. However, the DOL routinely audits employee benefit plan offerings of
employers, and in one routine audit of one of TriNet” s health plans that concluded in 2021, the DOL indicated that while it
agrees that we are an employer for ERISA purposes, it believes that wherever there is more than one employer of a WSE, no
employer may qualify as a single employer for ERISA purposes. Similarly, in 2022, the DOL revised an existing pubhcatlon
regarding regulation of multiple-employer-welfare-arrangementsCMEW As yand added a new section stating its view that a PEO
arrangement offering health coverage to more than one client is a MEWA under Section 3 (40) of ERISA. This DOL
interpretation is contrary to our interpretation of the applicable ERISA facts and circumstances test, and it also is contrary to the
position taken by other national PEOs. We will continue to vigorously defend our position that we are the sole employer of our
WSEs for the purposes of Sections 3 (5) and 3 (40) of ERISA, and therefore that our health plans are single employer plans
entitled to ERISA’ s preemption of applicable state laws. While we have no current DOL audit on- going, this issue and the
MEWA publication referenced above may arise in future audits of TriNet plans or the plans of other PEOs in our industry. If it
were ultimately determined that health plans sponsored by TriNet are multiple employer plans and subject to potential
regulation at the state level, we would likely adjust our business model and the manner in which we provide employee health
benefits to WSEs. Any such outcome or adjustment would require significant investment in time, cost and management attention
and would have a material impact on our clients and WSEs and the type of products and services we provide to them, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. As an employer of WSEs under ERISA, we must
manage our plans in accordance with ERISA requirements, which could impact how we fulfill plan obligations, how we price
services, whether-and-how-we-tse-diseretionary-eredits;the features of our benefit plans, and how we administer and operate our
plans. We believe that our benefit plans satisfy all applicable ERISA requirements, but if it were ultimately determined that we
fail to satisfy any such requirements, we would likely be required to adjust our business model, including with respect to each of
the areas outlined above, and could be subject to material fines or penalties. Any such consequence may result in a material
adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We have seen increased state efforts to regulate PEO health plans i1
%92—2— For example new leglslatlon and proposed rules in Ne%mbeﬁGQ%—t-he—New Mex1co seek Offtec-of the
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large group market health plans , with exception sta
Mexree—ﬂ&at—wet&d—e}ﬂmnate—ﬂa-lﬁhprehrbmen—for plans the PEO% t-hat—regrqter as MEWA@ under qtate law -States—aw}se-undeﬁake

tnsur&neeeamers—en—PEe—hea}th—mwfanee—pfaeﬁees—"Phe—These New—Meaﬂee—pfepesed—mles and leglslatlon and any other

new or changed regutations-rules that treat PEO health plans as multiple employer plans, restrict PEO fees with carriers or that
limit the availability of PEO benefit plans, if upheld to be legally valid and applicable to our PEO health plans, would likely
require us to adjust our business model in the states with such rules, including the manner in which we provide employee health
benefits to WSEs and price our services, and could result in material fines or penalties. Any such outcome or adjustment would
require significant investment in time, cost and management attention and would have a material impact on our clients and
WSESs and the type of products and services we provide to them, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. Similarly, to qualify for favorable tax treatment under the Code, certain employee benefit plans, such as
401 (k) retirement plans and cafeteria plans, must be established and maintained by an employer for the exclusive benefit of its
employees. All of our 401 (k) retirement plans are operated pursuant to guidance provided by the IRS and have FRINEF272622
FORMHO-—K-received favorable determination letters from the IRS confirming the-their tax- qualified status efthese-plans-.
However, the IRS uses its own complex, multi- factor test to ascertain whether an employment relationship exists between a
worker and a purported employer. Although we believe that we qualify as an employer of WSEs under the Code, we cannot
assure you that the IRS will not challenge our position or continue to provide favorable determination letters. TRINET26 2023
FORM 10- K Moreover, the IRS' 401 (k) guidance and qualification requirements are not applicable to the operation of our
cafeteria plans. Further, if we are not recognized as an employer of our WSEs under the Code or by any state tax authority, we
may be required to change the method by which we report and remit payroll taxes to the IRS or such tax authorities. Such
changes could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. The definition of employers, employees
and independent contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer or an
employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may negatively affect our business. National-vtews
Views on ernployer% employee% and 1ndependent contractors are changrng ata raprd rate at —as—eﬂdeneed-by—feeent—federal and

aﬂd—unen-fefeeab-}e—ts—uﬂder—a-ppea-l— Any state regulatronq that Change exr%trng deﬂnrtroni and clas%rﬁcatlon% of employeri
employees and independent contractors could affect the types of client employees we can support through our PEO and HRIS
services and-PEO-offerings-, the way in which we provide TriNet- sponsored benefits to our WSEs, the way in which we report
and remit payroll taxes to tax authorities, and our legal liability for the actions and inactions of our clients, which may
negatively impact client demand for the services we provide, require us to modify or change how we operate our business and
have a material adverse effect on our bu%rneqe and reqults of operatron% At the federal level the DOL -tssued—pubhshed a final
fu-}es—~ rule in January 2024 on beth e d WRE 0

Meanwhrle the Natronal Labor Rela&ens— Relatlon Board (NLRB) modlﬁed 1ts own 1ndependent contractor standard has

v rers-under the National Labor Relations Act
(NLRA) in a declslon pubhshed in June 2023 In August 2023 the DOL issue a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking
addressing the salary requirements for white collar minimum wage and overtime exemptions under the FLSA. In
October 2023, the NLRB issued a new standard setting forth its standards under the NLRA for determining joint
employer status . Standards for determining joint employer status vary from law to law and state to state. Joint employment is
not the same as co- employment, and we do not believe that we are a joint employer under any law or rule, or that these rule
changes impact our status as a co- employer. However, continuing uncertainty regarding independent contractor and joint
employer status could still result in increased regulatory and worker claims, which could divert management attention and cause
us to incur additional and potentially material costs to defend. Remote work has-inereased-dramatieatly-continues to be widely
used by employers across the country in-the-wake-ofthe-COVID-—9-pandemie-. The laws and regulations that govern
employees were not drafted with remote workers in mind and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of these
laws could negatively affect our business. More and more employees, including WSEs and HRIS Users, are working from home
and SMBs, including our clients, are increasingly hiring employees in locations where they de-have not previously had have-an
offtee-Many-ofthese-employees and / or permitting existing employees to relocate to other locations and work entirely
remotely. Other employees may work at home in one state or city some of the time and in an office in another state or city at
other times . The work location and residence of an employee can create confusion regarding the federal, state and local laws
that apply, including labor and employment, payroll and payroll tax, and unemployment laws. For example, it can be difficult to
determine the amount of payroll and unemployment taxes that must be paid when employees spend part of their time working
from home in one state and part of their time working in an office in another state. Regulations regarding payroll and
unemployment taxes are still catching up to this new reality, which creates a risk that states will disagree about the taxes that
must be paid, or the employment laws that must apply, in these situations. New laws, changes in laws or adverse application or
interpretation of laws that depend on the residence and work location of WSEs and HRIS Users could reduce or eliminate the
attractiveness of our services, significantly increase our compliance costs and the cost to provide our services, or require us to
make substantial changes to the way in which we operate, and any one of these outcomes could result in a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Even where remote workers live and work in the same state and city,




as a co- employer of WSEs, our PEO services are open to the risk that new laws, changes in laws or adverse application or
interpretation of laws will expand PEO responsibility for remote WSEs. For example, during the COVID- 19 pandemic we saw
many states extend workers’ compensation coverage to remote employees and to COVID- 19 claims. We expect to see
additional, similar FRENEF282622FORMIH0-K—cxpansions of PEO responsibility and we cannot guarantee that we will be
able to recover the costs to comply with such changes from our clients, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business. If we do not comply with our regulatory license requirements, or if we are deemed to be operating in various non- PEO
licensed industries without the required licenses, we and our clients could be adversely impacted. Most states require PEOs to
hold a license and we are licensed as a PEO in all states that require such licenses. If we are not able to satisfy existing or future
PEO licensing requirements or other applicable regulations in any state, we may be prohibited from doing business in that state,
including having any clients within that state. State regulatory authorities generally impose licensing requirements on companies
acting as insurance agents or third- party administrators, such as those that handle health or retirement plan funding and claim
processing. TriNet TRINET27 2023 FORM 10- K does not provide broker insurance, but we do maintain producer licenses in
all 50 states and select U. S. territories for our HRIS services and for our OMS $0M-PEO-product family , which offers clients
the option to receive PEO services from TriNet while sponsoring their own obtaining-ehent—sponsered-health benefits
obtained through frentthird-—party-brokers. Other state regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies
involved in the transmission of cash, such as banks, and other money transmitters. We do not believe that our current activities
require any such licenses, but we and others in our industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past and
could receive them in the future. Businesses similar to FrilNetZenefits-our HRIS services have been subject to such licensing
requirements in the past and although we believe that our operations have been designed to be compliant and avoid such
requirements, we cannot guarantee that all regulators will agree. If regulatory authorities in any state determine that we are
acting as an insurance agent, third- party administrator, money transmitter, or as any other regulated industry other than a PEO,
we may need to hire additional personnel to manage regulatory compliance and pay annual regulatory fees, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We are subject to legal and tax proceedings that may
result in adverse outcomes. We are subject to claims, lawsuits, government investigations, and other legal and regulatory
proceedings arising from the ordinary course of our business. Refer to Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for additional information about the legal proceedings we are currently involved in and
future proceedings that we may face. Current and future legal proceedings may result in substantial costs and may divert
management’ s attention and resources, which may seriously harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and
liquidity. In addition, the tax authorities in the U. S. regularly examine our tax returns. Refer to Note 12 in Part II, Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for additional details regarding tax examinations and
disputes. The ultimate outcome of tax examinations and disputes cannot be predicted with certainty. Should the IRS or other tax
authorities assess additional taxes as a result of any audit or examination, we may be required to record charges to operations
that could have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. Financial and Stock Ownership
Risks Our results of operations and stock price may fluctuate as a result of numerous factors, many of which are outside of our
control. Our future operating results and stock price are subject to fluctuations and quarterly variations based upon a variety of
factors, many of which are not within our control, including, without limitation: * the volume and severity of health and workers'
compensation insurance claims made by our WSEs, recorded as part of our insurance costs, and the timing of related claims
information provided by our insurance carriers, ¢ the amount and timing of our insurance premiums and other insurance costs,
operating expenses and capital expenditures, ¢ the number of our new clients and the number of WSEs or HRIS Users employed
by each new client, * the retention or loss of existing clients, for any reason, including third- party acquisition,  a reduction in
the number of WSEs or HRIS Users employed by existing clients, ¢ a reduction in the rate of WSE or HRIS User hiring by
existing clients, ¢ the timing of client payments and payment defaults by clients, * the costs associated with our acquisitions of
companies, assets and technologies, FTRENEF292022FORMI6-IK— any payments or draw downs on our credit facility, * any
unanticipated expenses, such as litigation or other dispute- related settlement payments and compliance expenses arising from
changes in regulations or regulatory enforcement, * any expenses we incur for geographic and service expansion and service
enhancements, ¢ any changes in laws or adverse interpretation or enforcement of laws, which may require us to change the
manner in which we operate and / or increase our regulatory compliance costs, ¢ any changes in our effective tax rate, * the
issuance of common stock or debt to pay for future acquisitions, which could dilute our stockholders or subject us to significant
debt service obligations, TRINET28 2023 FORM 10- K - the repurchase of our common stock under our stock repurchase
program or otherwise, which could impact earnings per share and increase the ownership percentage of non- participating
stockholders, * amortization expense, or the impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, associated with past or future
acquisitions, and * the impact of new accounting pronouncements. In addition, the trading price of our common stock is subject
to fluctuation in response to a variety of factors, including the factors above and below, many of which are not within our
control, including, without limitation: « the overall performance of the equity markets, ¢ any trading activity, or a market
expectation regarding such activity, by our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders, * the economy as a whole,
and its impact on SMBs and our clients, * the performance and market perception of companies that investors believe are similar
to us, * changes in the interest rates and financial performance of our cash investments, which may increase during periods of
high inflation and market volatility and impact our interest income, * any significant changes in the liquidity of our common
stock, and » market acceptance of our performance across non- financial factors, including evolving environmental, social, and
governance factors favored by investors and required by regulators. Many of the above factors are discussed in more detail
elsewhere in this Risk Factors section and in Part II, Item 7. MD & A, of this Form 10- K. Many of these factors are outside our
control, and the variability and unpredictability of these factors have in the past and could in the future cause us to fail to meet
our expectations and the expectations of investors and any industry analysts who cover our shares, which could result in a



decline in our share price and reduced liquidity in our shares. In addition, the occurrence of one or more of these factors might
cause our results of operations to vary widely, which could lead to negative impacts on our margins, short- term liquidity, and
our ability to retain or attract key personnel, and could cause other unanticipated issues, including a downgrade of our securities
by or change in opinion of industry analysts and a related decline in our share price. The terms of our credit facility may restrict
our current and future operations, which would impair our ability to respond to changes in our business and to manage our
business. Our credit facility contains, and any future indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a number of restrictive
covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us subject to customary exceptions, including restricting
our ability to: ¢ incur, assume or prepay debt or incur or assume liens, ¢ pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase
capital stock, * make loans, investments or acquisitions, * enter into sale- leaseback transactions, ¢ enter into new lines of
business, * complete a significant corporate transaction, such as a merger or sale of our company or its assets, and ¢ enter into
agreements that prohibit the incurrence of liens or the payment by our subsidiaries of dividends and distributions. Our failure to
comply with these restrictions and the other terms and conditions under our credit facility could result in a default, which in turn
could result in the termination of the lenders’ commitments to extend further credit to us under our credit facility and
acceleration of a substantial portion of our indebtedness then outstanding under our credit facility. If that were to happen, we
may not be able to repay all of the amounts that would become due under FRENEF362622FORMH0-K-our indebtedness or
refinance our debt, which could materially harm our business and force us to seek bankruptcy protection. Atairos, our largest
stockholder, may have significant influence over our Company, and the ownership of capital stock, and thus the voting control,
of our Company remains concentrated in our executive officers, directors and their affiliates, which limits your ability to
influence corporate matters. TRINET29 2023 FORM 10- K On February 1, 2017, an entity affiliated with Atairos Group, Inc.
(together with its affiliates, “ Atairos ”’) became our largest stockholder when it acquired the shares of TriNet common stock
previously held by General Atlantic. In connection with this transaction, we appointed Michael J. Angelakis, the Chairman and
CEO of Atairos, to our board of directors and agreed to nominate Mr. Angelakis or another designee of Atairos reasonably
acceptable to our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for election at future annual meetings until Atairos’
beneficial ownership falls below 15 % of our common stock. As of January 31, 2023-2024 , Atairos beneficially owned
approximately 36 % of our outstanding common stock, and all of our directors, executive officers and their affiliates, including
Atairos, beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately 37 % of our outstanding common stock. As a result, Atairos,
particularly when acting with our executive officers, directors and their affiliates, is able to exert substantial influence on all
matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions,
such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets. In addition, our stockholders have no assurances that Atairos’
holdings, or the holdings of our other large stockholders, in our common stock will not increase. This concentration of
ownership could limit the ability of other stockholders to influence corporate matters and may have the effect of delaying or
preventing a third party from acquiring control over us. FRINEF3H2622---- TRINET30 2023 FORM 10- K PROPERTIES,
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESItem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments None . Item 1C.
Cybersecurity Below is a discussion of our risk management and approach to governance as it relates to cyber risks. For
additional information on the impact of cyber risks, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the
heading “ Data Privacy and Security Risks ”. Cyber Risk Management and Strategy Our Global Security program aims
to safeguard critical assets through a risk- based approach to cybersecurity. The CSO provides leadership for the
program. We employ a defense- in- depth strategy and has established a Security Risk Management Program. In that
regard, we built a customized IRCF that was developed with the specific intent of keeping information assets secure and
preventing technology resources from unauthorized disclosure, modification, deletion, and destruction. We have
modeled our IRCF on several leading industry standards including portions of the NIST Cybersecurity Framework. The
IRCF serves as an organizational model for governance and reporting and is reviewed annually. Our Global Security
Organization is responsible for the day- to- day execution of our cyber risk management strategy. This strategy has been
incorporated into our overall ERM program and is thus informed by, and overseen through, our ERM program. Our
ERM program facilitates identifying, prioritizing, analyzing and remediating enterprise risks, in which cyber risks are
included. Within the broader ERM framework, we established a specific program- the IRM program- organizing the
governance of risks associated with information held by us. The IRM Steering Committee, of which our CSO is a
member, manages the IRM program, discusses the management of cyber risks on a regular cadence and substantive
updates from the IRM Steering Committee are provided to the ERM Steering Committee. Finally, through our ERM
program, updates and discussion regarding our cybersecurity risk management are provided to and occur at the Risk
Committee of our Board of Directors. To supplement our cyber risk management capabilities, we utilize certain third-
party vendors. These vendors support our ability to proactively secure our network and systems, in addition to ongoing
monitoring of our cyber environment. With respect to our management of cyber risks arising from third- party vendors,
we utilize an internal risk assessment and monitoring program that includes the identification and ongoing review of
third- party controls. As part of our cyber risk management strategy, we established a process for identifying and
assessing the material risk of cybersecurity incidents. In the event a cybersecurity incident is identified, the CIRT, which
is made up of a cross- functional team, including technology, security, finance and legal professionals, acts in accordance
with established processes. The CIRT convenes regular meetings to review and analyze relevant cybersecurity indicators
and information. Utilizing an IRC, if it is determined that an incident needs to be reviewed for potential materiality, it is
referred to our Chief Legal Officer who will engage the necessary or desirable cross functional professionals as needed in
order to make a determination of materiality. We also seek to regularly update and upgrade our technology investments
in an effort to further support our ability to identify and assess risks from cybersecurity incidents. We have not
identified any cyber threats or incidents that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect us. For



additional information on the potential impact of cybersecurity incidents on our business strategy, operations, or
financial condition, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading “ Data Privacy and
Security Risks ”. Cyber Risk Governance Our Cyber Risk Management Strategy described in this Item 1C. is overseen
by senior executives with experience in cybersecurity and our business operations and is ultimately overseen by the Risk
Committee of the Board. Our Global Security Organization is tasked with executing this strategy through the
implementation of cybersecurity policies, procedures, and strategies. In the event that a cybersecurity risk is identified,
as and to the extent appropriate, the Global Security Organization manages the day- to- day response to such material
risk and provides regular reports to the ERM Steering Committee, or the Risk Committee of the Board, or the Board, as
appropriate. The CSO is also an advisor to the Company' s Disclosure Committee, which meets quarterly. On a
quarterly basis, a meeting of the Risk Committee is convened to discuss and evaluate our management of enterprise-
wide risks. Each meeting of the Risk Committee is facilitated by our Executive Director for ERM and includes
programmatic updates from the CSO. The Risk Committee provides updates to the full Board of Directors regarding the
state of the Company’ s ERM program. Cyber risks are an enterprise risk that the ERM Program monitors and thus
such risks are an ongoing area of focus of the ERM Steering Committee and, as a result, the Risk Committee. On a
monthly basis, the ERM Steering Committee is convened and receives pertinent updates regarding our management of
cyber risks. TRINET31 2023 FORM 10- K In addition to the regularly scheduled programmatic updates that are
provided to the ERM Steering Committee and the Risk Committee, we also established a process to inform such
committees of cybersecurity events and allow them to monitor corresponding remediation efforts. Specifically, the IRM
Steering Committee, consisting of senior leaders from the security, privacy, data governance, technology, records
management, and third- party risk management programs, reports to the ERM Steering Committee and has the
responsibility to provide updates regarding the identification, management, and remediation of significant cybersecurity
threats. The ERM Steering Committee is similarly tasked with providing relevant updates to the Risk Committee
regarding cybersecurity threats. Additionally, we have developed a process that is specific to the management and
analysis of cybersecurity incidents. This process includes weekly and monthly updates from the CIRT along with
escalation criteria that allows for incidents to be reviewed for materiality on an ad hoc basis. These updates are also
provided to the ERM Steering Committee and the Risk Committee as necessary. Our CSO leads our Global Security
Organization which is responsible for overseeing the Company' s cyber risk management strategy. Our CSO has over 20
years of industry experience, including serving in similar roles leading and overseeing cybersecurity programs at other
companies. Team members who support our Global Security team have relevant educational and industry experience,
including holding similar positions at other large companies . Item 2. Properties We lease space for our offices in various U.
S. states, including the following: Corporate Headquarters: Significant Client Service Centers: ¢« Dublin, California « Bradenton,
Florida « Austin, Texas For more information regarding our leases, refer to Note 7 in Part I, [tem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Item 3. Legal Proceedings For the information required in this section, refer to Note 9
in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not
applicable. FRINEF322622—--- TRINET32 2023 FORM 10- K STOCK ACTIVITIESPART II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Market Information and Holders of
Record Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ TNET ”. As of February 8, 2023
2024 , we had 93-70 holders of record of our common stock per Computershare Trust Company N. A., our transfer agent. Our
actual number of stockholders is greater than the number of our record holders, because it includes stockholders who are
beneficial owners of our common stock, but whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. This number
of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in a trust by other entities. For information
regarding our equity- based incentive plans, please refer to Part I1I, Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, of this Form 10- K. Dividend Policy We did not declare or pay cash
dividends in 2023 or 2022 o262+ Payment-of The decision to pay cash dividends in the future is made if-ever;-wittbe-at
the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on then- existing conditions, including our financial condition, operating
results, contractual restrictions under our credit facility (refer to Note 8 in Part I, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K), capital requirements, business prospects and other factors our board of directors may
deem relevant. Performance Graph The graph below en-the-feHowingpage-compares the cumulative total return on our
common stock since December 31, 20+7-2018 with the cumulative total return on the S & P 500 Index and a Peer Group Index.
The cumulative total return is based on the assumption that § 100 had been invested in TriNet Group, Inc. common stock, the
Standard & Poor+’ s 500 Stock Index (S & P 500) and common stock of members of a Peer Group Index, all on December 31,
26472018 and that all gaarterty—dividends were reinvested. The cumulative dollar total returns shown on the graph represent
the value that such investments would have had at each year end. FRENEF332022FORMIO-K-COMPARISON OF 5- YEAR
CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN Among TriNet Group, Inc., the S & P 500 Index, and a Peer Group (1) (1) The Peer Group
Index used in the chart above consists of the following companies: Automatic Data Processing, Inc. Insperity, Inc. Paychex, Inc.
Barrett Business Services, Inc. Intuit, Inc. TRINET33 2023 FORM 10- K The following table provides information about our
purchases of TriNet common stock during the fourth quarter of 26222023 : PeriodTotal Number ofShares Purchased (+2)
Weighted Average PricePaid Per ShareTotal Number ofSharesPurchased as Part of PubliclyAnnounced Plans (21 )
Approximate Dollar Valueof Shares that May Yet Be PurchasedUnder the Plans (in millions) (3) October 1- October 31,
2622+76-202398 , 286-722 § 65-109 . 34169-78 98 , 971-390 $ +73-435 November 1- November 30, 2622+79-202377 , 654-037
$ 65-09-109 133-. 28 24 . +41+-717 $ +65-433 December 1- December 31, 20224202375 , 899 776:-500-5 H-118 . 96 — 19+
675-744-5 245-433 Fotal2-Total251 , +26-658 123 , 107 43415978856~ 1) In May 2014, our board of directors approved a
stock repurchase program pursuant to which we are authorized to repurchase our common stock in privately negotiated and / or



open market transactions, including under plans complying with Rule 10b5- 1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. From

time to time, our board of directors authorizes increases to our stock 1epulehase ploomm and has apprO\ ed an d(zmegdte totdl of

‘{> +2, 45—1—715 million as of Deeember 31 %92—2—2023 hteh-tie 6 g 6 §
00 - o

repurchases under our stoek 1epu1chase program was ‘{> %45—433 mi hon as of December 31, 20222023 . The program does not
have an expiration date. (2) Includes shares surrendered by employees to us to satisfy tax withholding obligations that arose
upon vesting of restricted stock units granted pursuant to approved plans. (3) We repurchased a total of approximately $ +39— 13
million of our outstanding stock during the three months ended December 31, 20222023 . We use our stock repurchase program
to return value to our stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance of stock under our equity- based incentive plans and
employee purchase plan. As part of our stock repurchase program, we repurchased approximately $ $45-1. 1 mtHter-billion of
our common stock in 2022-2023 . We plan to use current cash and cash generated from ongoing operating activities to fund our
stock repurchase program. Under our previously announced tender effers-— offer which concluded in the third quarter of 2023
, we purchased 3-5 , 653-981 , 696-308 of our shares for an aggregate cost of approximately $ 3+9-640 million, including fees
and expenses . Concurrently , inMareh2022-through a purchase agreement with our largest stockholder , and-Atairos
Group, Inc we purchased +3 , 5+5-364 , 258486 of our shares for amaggregate-eost-of-approximately $ H4+360 million,
including fees and expenses yir-Deeember2022- FRINEF342022-FORMH0-K-Our stock repurchases are subject to certain
restrictions under the terms of our credit facility. For more information about our stock repurchases and the restrictions imposed
by our credit facility, refer to Note 8 and Note 11 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form
10- K. FRINETF352022-TRINET34 2023 FORM 10- K MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISItem 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Operational Highlights Our
consolidated results for 2022-2023 reflect our continuing efforts to serve our clients , attract new clients threugh-the-eurrent
eeonomie-tneertainty-and vesting—--- invest in our platform. During 2622-2023 we: * improved sales performance and
customer retention, * continued to grow total revenues, manage expense prudently, and grow earnings per share, * utilized
our scale and knowledge to assist our PEO and HRIS clients during and following the liquidity challenges in regional
banks ensuring that our clients were able to successfully run payroll during that time, * executed a series of transactions
to rebalance our capital structure in order to enhance our leverage ratios, including: ° issued $ 400 million of our senior
unsecured notes maturing in August 2031, © executed our 2021 Credit Amendment, to among other things (1) increase
the aggregate capacity under our 2021 Revolver from $ 500 million to $ 700 million, and (2) extend the maturity date of
our 2021 Revolver to August 16, 2028, ° completed the-aequisition-approximately $ 1 billion in share repurchases of
Ze&eﬁts—dwersrﬁymg—etu*pre&twt—TnNet common stock through a pubhc tender offer in August and a private repurchase
viee-o g rg-our serviee-offeringsfor-al-SMBs-largest
stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. in September 10sted the 4th 3rd-annual-TriNet PeopleForce, our showcase client and
prospect conference focused on busmess tmnstmmdtlon duhty and i innov ation f01 SMBs Sﬁ&H—&Hd—ﬂ‘tedﬁtﬂ‘t—Si-Ze—bﬂSTﬂesseS—

serﬂee—reveﬂues—reeegﬁtzed—hcompleted the mlgratlon appre*tm&tel—y%%%m—sh&re—rept&ehases—of our general
business apphcatlons CPH-PwIet—eeﬂameﬁ—steelﬁnehdmg—teﬁdereffers—to fepufehase—$—3-1-6—ﬁn-1-heﬂ—aﬂd4$—the cloud. TRINET35

vely—Performance Highlights Our results for
2022-2023 when compdled to %92—1—2022 are noted below % 4 9B b 499M-84—469M84 % Total revenuesOperating
incomelnsurance cost ratieS-ratiol %inrereasetd-% increase ( 2-6 ) % deerease-decreasel % flat $ 355M-375M §$ 5-6 . 6156 S
448MNet-446MNet incomeDiluted EPSAdjusted Net income * 6 % increasel7 % increase0 % flat 331, 423347, 542215,
295Average WSE * * Total WSE * * Average HRIS Users ( 5)% merease—l—l—decreaseO % flat inereaset9-Y4inerease34S;

A verag (413 ) % decrease * Non- GAAP measure.

See dehmtlons belOV\ under the heading" Non (JAAP FlndllCldl Measules” * * Total WSEs includes approximately 12 We
eontinted-to-achieve-year—over—year reventegrowth-, iereased-otr-000 incremental WSEs for December 31, 2023 and
Average WSEs includes approximately 4 , achteved-higher-insurantee-000 incremental WSEs for the fourth quarter of 2023
(1, 000 for the full year 2023) that were charged a platform user access fee. Additionally, Total WSEs includes
approximately 4, S00 incremental WSEs for December 31, 2023 and Average WSEs includes approximately 4, 800 for the
fourth quarter of 2023 (1 500 for the full year 2023) addltlonal service rec1p1ents -fee—r&tes—&nd—ae}e}ed—ae}d-rﬁeﬁa-l—l-l-RI-S

1dent1ﬁed asa d ‘ o h
resulted—- result of our ongomg effort ﬂgheﬁnﬁw&rree-eests—eefmaafed-to %92—1—ensure that our blllmg practlces best
match the expectations of our customers . The-growth-in-For details, refer to the heading' Operating Metrics — Worksite
Employees (WSEs). ” Our total revenues increased 1 %, primarily driven by inflationary rate increases , partially offset by
lower volume due to inereases-decreases in Average WSEs. Our Average WSEs decreased insuranee-eosts-and-operating
expenses; resultedrinereases-inotrnetineome-of-5 % and AdjustedNetdneome-of 19-%—1Total WSEs was approximately
flat year over year. The deereased— decrease fromDeeember31+262+-in Average WSEs was primarily due to aetPES
elient-the cumulative impact of lower hiring in our installed base during the past twelve months, particularly within our
Technology vertical, which did not offset our attrition . This trend was partially offset by stronger from-largerelients;
tower—than—expeeted-new client additions ;-and redueed-hiringretention during the year. Our ICR was approximately flat
year over year as health insurance costs grew at a faster rate than health ISR, partially offset by favorable workers'
compensation prior period claims development. Higher revenues and interest income, partially offset by higher health
insurance costs and operating expenses from our investments PEO-elients;-partiendarly-in sales and marketing, resulted in



the seeond-half-of6 % increase in net income. Adjusted Net income was flat as the increase in net income was offset by
lower transaction and integration costs as compared to 2022. FRINEF362622—--- TRINET36 2023 FORM 10- K The
following table summarizes our results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 ard-2626-.
For details of the critical accounting judgments and estimates that could affect the Results of Operations, see the Critical
Accounting Judgments and Estimates section within MD & A. Year Ended December 31, % Change (in millions, except
operating metrics data) 2622202426202622-2023202220212023 vs. 20242624-20222022 vs. 2620neome-2021Income
Statement Data: Professional service revenues $ 756 $ 754 $ 639 $-544— % 18 %3+7% Insurance service revenues4, 166 4,
131 3,901 13;496-6 +2-Total revenues4, 922 4, 885 4, 540 1 4:-634-8 +3-Insurance costs3, 513 3, 463 3, 339 1 4 Operating
expenses940 923 746 2 7979-412-Operating-expensesd23-746-687-24 9-Total costs and operating expenses4, 453 4, 386 4, 085
2 35-666-7 H-Operating inreeme499-- income469 499 455 368-(6) 10 24-Other income (expense): Interest expense, bank fees
and other ( 40) (39) (20) 3 €8H-95 S5y-Interest ineome22-- income72 22 6 +6-227 267 (48)-Income before provision for income
taxes482-taxes501 482 441 3574 9 24-Income taxesi27-taxes126 127 103 85-(1) 23 24-Net income $ 375 $ 355 § 338 $272-6
% 5 %24-% Cash Flow Data: Net cash provided by operating aettvitiesS62-activities545 562 218 546-(3) % 158 %667 Net
cash used in investing activities (70) (226) (135) (#5469 ) 67 (4H-Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ( 546) (
536) 12 2 26834, 567 3+3+06-) Non- GAAP measures (1): Adjusted EBIFDA68S-EBITDA697 688 565 468-1 % 22 2+-%
Adjusted Net ineome448-income446 448 376 33— 19 24-Corporate Operating Cash Flew497Flow539 497 415 338-8 20 23
Operating Metrics: Insurance Cost Ratio84 % 84 % 86 % 85— % (2) +% Average W-SEs348-WSEs (2) 331, 423 348 , 543
340, 067 323;-672-(5) 2 5-Total W-SEs348-WSEs (2) 347, 542 348 , 652 364, 940 — 3345908(4) +0-Average HRIS Users (23
) 215, 295 248, 496 N / AN+ANFAN-A (13) N/ A (1) Refer to Non- GAAP measures definitions and reconciliations from
GAAP measures under the heading" Non- GAAP Financial Measures". (2) Total WSEs includes approximately 12, 000
incremental WSEs for December 31, 2023 and Average WSEs includes approximately 4, 000 incremental WSEs for the
fourth quarter of 2023 (1, 000 for the full year 2023) that were charged a platform user access fee. Additionally, Total
WSEs includes approximately 4, 500 incremental WSEs for December 31, 2023 and Average WSEs includes
approximately 4, 800 for the fourth quarter of 2023 (1, 500 for the full year 2023) additional service recipients. These
were identified as a result of our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the expectations of our
customers. For details, refer to the twelve-menths-heading" Operating Metrics — Worksite Employees (WSEs). ” (3) For
the year ended December 31, 2022, reflects HRIS Users from February 15, 2022, the date on which we acquired Zenefits, to the
end of the period. The following table summarizes our balance sheet data as of December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2626-.
Year Ended December 31, % Change (in millions) 2622202420202622-2023202220212023 vs. 20242624-20222022 vs.
2020Balanee-2021Balance Sheet Data: Cash and cash equivalents $ 287 $ 354 § 612 $3684-(19) % (42) % +83-Working
capitall15 338 700 (66) % Wetking-eapital338-700-296-(52) % +4+%-Total assets3, 693 3, 443 3,309 7 % 356434 % 9
Debtl1, 093 496 495 120 % Pebt496-495369-— %34-% Total stockholders’ eguity77#5-equity78 775 881 667-(90) % (12) %
45-%6TFRINEF372022—--- TRINET37 2023 FORM 10- K A discussion regarding our financial condition and results of
operations for 2022 compared to 2021 eempared-to2626-can be found under Part II, [tem 7. Management' s Discussion and
Analysis in our Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 28242022 , filed with the SEC on February +&
15, 2024-2023 . In addition to financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP, we monitor other non- GAAP financial
measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate resources and to use as performance
measures in our executive compensation plan. These key financial measures provide an additional view of our operational
performance over the long- term and provide information that we use to maintain and grow our business. The presentation of
these non- GAAP financial measures is used to enhance the understanding of certain aspects of our financial performance. It is
not meant to be considered in isolation from, superior to, or as a substitute for the directly comparable financial measures
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Non- GAAP MeasureDefinitionHow We Use The MeasureAdjusted EBITDA < Net
income, excluding the effects of:- income tax provision,- interest expense, bank fees and other,- depreciation,- amortization of
intangible assets,- stock based compensation expense,- amortization of cloud computing arrangements, and- transaction and
integration costs. * Provides period- to- period comparisons on a consistent basis and an understanding as to how our
management evaluates the effectiveness of our business strategies by excluding certain non- recurring costs, which include
transaction and integration costs, as well as certain non- cash charges such as depreciation and amortization, and stock- based
compensation and certain impairment charges recognized based on the estimated fair values. We believe these charges are either
not directly resulting from our core operations or not indicative of our ongoing operations. * Enhances comparisons to prior
periods and, accordingly, facilitates the development of future projections and earnings growth prospects. * Provides a measure,
among others, used in the determination of incentive compensation for management. * We also sometimes refer to Adjusted
EBITDA margin, which is the ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total revenues. Adjusted Net Income ¢ Net income, excluding the
effects of:- effective income tax rate (1),- stock based compensation,- amortization of intangible assets, net,- non- cash interest
expense (2),- transaction and integration costs, and- the income tax effect (at our effective tax rate (1) of these pre- tax
adjustments. ¢ Provides information to our stockholders and board of directors to understand how our management evaluates our
business, to monitor and evaluate our operating results, and analyze profitability of our ongoing operations and trends on a
consistent basis by excluding certain non- cash charges. Corporate Operating Cash Flows ¢ Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities, excluding the effects of:- Assets associated with WSEs (accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, prepaid
expenses , other payroll assets and other current assets) and- Liabilities associated with WSEs (client deposits and other client
liabilities, accrued wages, payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings, accrued health benefit-insurance costs, accrued
workers' compensation costs, insurance premiums and other payables, and other current liabilities). ® Provides information that
our stockholders and management can use to evaluate our cash flows from operations independent of the current assets and
liabilities associated with our WSEs. ¢« Enhances comparisons to prior periods and, accordingly, used as a liquidity measure to



manage liquidity between corporate and WSE related activities, and to help determine and plan our cash flow and capital
strategies. (1) Non- GAAP effective tax rate is 25. 6 % for 2023, and 25. 5 % for 2022 -and 2021 ard2020-, which excludes
the income tax impact from stock- based compensation, changes in uncertain tax positions , and nonrecurring benefits or
expenses from federal legislative changes. (2) Non- cash interest expense represents amortization and write- off of our debt
issuance costs and loss on a terminated derivative. FTRINETF382622—--- TRINET38 2023 FORM 10- K Reconciliation of GAAP
to Non- GAAP Measures The table below presents a reconciliation of Net income to Adjusted EBITDA: Year Ended December
31, (in millions) 202220212620Net202320222021Net income $ 375 $ 355 § 338 $272-Provision for income taxest2?
taxes126 127 103 85-Stock based eompensation62-compensationS9 62 50 43-Interest expense, bank fees and other (1) 40 39 20
2+-Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets (2) 72 64 54 47-Amortization of cloud computing arrangements4
arrangements8 —4 — Transaction and integration eests37costs17 —37 — Adjusted EBITDA § 697 $ 688 § 565 $468
Adjusted EBITDA Margin 14.2 % 14. 1 % 12. 5 %H-—6-% (1) Amoeunt2022 Interest expense, bank fees and other includes
$ 17M of realized investments losses on sales and impairments related to AFS securities #2022~ (2) Amount includes
impairment of customer relationship intangibles in 2021. The table below presents a reconciliation of Net income to Adjusted
Net Income: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202226242026Net-202320222021Net income $ 375 $ 355 $ 338 $272
Effective income tax rate adjustmentS— adjustment (2) 5 (10) (6)-Stock based eompensationé2-compensationS9 62 50 43
Amortization of other intangible assets, net (') 20 18 12 5-Non- cash interest expenset-expense2 1 3 +Transaction and
integration eests37costs17 —37 — Income tax impact of pre- tax adjustments (25) (30) (17) @2-Adjusted Net Income $ 446
$ 448 $ 376 $363-(1) Amount includes impairment of customer relationship intangibles in 2021. The table below presents a
reconciliation of net cash provided by operating activities to Corporate Operating Cash Flows: Year Ended December 31, (in
millions) 202220242020Net202320222021Net cash provided by operating activitics $ 545 § 562 $ 218 $546-Less: Change in
WSE related other current assets (329) ( 149) (51) #8-Less: Change in WSE related habiities2+4-liabilities335 214 (146) 498
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities- WSE $ 6 $ 65 $ (197) $268-Net cash provided by operating activities-
Corporate $ 539 $ 497 $ 415 $338FRINEF392022—--- TRINET39 2023 FORM 10- K Worksite Employees (WSE) Average
WSE grewth-change is a volume measure we use to monitor the performance of our PEO business. Our PEO clients generally
change their payroll service providers at the beginning of the payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a result, we
have historically experienced our highest volumes of new PEO clients joining and existing clients terminating in the
month of January. PEO client attrition, new PEO client additions and changes in employment levels within our installed
PEO client base all impact our Average WSEs and Total WSEs as we move through a calendar year. We support WSEs
from the date on which their co- employment with TriNet commences through the end of their co- employment with
TriNet and also after their co- employment period. We define WSEs to include co- employees and other individuals
receiving PEO services, such as individuals who receive COBRA benefits post co- employment or are subject to K- 1 tax
reporting as well as individuals who utilize our PEO platform on behalf of TriNet PEO clients. As part of an ongoing
effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers, in the third quarter of 2023 we
determined that certain individuals such as those described above and certain co- employees were not previously or
consistently counted in Total WSEs and Average WSEs. | This resulting adjustment increased our reported Total WSEs
by approximately 4, 500 for December 31, 2023 and Average WSEs by approximately 4, 800 and 1, 500 for the fourth
quarter of 2023 and the full year 2023, respectively. We intend to continue our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing
practices best match the expectations of our customers and in the future we may identify additional individuals that
should be included in Total WSEs and Average WSEs. In December 2023, we implemented a platform user access fee to
charge clients for those users of our PEO platform that may not be co- employed by us and to charge clients for co-
employees for whom payroll may not be regularly run. In addition to co- employees for whom payroll may not be
regularly run, this includes individuals authorized by our clients to access and use the PEO platform for functions such
as bookkeeping and benefits management. The amount of the fee is comparable to the fee we charge for users of our
HRIS platform. While the amount of revenue we recognized in 2023 for this service was not significant, these users of the
PEO platform for whose access we charged this fee increased our reported Total WSEs by approximately 12, 000 as of
December 31, 2023 and Average WSEs by approximately 4, 000 and 1, 000 for the fourth quarter of 2023 and the full
year ended December 31, 2023, respectively. The effect of this new fee is that we are now receiving revenue from two
types of users on our PEO platform, those that are co- employed in our PEO business and those that are utilizing our
PEO platform, albeit in a more limited fashion. The table below illustrates how those two components comprise our
Total WSE and Average WSE metrics. Year Ended December 31, % Change2023202220212023 vs. 20222022 vs.
2021Average WSEs331, 423 348, 543 340, 067 (5) 2 Co- Employed330, 423 348, 543 340, 067 (5) 2 PEO Platform Usersl,
000 N /AN /AN /AN / ATotal WSEs347, 542 348, 652 364, 940 — (4) Co- Employed335, 543 348, 652 364, 940 (4) (4)
PEO Platform Users11, 999 N /AN /AN /AN /A Average WSEs decreased 5 % when comparing 2023 to 2022 t6-262+,
primarily due to inrereased-lower hiring by-eurPEO-ehents-in our 2624-whieh-ereated-a-higher-installed base to-start 2622

across most verticals during the past twelve months, especially within our Technology vertical . This market trend was
partially offset by strong netehentattritton-fromlargerehents; tower—thanexpeeted-new client additions #2622;-and
improved redueed-hiring-by-ourPEO-ettents— client retention in theseeond-half-o£2022-2023 . Total WSEs can be used to
estimate our beginning WSEs for the next period and, as a result, can be used as an indicator of our potential future success in
generating revenue, growing our business and retaining clients. Total WSEs was flat deelined4-%-when comparing 2023 to

2022 to2624primartty-due to the combined effects of lower hiring by our clients and net client attrition frenttargerehents
over the past year being , tower—than—expeeted-offset by the combined effect of improvements in new client additions sand

improved redueed-hiring-fromourPEO-elients— client retention during ;-partiewlarly-in-the-seeond-half- 0£2622-2023 and the

additional WSEs described above . Anticipated revenues for future periods can diverge from the revenue expectation derived



from Average WSEs or Total WSEs due to pricing differences across our HRRHCM solutions and services and the degree to
which clients and TRINET40 2023 FORM 10- K WSE:s elect to participate in our solutions during future periods. In addition to
focusing on growing our Average WSE and Total WSE counts, we also focus on pricing strategies, benefit participation and
service differentiation to expand the value we provide to our clients and our resulting revenue opportunities. We report the
impact of client and WSE participation differences as a change in mix. We continue to invest in efforts intended to enhance
client experience, improve our new sales performance, and manage client attrition, through product development as well
as operational and process improvements. As we continue our work in combining our PEO platform and our HRIS SaaS
capabilities into a single platform, these various types of TriNet users will all be served from the same platform. [n
addition to focusing on retaining and growing our WSE base, we continue to review acquisition opportunities that would
expand add—apprepﬂateiry—te-our product offerlng and pr0v1de further scale —We—eenﬁnue—te—rnvest—m—effeﬁs—rntended—te

h . Average HRIS Users is a
Volume measure we use to monitor the performance of our Cloud based HRIS services. Average HRIS Users for the period
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was 215, 295 and 248, 496, whiehrefleets-average-respectively. This decline is being
driven by both higher client attrition as compared to new client additions and lower hiring by HRIS clients similar to
SMB hiring trends that Hsers—frem—February—lé—Z@Q—z—ﬂ&e—date—eﬂ—wﬁeh—we have observed in our PEO business aequiree
Zeﬂeﬁts—te—t-he—eﬂd—ef—t-he—peﬂed— ] Insurance Cost Ratio (ICR) ICR is a performance measure calculated as the ratio of

insurance costs to insurance service revenues. We believe that ICR promotes an understanding of our insurance cost trends and
our ability to align our relative pricing to risk performance. FRINEF462022FORM10-I-We purchase workers' compensation
and health benefits coverage for our eeHeagtes-and-WSEs. Under the insurance policies for this coverage, we bear claims costs
up to a defined deductible amount. Our insurance costs, which comprise a significant portion of our overall costs, are
significantly affected by our WSEs’ health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We set our insurance
service fees for workers’ compensation and health benefits in advance for fixed benefit periods. As a result, increases in
insurance costs above our projections, reflected as a higher ICR, result in lower net income. Decreases in insurance costs below
our projections, reflected as a lower ICR, result in higher net income, but can be an indicator that insurance costs are developing
more slowly than our projections, which are reflected in our fees, and this can have a negative impact over time on client
retention and new sales. TRINET41 2023 FORM 10- K Under our fully- insured workers' compensation insurance policies, we
assume the risk for losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). The ultimate cost of the workers’
compensation services provided cannot be known until all the claims are settled. Our ability to predict these costs is limited by
unexpected increases in frequency or severity of claims, which can vary due to changes in the cost of treatments or claim
settlements. Under our risk- based health insurance policies, we assume the risk of variability in future health claims costs for
our enrollees. This variability typically results from changing trends in the volume, severity and ultimate cost of medical and
pharmaceutical claims, due to changes to the components of MCT, which we define as changes in participant use of services,
including the introduction of new treatment options, changes in treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost
of providing treatment and timing of services provided to plan participants. These trends change, and other seasonal trends and
variability may develop. As a result, it is difficult for us to predict our insurance costs with accuracy and a significant increase in
these costs could have a material adverse effect on our business. (in millions) 202226242620nsuranee—---
202320222021Insurance costs $ 3, 513 $ 3, 463 $ 3, 339 $2;-979-Insurance service revenues4, 166 4, 131 3, 901 3;496
Insurance Cost Ratio84 % 84 % 86 % 85-%-ICR deereased-for-the-year-was approximately flat when comparing 2023 to
2022 as health insurance costs grew at a higher-faster rate than health ISR #2622, partially offset by favorable workers'
compensation prior period clalms development Insurance costs increased due to hlgher costs assoclated with medlcal
services utilization v 0 ' ;

inereases, in particular outpatlent services and pharmacy costs. ThlS was part1ally offqet by favorable prlor perlod
development in workers' compensation and lower volume due to lower Average WSEs. ISR increased due to rate
increases partially offset by lower volume due to lower Average WSEs. In addition, ISR in 2023 did not include any
reductlons for credlt programs whereas ISR in 2022 1ncluded a $ 75 million reductlon related to our 2022 Credltq Our

FGRM—I—G——IGTotal Revenues Our revenues conmt of prefessren&l—sewree—revemres—ﬁPSR 9—and -rnsara-nee—ser*v‘tee—revenues—é

ISR ¥. PSR represents fees charged to clients for processing payroll- related transactions on behalf of our PEO and HRIS clients,
access to our HR expertise, employment and benefit law comphance %ewweq other HR- related and tax credit filing services
and fees charged to access our cloud- based HRIS services -

€tarasRP-. ISR consists of insurance- related billings and administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from
WSE% for workers' compenqanon 1n§urance and health benefit insurance plan% provided by thlrd pa1 ty insurance carriers <

elients-. Monthly total revenues per Average WSE is a measure we use to monitor our PEO pricing strategies. This measure
increased 4-6 % in 2023 compared to 2022 eemparedto262+-. We also use the following measures to further analyze changes
in total revenue: « Volume- the percentage change in period over period co- employed Average WSEs, ¢ Rate- the combined
weighted average percentage changes in service fees for each vertical service and changes in service fees associated with each
insurance service offering, « Mix- the change in composition of Average WSEs within our verticals combined with the
composition of our enrolled WSEs within our insurance service offerings and the composition of products and services our
clients receive, including Clarus R D, ¢ Credit- the weighted average change in amounts recognized for our Reeevery2022



Credits, and » HRIS- incremental HRIS cloud services revenue . TRINET42 freﬂa—ew*&eqtﬂstﬁeﬂ—e%eﬁeﬁfs—ﬁrFebruaw—}GQ%

2023 -FORM 10- K PSRISR- % represents proportion of insurance service revenues to total revenues * Total revenues
generated from PEO services only The grewth-increase in total reventes— revenue for the year was primarily driven by
inflationary rate increases. In addition, as part of our 2022 Credit program, we recognized a growth-$ 75 million
reduction in revenue rate;higher-Average-WSEsfavorable-change-in ourvertiealmix-and-higher-2022, which did not recur
in 2023 This was partlally offset by lower health plan emollment 7and lower volume due to lower Average WSEs the

6 g 6 efits-. Operating Income Our operating income consists
of total revenues less insurance costs and OE. Ou1 insurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage provided by
insurance camers fetmburseﬁ&eﬁt—e#expenses for clnms costs and risk management and payments-made-by-TRINET422022

v § ators-administrative services , and changes in accrued costs related to
contractual obhganons W1th our workers' compensdnon and health benefit carriers. Our OE consists primarily of our colleagues'
compensation related expenses, which includes payroll, payroll taxes, SBC, bonuses, commissions and other payroll- and
benefits- related costs. The table below provides a view of the changes in components of operating income on a year- over- year
basis. (in millions) § 4552024-4992022 Operating Income 345Higher-37Higher total revenues primarily driven by the-addition
of HRIS-eloud-servieesrevenue,Tate increases and higherAverage-W-SEs-due to no reduction in revenue being recognized in
2023 related to our 2022 Credits , partially offset by higherreduetions—trrevente-fromour2022-Credits-lower health plan
enrollment and lower Average WSEs - +24Higher-S0Higher insurance costs primarily as a result of higher rates, partially
offset by lower health plan enrollment and lower volume due to lower Average WSEs and-higher-medieal-serviees
utthization.- +77Higher— 17Higher OE primarily as a result of inereased-G-higher compensation, S & M A-drivenby-the
Zenefits-and Clarus R-D-aequisttions-technology spend to improve client experience, enhance service offerings, and
improve processes, including a full year of supporting the HRIS product . together with higher eempensattorrsales and
marketlng expenses (o support sales efforts Th1s was partially offset by lower spend in facilities itiatives-to-improve-ehient

v erig g oftware-and transaction teehnologyplatforms;-and integration costs
-rmpreve—etrﬁnferﬂa-l—preeesses— $ 499%92—2—4692023 Operating Income Professional Service Revenues Our PEO and HRIS
clients are primarily billed on a fee per WSE or HRIS User per month per transaction. Our vertical approach provides us the
flexibility to offer our PEO clients in different industries with varied services at different prices, which we believe potentially
reduces the value of solely using Average WSE and Total WSE counts as indicators of future potential revenue performance.
TRINET43 2023 FORM 10- K PSR from PEO Services customers and HRIS cloud services clients was as follows: (in
millions) 20232022PEO Services $ 704 $ 711 HRIS Cloud Services 52 43 Total $ 756 $ 754 We also analyze changes in PSR
with the following measures: * Rate- the weighted average percentage change in fees for each vertical, * Mix- the change in
composition of Average WSEs across our verticals ;-and the composition of products and services our clients receive, including
TriNet Clarus R D, and Fhegrowthin-PSR was driven-by-flat for the additien-efyear as rate increases from our new-PEO
serv1ces, as well as the hlgher HRIS eleud—sewrees—re\ enue from eut-aeguisittorrof Zenefits-and-a growth-full year of revenue
h r-2023 compared to a ten month period in 2022, were offset by

lower hﬂrgheeaver&ge—WSEs , prlmarlly aﬂd—a—faverable-eh&nge—m our Technology vertical mix;-due to chent attrltlon and
lower chent h1r1ng wrt-h—w1th1n mest—ef—our 1nstalled base

fl"—RI-N-E—T43%92—2—F9RPv‘I—1-9-—IGlnsuIance Service Re\ enues ISR consists of insurance services- related b1111ngs and
administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from WSE payroll for health benefits and workers' compensation
insurance provided by third- party insurance carriers. We use the following measures to analyze changes in ISR: * Rate- the
weighted average percentage change in fees associated with each of our insurance service offerings, * Mix- all other changes
including the composition of our enrolled WSEs within our insurance service offerings (health plan enrollment), and ¢ Credit-
the weighted average amounts recognized for our Reeevery-2022 Credits. TRINET44 2023 FORM 10- K The grewth-increase
in ISR for the year was primarily driven by higherrate increases. In addition, as part of our 2022 Credit program, we
recognized a $ 75 million reduction in revenue in 2022, which did not recur in 2023. This was partlally offset by lower
health plan enrollment and lower volume due to lower Av erage WSEs ane-rate-inereases-. 5
mithon-more-ininsurance-Insurance Costs servieetev d ated-to-o ere
202+-Insurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage pr0v1ded by insurance carriers, payments for claims costs and
expenses for other risk management and administrative services, reimbursement of claims payments made by insurance
carriers or third- party administrators below a predefined deductible limit, and changes in accrued costs related to contractual
obligations with our workers' compensation and health benefit carriers. TRINET442622FORM1T06-—K-We use the following
measures to analyze changes in insurance costs: ® Rate- the weighted average percentage change in cost trend associated with
each of our insurance service offerings, and * Mix- all other changes including the composition of our enrolled WSEs within our
insurance service offerings (health plan enrollment). The increase in eat-insurance costs is-for the year was primarily driven
by higher rates paid for services, partially offset by lower health plan enrollment and lower volume frem-due to lower
Average WSEs. The rate increases were primarily driven by higher costs associated with average-W-SEs-in2622-1n
additioneur-medical services ut111zat10n in partlcular tnereased—as—eﬂfeﬁees-eeﬁt-mtted-te—reﬁlrn—te-outpdtlent serv1ces
ﬂ&ed-tea-l—deﬂta-l—and pharmacy V1S




19-pandemie-began—TRINET4520622---- TRINET4S 2023 FORM 10- K Operating Expenses OE includes eestofproviding
serviees—COPS ¥, sales-and-marketingS & M ¥, general-and-administrativeG & A ¥, systems-development-and
programming-(-SD & P ¥, and depreetation-and-amortizationexpenses{D & A ¥ We had approximately 3, 600 colleagues as of
December 31, %92—2—2023 prlmdnly across the U. S. but dlSO in India and C amddfeﬂemg—eﬂf—%@%%aeqtﬂsﬁieﬁ—ef—Zeﬂeﬁfs—}ﬁ

Compensatlon costs f01 our colledoues mclude payroll payroll taxes, SB( bonuses commissions and other pdyIOH and
benefits- related costs. Compensation- related expense represented 65 % and 63 % and-62-%-of our OE in 2023 and 2022 and
202+, respectively. Transaction and integration costs associated with our 2022 aeguisttion-acquisitions of Zenefits and Clarus R
D are mcluded inG &A. These costs include advi 1501y, legdl employee retentlon costs tied to ongomg employment Referto

, We experlenced OE gowth of %4—2 % comp"lred to %92—1—2022 The ratlo of OE to totdl revenues was 19 % aﬂd—l—é%m 2023
and 2022 and2024;respeetively—. % represents portion of compensation related expense included in operating expenses We
analyze and present our OE based upon the business functions COPS, S & M, G & A and SD & P and D & A. The charts below
provide a view of the expenses of the business functions. Dollars are presented in millions and percentages represent year- over-
year change. FRINEF462022—--- TRINET46 2023 FORM 10- K (in millions) $ 7462024-9232022 Operating Expense 39CORS
4COPS increased, driven primarily by additional-hiring-higher compensation expense to support sere-WSEs and incremental
costs related to our HRIS €leud-cloud Serviees-services . 405-43S & M increased, driven primarily by tnereased-higher
compensation from the growth in our sales force, together with higher advertising, conference and events expenses ,
technology spend straveland entertainment-and-patrtially-offsetbroker commissions.- 30G & A decreased, driven primarily
by areduetion-lower transaction and integration expenses as well as lower costs in brekerreferral-eommisstons-consulting
and facilities expenses.- 8SD & P decreased, driven primarily by lower net compensation and consulting expenses due to
higher capitalization of internally developed software . 65G-8D & A increased, due drivenprimarity-by-the-$-42-mitlion-of
&&ﬂsaeﬂeﬁ—aﬂd-rﬂtegf&ﬁefreesfs—fe}afed-to the amortlzatlon of 1ntang1ble assets recognlzed for the Zenefits and Clarus R D

aequistttons-. $ 92—3%92—2—9402023 Opemtmg Expenses The prlmary spend type dl‘l\ ers to the chan;aes in our OE are presented
below: FRINEF472622----- TRINET47 2023 FORM 10- K Other Income (Expense) Other income (expense) consists primarily
of interest and-dtvidend-income from cash and mvestments —and interest expense ﬁﬁdeieon ourpfevteﬁs—efed-rt—faerl-ttry—aﬁd
outstanding debt. The growth in interest on A6 0 Ne 3 i
Interest-income inereased-for the year was primar 11y drlven by fe}ated-te—t-he—hlgher mtel est earned fafes—feeewed-on cash
irvestments-and-interest-earning-deposits as-due to higher market interest rates nereased-everin 2023. In 2022 —, nterest
interest cxpense, bank fees and other inereased-primartty-due-to-for the year included $ 17M of realized 1nvestments losses on
the-sales effower—yieldingtnvestments-and the-impairmentimpairments related to AFS securities in the third quarter of
2022, which did not reoccur in the current year. In 2023, interest expense, bank fees and other investments-included
additional interest on our newly issued 2031 Notes and our $ 200 million drawdown of our 2021 Revolver in order to
partially fund share repurchases in the third quarter of 2023. In addition, we incurred additional interest expense earlier
in 2023 related to our temporary draw- down under our 2021 Revolver following the Silicon Valley Bank failure .
Provision for Income Taxes Our effective tax rate (ETR) was 25 % and 26 % and-23-%-for 2023 and 2022 and-2624+,
respectively. The ehange-decrease in EFR-rates was primarily ﬁttﬂ-bufa-b-}e—due toan inereases— increase m ﬁeﬁdeéueﬁb-}e
expenses-excludable income for state tax purposes and and-- an eharg 6 ;

deefe&se—lncrease in tax benehts related to stock- based compensatlon —"Phe—EGH—ESPR—was—aBeﬁmpaefed—bya—eﬁe—&me—beﬂeﬁ{

quuldlty is a measure of our ability to access suﬁluent cash ﬂows to meet the short- term and long- term cash requnements of
our business operations. Our principal source of liquidity for operations is derived from cash provided by operating activities.
We rely on cash provided by operating activities to meet our short- term liquidity requirements, which primarily relate to the
payment of corporate payroll and other operating costs, and capital expenditures. Our cash flow related to WSE payroll and
benefits is generally matched by advance collection from our PEO clients. To minimize the credit risk associated with remitting
the payroll dnd assoudted taxes and benefits costs, we requne PEO clients to prefund the pdyIOH and related payroll taxes and

nmitments-through stin SEEhigv s-frofreorpora es lncludedmour
balance sheets are assets and 1lab111t1es resultmo from tmnsactlons dnectly or indirectly dssomated Wlth WSEs, including payroll
and related taxes and withholdings, our sponsored workers' compensation and health insurance programs, and other benefit
programs. Although we are not subject to regulatory restrictions that require us to do so, we distinguish and manage our
corporate assets and liabilities separately from those current assets and liabilities held by us to satisfy our employer obligations
associated with our WSEs as follows: FRINEF482022----- TRINET48 2023 FORM 10- K December 31, 26222624-20232022
(in millions) Corporate WSETotalCorporateWSETotalCurrent assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 287 $ —$287$354% —§
354 Investments65 $-612-$— 65 76 $-612dnvestments76~— 76 35—135-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investments22 1,247 1,269 22 1, 241 1, 263 $945+76-+195-Other current assets78-assets73 884 957 78 555 633 94466497
Total current assets $ 447 $2,131 $ 2,578 $ 530 $ 1, 796 § 2, 326 $-857-$+Total current liabilities332 2 , 582-131 $ 2, 439
Fotalcurrenttabilites192-463 $ 192 $ 1, 796 § 1, 988 $457-$+-582-$+-739-Working capital $ 115 $ — $ 115$338%—3$



338 $700-$—5$-700-As of December 31, 2022-2023 , we did not have any material off- balance sheet arrangements that are
reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures
or capital resources. Working capital for WSEs related activities We designate funds to ensure that we have adequate current
assets to satisfy our current obligations associated with WSEs. We manage our WSE payroll and benefits obligations through
collections of payments from our clients which generally occur two to three days in advance of client payroll dates. We regularly
review our short- term obligations associated with our WSEs (such as payroll and related taxes, insurance premium and claim
payments) and designate funds required to fulfill these short- term obligations, which we refer to as PFC. PFC is included in
current assets as restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. We manage our sponsored benefit and workers' compensation
insurance obligations by maintaining collateral funds in restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. These collateral
amounts are generally determined at the beginning of each plan year and we may be required by our insurance carriers to adjust
our collateral balances when facts and circumstances change. We regularly review our collateral balances with our insurance
carriers and anticipate funding further collateral in the future based upon our capital requirements. We classify our restricted
cash, cash equivalents and investments as current and noncurrent assets to match against the anticipated timing of payments to
carriers. The following table summarizes our workers' compensation obligations, gross of collateral, as of December 31, 2622
2023 , Payments Due by Period (in millions) TotalLess than 1 yearl- 3 years3- 5 yearsMore than 5 yearsWorkers' compensation
obligations (1) $ 175 489-$56-$57$25-% 51 $ 54 $ 23 $ 47 (1) Represents estimated payments that are expected to be made to
carriers for various workers' compensation programs under the contractual obligations. These obligations include the costs of
reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with the workers' compensation insurance
policy. Working capital for corporate purposes Corporate working capital as of December 31, 2622-2023 decreased $ 362-223
million from December 31, 2022, primarily due to the $ 109 million increase in current liabilities from our borrowings
under our 2021 Revolver and the sprimarity-drivenrby-a-5 25867 million decrease in corporate unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents . This decrease in corporate unrestricted cash and cash equivalents was largely driven by the net impacts of
our capital transactions the third quarter of 2023, when we purchased approximately $ 1 billion of our stock partially
financed by $ 600 million of debt issuances. ThlS was partlally offset by positive cash eutflews—-- flows from operations
over the year torep . FRINEF492022FORMH0-—K—We use our available
cash and cash equwalents to iatl%fy our operatlonal and regulatory requirements and to fund capital expenditures. We believe
that we can meet our present and reasonably foreseeable operating cash needs and future commitments through existing liquid
assets, continuing cash flows from corporate operating activities and the potential issuance of debt or equity securities. We hold
both corporate cash and cash associated with WSEs across multiple financial institutions to reduce concentrations of
counterparty risk. We believe our existing corporate TRINET49 2023 FORM 10- K cash and cash equivalents and positive
working capital will be sufficient to meet our working capital expenditure needs for at least the next twelve months. The
following table summarizes our purchase obligations as of December 31, 2022-2023 , Payments Due by Period (in millions)
TotalLess than 1 yearl- 3 years3- 5 yearsMore than 5 yearsPurchase obligations (1) $ 472-120 $ 13+-79 $ 3740 $ 41 $ — (1)
Our purchase obligations primarily consist of software licenses, consulting and maintenance agreements, and future sales and
marketing events pertaining-te-vartous-agreements- The following table presents our cash flow activities for the stated periods:
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2622262+Cerporate W-SETotalCorporate W-SETotalNet—---
20232022CorporateWSETotalCorporateWSETotalNet cash provided by (used in): Operating activitics $ 539 $ 6 $ 545 $
497 $ 65 $ 562 $4H5-$HIH-$2H8-Investing activities (65) (5) (70) (214) (12) (226) HHH-H6y-(35)-Financing activities
(546) — (546) (536) — (536) ¥2—2-Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ——— (1) — (1)
—Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted $ (72) $18$(71) $ (254) $53 §(201) $308$
243)-$95-Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted: Beginning

+-643End-of period $ 406 $ 1, 131 $1,537$ 6605 1,078 $ 1, 738 End of period $ 334 $ 1, 132 $1, 466 $40681, 131 $1,
537 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents: Unrestricted $ (67) $ — $ (67) $ (258) § — §$ (258) $3H-$—$3H
Restrieted4- Restricted (5) 1 (4) 4 53 57 32433246)-Operating Activities Components of net cash provided by {used-)y
operating activities are as follows: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 26222624Net-20232022Net cash provided by
operating activitics $ 545 § 562 $248-Net cash provided by operating activities- Corporate $ 539 § 497 $4+5-Net cash provided
by fased+m)-operating activities- WSE $ 6 $ 65 $-399-The year- over- year change in net cash provided by fased4m)-operating
activities for WSE purposes was primarily driven by timing of client payments, payments of payroll and payroll taxes,
settlement of the-Reeevery-our previously announced 2022 Credits , and insurance claim activities. We expect the changes in
restricted cash and cash equivalents to correspond to WSE cash provided by ( or used in) operations as we manage our
obligations associated with WSEs through restricted cash. Our corporate operating cash flows in 2822-2023 increased when
compared to 20242022 due to the increase in our net income and the timing of our payments of corporate obligations.
FRINETFS562622—--- TRINETS0 2023 FORM 10- K Investing Activities Cash used in investing activities for the periods
presented below primarily consisted of purchases of investments, capital expenditures and acquisition of sabstdiaries-business ,
partially offset by proceeds from the sale and maturity of investments. Year Ended December 31, (in millions)

2022202 Hirvestments—--- 20232022Investments : Purchases of investments $ (281) $ (410) $&444-Proceeds from sale and
maturity of irvestments469-- investments286 349-469 Acquisition of subsidiaries — (229) —Cash provided by (used in)
investments $ 5 $ (170 3$-95-) Capital expenditures: Software and hardware $ (4770 ) $ (3347 ) Office furniture, equipment
and leasehold improvements (9-5) (79 ) Cash used in capital expenditures $ (56-75 ) $ (48-56 ) Cash used in investing
activities $ (226-70 ) $ (435226 ) We invest a portion of available cash in investment- grade securities with effective maturities
less than five years that are classified on our balance sheets as investments. We consider industry and issuer concentrations
in our investment policy. We also invest funds held as collateral to satisfy our long- term obligation towards workers'
compensation liabilities. These investments are classified on our balance sheets as restricted cash, cash equivalents and




investments. We review the amount and the anticipated holding period of these investments regularly in conjunction with our
estimated long- term workers' compensation liabilities and anticipated claims payment trend. At December 31, 2622-2023 , our
investments had a weighted average duration of less than two years and an average S & P credit rating of AA . As of December
31,2022-2023 , we held approximately § 2-1 . -9 billion in restricted and unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, of
which § 354-287 million was unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $ 227208 million was unrestricted investments. Refer
to Note 2 in Part II, ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementdl Data, m thls Form 10- K for a summary of these funds. a

December 31 2023 and 2022, we Contmued to make investments in sottvx are and hard\\ are ﬁﬁd—as we enhanced our existing
service offerings and technology platform. We expect capital investments in our software and hardware to continue in the future.
FRINEFSH2622—--- TRINETS1 2023 FORM 10- K Financing Activities Net cash previded-by-used in financing activities in
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2824-consisted of our debt and equity- related activities. Year Ended
December 31, (in millions) 2622202+Finaneing----- 20232022Financing activitiesRepurchase of common stock, net of issuance
costs $ (1, 137) $ (536) $309-Proceeds from issuance of 2629-2031 Netes-Notes400 — 500 Repaymentofborrowings—
379)-Payment of long- term financing fees and debt issuance costs (9) — Draw down from revolving credit agreement
borrowings695 — Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit agreement ( 7495 ) Payment-oftong—term-finaneing
fees-— (2)-Cash previded-byused iny-financing activities $ ( 546) $ ( 536) In February 2023, our board of directors
authorized a $ +2-300 million incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program initiated in May 2014. In
July 2023, our board of directors authorized a further $ 1 billion incremental increase to this stock repurchase program.
We use this program to return value to our stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance of stock under our
equity- based incentive plan and employee purchase plan. On August 28, 2023, we completed a public tender offer
through which we repurchased 5, 981, 308 shares of common stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total
consideration of approximately $ 640 million. On September 13, 2023, we repurchased 3, 364, 486 shares of common
stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 360 million, through a private
repurchase from our largest stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. During the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , we
repurchased 6—10 -39—8—734 2—7—9—790 shares of our common stock for approxmmtely $ 549-1, 112 million wnder-through our
existing ten 3 areh gotng-stock repurchase program in addition to 128, 551
shares acqulred to satlsfy tax w1thhold1ng obhgatlons related to SBC vesting . As of December 31, 26222023 ,
approximately $ 245-433 million remained available for repurchase under all authorizations by our board of directors. We plan
to use current cash and cash generated from ongoing operating activities to fund this stock repurchase program. In February
March 2622-2023 , eur-board-of directors-authorized-a-to ensure that we maintained liquidity during the regional bankmg
liquidity challenges, we drew down the available $ 366-495 million ineremental-inerease-to-of capacity under our engoeing
stoekrepurehase-prograntinitiated-inMay20+4-—- 2021 and-our-board-of directors-further-anthorized-a-Revolver. As concerns
about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $ 200 million irerementat-in March and $ 295 million in April. In September
0f 2023, we drew down $ 200 million under our 2021 Revolver to partially fund our share repurchases in the third
quarter of 2023 noted above. In August 2023, we issued $ 400 million aggregate principal amount of our 2031 Notes to
partially fund share repurchases in the third quarter of 2023. In August 2023, concurrently with the issuance of the 2031
Notes, we amended certain provisions of our 2021 Credit Agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as amended, to, among
other thmgs (1) increase te—t-h&t—pfegf&m—rn—Neveﬂabeﬂhe aggregate capaclty under our 2622-2021 Revolver —We—use—t-hts

g 8 g $ 500 mllllon to $ 700 mllllon and (2)
extend the maturlty date of our 2021 Revolver to August 16 2028 In February of 2024, our board of directors declared a
cash dividend of $ 0. 25 per share, for a total payment of approximately $ 13 million. As of December 31, 2023, $ 500
million and $ 400 million aggregate principal of our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes was outstanding , respectively . The
Indentare-indenture governing the-our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes each includes restrictive covenants limiting our ability to:
(1) create liens on certain assets to secure debt; (i1) grant a subsidiary guarantees— guarantee of certain debt without also
providing a guarantee of the 2029 Notes or 2031 Notes, as applicable ; and (ii1) consolidate or merge with or into, or sell or
otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets to, another person, subject, in each case, to certain customary
exceptions. Our 2021 Credit Agreement includes a § 586-700 million revetvingereditfaetityrevolver. In September of 2023,
we drew down $ 200 million of this revolver to partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases . The 2021
Credit Agreement includes negative covenants that limit our ability to incur indebtedness and liens, sell assets and make
restricted payments, including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, the 2021 Credit Agreement
also TRINETS52 2023 FORM 10- K contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of



default. The 2021 Credit Agreement also contains a financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum
total net leverage ratios. We were in compliance with all financial covenants under our 2021 Credit Agreement , 2029 Notes
and 2031 Notes at December 31, 2622-2023 . TRIENEF522622FORMI0-K-Our consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with GAAP, which require us to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates are
based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Some
of the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time of estimation. To the extent actual experience differs from the assumptions
used, our consolidated financial statements could be materially affected. For additional information about our accounting
policies, refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. The following
items require significant estimation or judgment: Insurance Costs We purchase workers' compensation and health benefits
coverage for our employees-colleagues and WSEs. As part of these insurance policies, we bear claims costs up to a defined
deductible amount and as a result, we establish accrued insurance costs including both known claims filed and estimates for
incurred but not reported claims. We use qualified actuaries to evaluate, review and recommend estimates of our accrued
workers' compensation and health insurance costs. The accrued costs studies performed by these qualified actuaries analyze
historical claims data to develop a range of our potential ultimate costs using loss development, expected loss ratio and
frequency / severity methods in accordance with Actuarial Standards of Practice. These methods are applied to classes of the
claims data organized by policy year and risk class. Key judgments and evaluations in arriving at loss estimates by class and the
accrued costs selection overall include: ¢ the selection of method used and the relative weights given to selecting the method
used for each policy year, ¢ the underlying assumptions of LDF used in these models, ¢ the effect of any changes to the insurers'
claims handling and payment processes, * evaluation of medical and indemnity cost trends, costs from changes in the risk
exposure being evaluated and any applicable changes in legal, regulatory or judicial environment. We review and evaluate these
judgments and the associated recommendations in concluding the adequacy of accrued costs. Our quarterly reserving process
involves the collaboration of our internal qualified actuaries and our actuarial and finance departments to approve a single point
best estimate. In selecting this best estimate, management considers the actuarial estimates and applies informed judgment
regarding qualitative factors that may not be fully captured in these actuarial estimates. Such factors include ;-but are not limited
to: the timing efthe-emergenee-ofelaims-, volume, severity and complexity of claims, social and judicial trends, medical
treatment trends, the extent of our historical loss data versus industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of
MCT and seasonal trends, the impact of setting prices in advance of benefit periods, and the impact of unanticipated events 1iee
the-cOVID—19-pandemte-. Where adjustments are necessary these are recorded in the period in which the adjustments are
identified. These accrued costs may vary in subsequent quarters from the amount estimated. Certain assumptions used in
estimating these accrued costs are highly judgmental. Our accrued costs, results of operations and financial condition can be
materially impacted if actual experience differs from the assumptions used in establishing these accrued costs. Accrued
Workers' Compensation Costs Under our policies, we are responsible for reimbursing the insurance carriers for workers'
compensation losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (Deductible Layer). As workers' compensation costs for a particular
period are not known for many years after the losses have occurred, these costs represent our best estimate of unpaid claim
TRINETS53 2023 FORM 10- K losses and loss adjustment expenses within the deduetible-Deductible tayer-Layer in
accordance with our insurance policies. We use actuaries to evaluate, review and recommend accrued workers' compensation
costs on a quarterly basis. The data is segmented by class and state and analyzed by policy year, and states where we have small
exposure are aggregated into a single grouping. FRENEF532022FORMI6-I-We use a combination of loss development,
expected loss ratio and frequency / severity methods which include the following inputs, assumptions and analytical techniques:
* Historical volume and severity of workers' compensation cost experience, exposure data and industry loss experience related to
TriNet’ s insurance policies, * inputs of WSEs’ job responsibilities and location, * estimates of future cost trends, * expected loss
ratios for the latest accident year or prior accident years, adjusted for the loss trend, the effect of rate changes and other
quantifiable factors, and « LDFs to project the reported losses for each accident year to an ultimate basis. Final cost settlements
may vary materially from the present estimates, particularly when payments do not occur until well into the future. In our
experience, plan years related to workers' compensation programs may take 10 years or more to be fully settled. We believe that
our estimate of accrued workers' compensation costs is most sensitive to LDFs given the long reporting and paid development
patterns for our workers' compensation loss costs. Our methods of estimating accrued workers' compensation costs rely on these
LDFs and an estimate of future cost trend. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the LDFs on our year end
estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars): Change in loss development factorChange in insurance costs- 5. 0 % ($ 32-31
)-2.5%($18)2.5% $26-19 5. 0 % $ 39-38 Accrued Health Insurance Costs We sponsor and administer a number of
employee benefit plans for our WSEs, including group health, dental, vision and life insurance as an employer plan sponsor
under section 3 (5) of the ERISA. Approximately 4-86 % of our group health insurance costs relate to risk- based plans in
which we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed- upon per- person deductible layer up to a
maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier and year.
Costs covered by these insurance plans generally develop on average within three to six months so insurance costs and accrued
health insurance costs include estimates of repertedHosses-and-claims inenrred-butnotyetpatd--IBNP - Data is grouped and
analyzed by insurance carrier. To estimate accrued health benefits costs we use a number of inputs, assumptions and analytical
techniques: « historical loss claims payment patterns and MCT medieal-eost-trend-rates related to TriNet’ s insurance policies, ®
current period claims costs and claims reporting patterns (completion factors), and ¢ plan enrollment. MCT Medieal-eost-trend
rates are a significant factor we use in developing our accrued health insurance costs. MCT Medieal-eost-trends-are developed
through an analysis of claims incurred in prior months, provider pricing and indicators of health care utilization, including
pharmacy utilization trends, and outpatient and inpatient utilization. Many factors may cause MCT medieal-eost-trend-to vary



from our estimates. Such factors include, but are not limited to: the timing of the emergence of claims, volume, TRINET54
2023 FORM 10- K severity and complexity of claims, social and judicial trends, medical treatment trends, the extent of our
historical loss data versus industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of MCT and seasonal trends, the impact
of setting prices in advance of benefit periods, new treatment options, and the impact of unanticipated events Hke-the-cOVID-
+9-pandemte-. FRINETFS542622-FORMH0-K-The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the MCT medieal-eost
trend-on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars): Change in medical cost trendChange in insurance costs
3.0%$20212.0%$141.0%$7-1.0%$ (7)-2.0 % $ (14)- 3. 0 % $ (26-21 ) Completion factors are an actuarial estimate
based on historical experience and analysis of current trends, of paid costs to carriers as a percentage of the expected ultimate
costs to carriers. Many factors may cause actual claims submissions rates from our carriers to vary from our estimated
completion factors, including carrier claims processing patterns, the mix of providers and the mix of electronic versus manual
claims submitted to our carriers. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in completion factors on our year end
estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars): Change in completion factorsChange in insurance costs- 0. 75 % $ 48-19 - 0.
50 % $42-13-0.25%%$60.25%$ (6) 0. 50 % $ (#2-13) 0. 75 % $ (4819 ) Business Combinations Under the acquisition
method of accounting we generally recognize the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed in an acquiree at their
estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. We measure goodwill as the excess of the fair value of consideration
transferred over the net of the estimated fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Refer to Note 16 in
Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. The acquisition method of accounting
requires us to exercise judgment and make significant estimates and assumptions regarding the fair values of the elements of a
business combination as of the date of acquisition, including the estimated fair values of identifiable intangible assets, deferred
tax asset valuation allowances, liabilities related to uncertain tax positions, and contingencies. This method also allows us to
refine these estimates over a one —year measurement period to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that
date. If we are required to retroactively adjust provisional amounts that we have recorded for the fair values of assets and
liabilities in connection with acquisitions, these adjustments could materially decrease net income and result in lower asset
values on our consolidated balance sheet-sheets . These significant estimates are inherently uncertain as they relate to future
economic conditions, future cash flows that we expect to generate from the acquired assets and customer behavior. If the
subsequent actual results and updated projections of the underlying business activity change compared with the assumptions and
projections used to develop these values, we could record impairment charges. In addition, we have estimated the economic
lives of certain acquired assets and these lives are used to calculate depreciation and amortization expense. If our estimates of
the economic lives change, depreciation or amortization expenses could be accelerated or slowed. TRINETSS 2023 FORM 10-
K Recent Accounting Pronouncements Refer to Note 1 in Part I, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
Form 10- K for additional information related to recent accounting pronouncements. FRENEF552622-TRINETS6 2023 FORM
10- K QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESItem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk Our exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio. Changes in U. S. interest
rates affect the interest earned on the Company' s cash, cash equivalents and the fair value of our investments. Our cash
equivalents consist primarily of money market mutual funds, which are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk. Our
investments are subject to interest rate risk because these securities generally include a fixed interest rate. As a result, the market
values of these securities are affected by changes in prevailing interest rates. We attempt to limit our exposure to interest rate
risk and credit risk by investing in instruments that meet the minimum credit quality, liquidity, diversification and other
requirements of our investment policy. Our investments consist of liquid, investment- grade securities. The risk of rate changes
on investment balances was not material at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-. As of December 31, 2023, we had drawn down
$ 200 million under our floating rate 2021 Revolver . TRINET562622-The impact of a 100 basis point increase or
decrease in market interest rates to interest expense on our 2021 Revolver as of December 31, 2023 over the next twelve
months was approximately $ 2 million. TRINET57 2023 FORM 10- K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSItem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data TRINET GROUP, INC. Consolidated Financial Statements Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No. 34) 58Censetdated-59Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive IneemeétConsotidated-Income62Consolidated Balance Sheets62Consolidated-Sheets63Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Eguity63Conseotidated-Equity64Consolidated Statements of Cash Flewsé4Notes-Flows65Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements65Note-Statements66Note |. Description of Business and Significant Accounting
Potietes65Neote-Policies66Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments74Note 3. Investments75Note 4. Property, Equipment
and Software, Net77Note 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets77Note 6. Accrued Workers' Compensation Costs78Note 7.
Leases79Note 8. Long- term Debt79Nete-Debt80Note 9. Commitments and CentingenetestoNote-Contingencies81Note 10.
Stock Based Compensation81Note 11. Stockholders' Eequity83Note-Equity84Note 12. Income Faxes85Note-Taxes86Note 13.
Earnings Per Share88Nete-Share89Note 14. 401 (k) Plan88Nete-Plan89Note 15. Related Party Fransaetions&8Note
Transactions89Note 16. Acquisition88 FRINEFS572622-TRINETS8 2023 FORM 10- K REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of TriNet Group, Inc. Opinion
on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TriNet Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the" Company") as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2622
2023 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the" financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-2624, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2622-2023 , in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have also audited, in accordance



with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company' s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2822-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 15, 2623-2024 , expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company' s internal control over financial reporting. Basis for
Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company' s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company' s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits
included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter
communicated below is a matter arising from the current- period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the
financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosures to which it relates. Accrued Workers” Compensation and Health Insurance Costs- Refer to Note 1 and Note 6 to the
financial statements Critical Audit Matter Description The Company offers its clients and worksite employees (WSEs) workers'
compensation insurance and health insurance coverage through insurance policies provided by third- party insurance carriers.
The Company is obligated to reimburse the insurance carriers for losses up to defined deductible limits, in accordance with the
insurance policies. Accrued workers’ compensation and health insurance costs are established to provide for the estimated
unpaid costs of reimbursing the carriers. TRINEF582622-TRINETS9 2023 FORM 10- K The accrued workers’ compensation
costs include estimates for reported and incurred but not reported losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and expenses
associated with preeessing-and-settling the claims. The estimates are based on the Company’ s historical and industry loss
expenence exposure data an estimate of future cost trends, expected loss rat10s and loss development factors —A:eefued
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compensation and health Insurance costs are establ1shed using actuar1al methods followed in the insurance industry and the
Company uses qualified actuaries to develop these estimates. Given the subjectivity of estimating the value of the accrued
workers’ compensation and health insurance costs, performing audit procedures to evaluate whether accrued workers’
compensation and health insurance costs recorded for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 required a high degree of auditor
judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our actuarial specialists. How the Critical Audit Matter
Was Addressed in the Audit Our audit procedures related to the accrued workers” compensation and health insurance costs
included the following, among others: « We tested the effectiveness of controls related to accrued workers’ compensation and
health insurance costs. * We tested the underlying data that served as inputs into the actuarial analyses, including testing
historical claims and enrollment data and recreating the claim loss triangles. « With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we
evaluated the methods and key assumptions used by management to estimate the accrued workers” compensation and health
insurance costs: ° Compared management’ s prior- year assumptions of expected development and ultimate loss to actuals
incurred during the current year to identify and evaluate potential bias in the determination of the accrued workers’
compensation and health insurance costs.  Developed an independent range of estimates of the accrued costs, utilizing loss
development factors and future cost trends for accrued workers’ compensation costs and claim payment patterns and medical
trend rates for accrued health insurance costs. We compared our estimated ranges to management’ s estimates. /s / DELOITTE
& TOUCHE LLP San Francisco, California February 15, 2623-2024 We have served as the Company' s auditor since 2016.
FRINETFS592022-TRINET60 2023 FORM 10- K Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting We have audited the
internal control over financial reporting of TriNet Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the" Company ) as of December 31, 2622-2023
, based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2622-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 26222023 , of the Company and our report dated February 15, 2623-2024 , expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements. The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’ s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit in




accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company” s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. FRINEF662022-TRINET61 2023 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Year Ended December 31, (in millions except per share data)
202220212020Prefesstonal—--- 202320222021Professional scrvice revenues $ 756 $ 754 $ 639 $544-Insurance service
revenues4, 166 4, 131 3, 901 3;498-Total revenues4, 922 4, 885 4, 540 4:-834-Insurance costs3, 513 3, 463 3, 339 2,.979-Cost of
providing serviees363-services307 303 264 262-Sales and marketing242-marketing285 242 202 +86-General and
administrative24+— administrative211 241 176 +52-Systems development and pregramming73-programming6S 73 50 46
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assetsé4-assets72 64 54 47-Total costs and operating expenses4, 453 4, 386 4, 085
3-666-Operating ineome499-- income469 499 455 368-Other income (expense): Interest expense, bank fees and other ( 40) (39)
(20) Eh-Interest neeme22— income72 22 6 +8-Income before provision for income taxes482-taxesS01 482 441 357-Income
taxesi27-taxes126 127 103 85-Net income $ 375 $ 355 $ 338 $292-Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes
taxes3 (4) (5) 4-Comprehensive income $ 378 § 351 § 333 $276-Net income per share: Basic $ 6. 61 $ 5. 66 $ 5. 13 Diluted $ 4
6 .56 93 Diuted-$ 5. 61 $ 5. 07 $3-99-Weighted average shares: Baste63-Basic57 63 66 Diluted57 64 67 Piuted64-67-68-Sce
accompanying notes. FRINEF642622----- TRINET62 2023 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS December
31, December 31, (in millions, except share and per share data) 20222024ASSEFSCurrent—--- 20232022ASSETSCurrent
assets: Cash and cash equivalents § 287 $ 354 $-612Investments76— Investments65 135-76 Restricted cash, cash equivalents
and investments1, 269 1, 263 5495-Accounts receivable, aett9-net18 45-19 Unbilled revenue, net375324-netd47 375 Prepaid
expenses, retH— net67 6771 Other payroll assetst22-- assets381 56-122 Other current assets46-assetsd4 4+-46 Total current
assets2, 578 2, 326 2,439-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, reftearrentt-53-noncurrent158 166-153
Investments, nenreurrenttStnoncurrentl143 +68-151 Property and equipment, net24-netl7 24 Operating lease right- of- use
asset3H42-asset24 31 Goodwill 462 294-462 Software and other intangible assets, nrett63-6+net172 163 Other assets+33
assets139 H5-133 Total assets $ 3, 443-693 $ 3, 309-443 Liabilitiecs and stockholders' equityCurrent liabilities: Accounts
payable and other current liabilities $ 87 $ 98 $-86-Revolving credit agreement borrowings109 — Client deposits and other
client tabilitiesto6—- liabilities65 97106 Accrued wages437-369-wages51S 437 Accrued health insurance costs, fett74-netl75
174 Accrued workers' compensation costs, #etS4-net50 55-54 Payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings1, 438 1, 087
929-Operating lease habilitiestS-liabilities14 +H-15 Insurance premiums and other payablest7payables10 +8-17 Total current
HabilitiestHliabilities2 , 463 1 , 988 1,739-1.ong- term debt, reneurrent496-—-- noncurrent984 495-496 Accrued workers'
compensation costs, noncurrent, arett28-net120 4+35-128 Deferred taxesS-taxes13 H-8 Operating lease liabilities, nenenrrentdt
noncurrent30 41 Other non —current habilittes7HliabilitiesS 7 Total habilities2-liabilities3 , 615 2 , 668 2,428-Commitments
and contingencies (see Note 9) Stockholders' equity: Preferred stock — — ($ 0. 000025 par value per share; 20, 000, 000 shares
authorized; no shares issued or outstanding at December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-262+) Common stock and additional paid- in
eapital899-- capital976 868-899 ($ 0. 000025 par value per share; 750, 000, 000 shares authorized; 50, 664, 471 and 60, 555,
661 and-65:-968;224-shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively) Retained earnings
(Accumulated deficit) ( 896) ( 119) #4-Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5-2) (45 ) Total stockholders' egquity?+>
equity78 884775 Total liabilities & stockholders' equity $ 3, 443-693 § 3, 309-FRINETF622022-443 TRINET63 2023 FORM
10- K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY Year Ended December 31, (in millions)
202220212020Fetal----- 202320222021 Total Stockholders' Equity, beginning balance $ 775 $ 881 $ 607 $4#5-Common Stock
and Additional Paid- In Capital: Beginning balanee868-balance899 808 747 6€94-Issuance of common stock from exercise of
stock eptienstoptions4 | —1 Issuance of common stock for employee stock purchase plant6-planll 10 9-10 Issuance of
common stock for the acquisition of Zenefttst7-- Zenefits — 17 — Repurchase of common steekd— stock — 1 — Stock based
compensation expense62 62 50 44-Ending batanee899-- balance976 899 308 #47FRetained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit):
Beginning balanee74--- balance (119) 74 (144) 49)>-Net ineeme355- income375 355 338 Repurchase 272-Cumulative-effeet
of common stock aeeounting-ehange———1 , 122 ) Repurehase-ofeommon-stoek(524) (94 3H3#8-) Awards effectively
repurchased for required employee withholding taxes ( 30) (24) (26) €48)-Ending balance (896) (119) 74 &44-Accumulated
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income: Beginning balance ( §) (1) 4 —Other comprehensive (loss) ireeme-income3 (4) (5) 4
Ending balance (2) (5) (1) 4-Total Stockholders' Equity, ending balance $ 78 $ 775 $ 881 TRINET64 2023 $-607
FRINEF632622-FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, (in millions)



2622262126260perating—--- 2023202220210perating activitiesNet income $ 375 § 355 § 338 272-Adjustments to reconcile
net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and amertizattent64—-- amortization $2-67-of intangible
assets72 64 54 Amortization of deferred costs40 38 31 Amortization of ROU asset, lease modification, impairment, and
abandonment9 25 12 Stock based eempensation62-compensationS9 62 50 43-Amortizationrof ROU-assettease-modifieation;

impairmentand-abandeonment25+2+5-Accretion of discount rate on lease liabilities2 2 2 Provision for doubtful aeeeunts2

accounts3 2 — —Amertizationrof(premium)-diseount-oninvestmentst3—+Deferred income taxes-taxesS (22) (9) (42)>-Losses
from disposition of assetsé-assets1 —6 — Losses and impairment on investmentst8— investments1 —18 — Changes in

operating assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable, net (2) — 3 €9-Unbilled revenue, net (72) (51) (78) 39-Prepaid expenses,
net-netd (2) (5) @2-Other payroll assets (259) ( 72) 10 €H-Accounts payable and other current liabilities ( 8) ( 13) 33 +3-Client
deposits and other client Htabtlities9-- liabilities (40) 9 (37) 8FAccrued wagesé5-wages77 65 60 (823-Accrued health insurance
costs, set-netl — 2 5-Accrued workers' compensation costs, net (12) (8) (7) £99-Payroll taxes payable and other payroll
vrithholdingst58--- withholdings351 158 (166) +94-Operating lease liabilities (17) (43-17 ) (49-13 ) Other assets (38) (55) (60)
2B-Other liabilities (7) (2) (2) H-Net cash provided by operating aetivities562-activities545 562 218 546-Investing
activitiesPurchases of marketable securities (276) (410) (444) 32H-Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable
seeurities469- securities286 469 349 224-Acquisitions of property and equipment and projects in process (75) (56) (40) 36y
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — (229) — Other Investments ( +2-5 ) — — Net cash used in investing
activities (70) (226) (135) &F5H-Financing activitiesRepurchase of common stock (1, 122) (523) (94) Proceeds from issuance
of common stock 15 11 11 Payment of long- term financing costs and debt issuance costs (+78-9) — (9 ) Proceeds from
issuance of eommen-stoek—H3++6-2031 Notes400 — — Proceeds from issuance of 2029 Notes — — 500 Repayment of

borrowings — — (370) Proceeds from revolving credit agreement borrowings 695 — — Repayment of borrowings under
revolving credit agreement (495) —_— Award% eﬁectlvely repurcha@ed for requlred employee Wlthholdmg taxes ( 30) ( 24)
(26 ----- 6 y ofbo e A

-faeﬂ-rt-y—@%*) Net ca%h prov1ded by (u@ed 1n) hnancmg activities ( 546) ( 536) 12 (%989—Eﬁect ot exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents — (1) Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted ( 71) (
201) 95 48FCash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted: Beginning of periodl, 537 1, 738 1, 643 ,456-End of period
$1,466 $1,537 $ 1, 738 $1;-643-Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informationInterest paid $ 25 $ 18 $ 12 +6-Income
taxes paid, rett28-net114 128 129 +23-Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activitiesPayable for
purchase of property and equipment $ 4 $ 6 $ 3 2-Acquisitions of subsidiaries paid in stock § —$ 17 $ — TRINET65 2023 —
See-aceompanyingnotes—RINET642022-FORM 10- K NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TriNet Group, Inc. (TriNet, or the
Company, we, our and us) provides comprehensive HCM solutions for small and medium- size businesses under both a PEQ
eo—employment-model and an adminitstrative- HRIS services emty-model. These HCM solutions include multi- state payroll
processing and tax administration, employee benefits programs, including health insurance and retirement plans, workers'
compensation insurance and claims management, employment and benefit law compliance, and other HR- related services.
Through our PEO service model the-ee—employmentrelattonship-, we are the employer of record for certain employment-
related administrative and regulatory purposes for the-werksite-emptoyees-W SEs ¥, including: « compensation through wages
and salaries, ¢ certain employer payroll- related tax payments, ¢ employee payroll- related tax withholdings and payments, ¢
employee benefit programs, including health and life insurance, and ethers;and- workers' compensation coverage. Our PEOQ
clients are responsible for the day- to- day job responsibilities of the WSEs . Through our HRIS services model, we provide
cloud- based HCM services to SMBs that allows them to manage hiring, onboarding, employee information, payroll
processing, payroll tax administration, health insurance, and other benefits, from a single cloud- based software
platform. We are not the co- employer or employer of record for such employees . We operate in one reportable segment.
All of our %erce revenues are generated from external clients. Less than 1 % ot our revenue is generated outqlde ot the U. S.

statements are prepared in conformlty W1th generally accepted accounting prlnc1p1e§ in the United State% of America (GAAP).
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior year amounts within operating
activities of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation.

Speetfteatty-In particular , the Company-hasteelassified-developed-software-amortization of deferred costs, consisting of
costs to obtain contracts with customers, cloud computing implementation anet-earryingamountof-$-65-mithon-and $55

mithten-debt issuance costs, were prevmusly included in depreclatlon and amortization and are now separately class1ﬁed

as Amortization of Deferred Costs B g
fremProperty-and-equipmentnet. Use of E@tlmate@ The prepalatlon ot t1nanc1a1 itatements in contormlty W1th GAAP requlres
us to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and related disclosures. These estimates are based on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable from the facts available to us. Some of
the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time of estimation. To the extent actual experience differs from the assumptions
used, our consolidated financial statements could be materially affected. FRINEF652022FORMI0-I—Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognized when the promised services are transferred to our clients, in an amount that reflects the consideration
that we expect to receive in exchange for services. We generate all of our revenue from contracts with clients. We disaggregate




revenues into professional services revenues and insurance services revenues as reported on the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. In the majority of our contracts, both the client and the Company may terminate the
contract without penalty by providing a 30- day notice. TRINET66 2023 FORM 10- K Performance Obligations At contract
inception, we assess the services promised in our contracts with clients and identify a performance obligation for each distinct
promise to transfer to the client a service or bundle of services. We determined that the following distinct services represent
separate performance obligations: ¢ Payroll and payroll tax processing, « Health benefits services, * Workers’ compensation
services, and ¢ A right to receive future services at a discount through a Recovery Credit. Payroll and payroll tax processing
performance obligations include services to process payroll and payroll tax- related transactions on behalf of our PEO and HRIS
clients. Revenues associated with this performance obligation are reported as professional service revenues and recognized
using an output method in which the promised services are transferred when a client' s payroll is processed by us and WSEs and
users are paid. Professional service revenues are stated net of the gross payroll and payroll tax amounts funded by our clients.
Although we assume the responsibilities to process and remit the payroll and payroll related obligations, we do not assume
employment- related responsibilities such as determining the amount of the payroll and related payroll obligations. As a result,
we are the agent in this arrangement for revenue recognition purposes Reeetvab-les—feﬁe*peeted—payfel—l—taﬁeftmds—afe
elassifted-in-otherpayrottassets-. Health benefits and workers' compensatlon services include performance obligations to
provide TriNet- sponsored health benefits and workers' compensation insurance coverage through insurance policies provided
by third- party insurance carriers and settle high-deductible amounts on those policies. Revenues associated with these
performance obligations are reported as insurance services revenues and are recognized using the output method over the period
of time that the client and WSEs are covered under TriNet- sponsored insurance policies. We control the selection of health
benefits and workers' compensation coverage made available. As a result, we are the principal in this arrangement for revenue
recognition purposes and insurance services revenues are reported gross. In AprH-2620-previous years , we created our
Recovery €redit-Credits to assist in the economic recovery of our existing SMB-PEO clients and enhance our ability to retain
these chentq Hﬂéeﬁ-his—These credlts were based one- on the performance of our insurance costs and were recorded -

baw}a-nee—sheet—l:he—change in balance for the 11ab111ty for credlts prekusly accrued gweﬂ—baelﬁe-el-te&ts—m—t-he—ferm—e#ﬂae—pasf
aﬁd—eﬂﬁeﬂt—Reeeveﬁ—Gfed-rts—ls the followmg T—RI—N-E—"Féé%@QQ—F@RNHG——IG(m mllhon%) %92—2—292—1—B~a-}aﬂee-20232022Balance
tod o at-errd-of period $ 75 $ 48 ()
Accruals — 75 (-) Dlstrlbutlons to cllents (68) (48) Balance at end of perlod $ 7 $ 75 We generally charge new clients a
nominal upfront non- refundable fee to recover our costs to set them up on our TriNet platform for payroll processing and other
administrative services, such as benefit enrollments. These fees are accounted for as part of our transaction price and are
allocated among the performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. Client Deposits and Other Client
Liabilities Client deposits and other client liabilities represents our contractual commitments and payables to clients, including
indemnity guarantee payments received from clients, amounts prefunded by clients for their payroll and related taxes and other
withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment, as well as service fee consideration received for
unsatisfied performance obligations. Variable Consideration and Pricing Allocation n-additterrFrom time to time evrReeevery
Eredits-noted-abeve-, we may offer credits to our clients considered to be variable consideration. Incentive credits related to
contract renewals are recorded as a reduction to revenue as part of the transaction price at contract inception and are allocated
among the performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. TRINET67 2023 FORM 10- K We
allocate the total transaction price to each performance obligation based on the estimated relative standalone selling prices of the
promised services underlying each performance obligation. The transaction price for the payroll and payroll tax processing
performance obligations is determined upon establishment of the contract that contains the final terms of the arrangement,
including the description and price of each service purchased. The estimated service fee is determined based on observable
inputs and irelude-includes the following key assumptions: target profit margin, pricing strategies including the mix of services
purchased and competitive factors, and client and industry specifics. The fees for access to health benefits and workers'
compensation insurance performance obligations is determined during the new client on- boarding and enrollment processes
based on the types of benefits coverage the WSEs have elected and the applicable risk profile of the client. We estimate our
service fees based on actuarial forecasts of our expected insurance premiums and loss sensitive premium costs and amounts to
cover our costs to administer these programs. We require our clients to prefund payroll and related taxes and other withholding
liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. Under the provision of our contracts with clients, we generally will
process the payment of a client’ s payroll only when the client successfully funds the amount required. As a result, there is no
financing arrangement for the contracts. However, certain contracts to provide payroll and payroll tax processing services permit
the client to pay certain payroll tax components ratably over periods of up to 12 months rather than as payroll tax is otherwise
determined and due, which may be considered a significant financing arrangement under FASB ASC Topic 606 Revenue from




Contracts with Customers . However, as the period between our performing the service under the contract and when the client
pays for the service is less than one year, we have elected, as a practical expedient, not to adjust the transaction price. Unbilled
Revenue For our PEO clients, we recognize WSE payroll and payroll tax liabilities in the period in which the WSEs perform
work. When clients' pay periods cross reporting periods, we accrue the portion of the unpaid WSE payroll where we assume,
under state regulations, the obligation for the payment of wages and the corresponding payroll tax liabilities associated with the
work performed prior to period- end. These estimated payroll and payroll tax liabilities are recorded in accrued wages. The
associated receivables, including estimated revenues, offset by advance collections from clients and an allowance for credit
losses, are recorded as unbilled revenue. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, advance collections included in unbilled
revenue were $ 8 million and $ 9 million and-$-8-mibhien-, respectively. FRINEF672022FORMH0-—K—-Contract Costs We
recognize as deferred commission expense the incremental cost to obtain a contract with a client for certain components under
our commission plans for sales representatives and channel partners that are directly related to new clients onboarded as we
expect to recover these costs through future service fees. Such assets are amortized over the estimated average client tenure.
These commissions are earned on the basis of the revenue generated from payroll and payroll tax processing performance
obligations. When the commission on a renewal contract is not commensurate with the commission on the initial contract, any
incremental commission will be capitalized and amortized over the estimated average client tenure. If the commission for both
the initial contract and renewal contracts are commensurate, such commissions are expensed in the contract period. The below
table summarizes the amounts capitalized and amortized during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2626

: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 262220212026Beferred—--- 202320222021Deferred commission expense: Capitalized
$33 8§32 $ 28 $29-Amertized3+-Amortized35 31 25 49-Certain commission plans pay a commission on estimated professional
service revenues over the first 12 months of the contract with clients. The portion of commission paid in excess of the actual
commission earned in that period is recorded as prepaid commission. When the prepaid commission is considered earned, it is
classified as a deferred commission expense and subject to amortization. We de-did not have material contract liabilities as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-. TRINET68 26212023 ~FORM 10- K Our insurance plans are provided by third- party
insurance carriers under risk- based or guaranteed- cost insurance policies. Under risk- based policies, we agree to reimburse our
carriers for any claims paid within an agreed- upon per- person deductible layer up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per
policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier and year. Under guaranteed- cost policies, our carriers
establish the premiums and we are not responsible for any deductible. Insurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage
provided by insurance carriers, payments-expenses for etaim-claims costs and other risk management and administrative
services, reimbursement of claims payments made by insurance carriers or third- party administrators below a predefined
deductible limit, and changes in accrued costs related to contractual obligations with our workers' compensation and health
benefit carriers. At policy inception, annual workers' compensation premiums are estimated by the insurance carriers based on
projected wages over the duration of the policy period and the risk categories of the WSEs. We initially pay premiums based on
these estimates. As actual wages are realized, premium expense recorded may differ from estimated premium expense, creating
an asset or liability throughout the policy year. Such asset or liability is reported on our consolidated balance sheets as prepaid
expenses or insurance premiums and other payables, respectively. We have secured workers' compensation insurance policies
with insurance carriers to administer and pay claims for our clients and WSEs. We are responsible for reimbursing the insurance
carriers for losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). Insurance carriers are responsible for administering
and paying claims. We are responsible for reimbursing each carrier up to a deductible limit per occurrence. Accrued workers'
compensation costs represent our liability to reimburse insurance carriers for our share of their losses and loss adjustment
expenses. These accrued costs are established to provide for the estimated ultimate costs of paying claims within the deductible
layer in accordance with workers' compensation insurance policies. These accrued costs include estimates for reported and
incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and expenses associated with preeessing-ane-settling
the claims. In establishing these accrued costs, we use an external actuary to provide an estimate of undiscounted future cash
payments that would be made to settle the claims based upon: FRENEF682622FORMI0-IK— historical loss experience,
exposure data, and industry loss experience related to TriNet’ s insurance policies, ¢ inputs including WSE job responsibilities
and location, * historical volume and severity of workers' compensation claims, ¢ an estimate of future cost trends, ¢ loss
development factors to project the reported losses for each accident year to an ultimate basis. We assess the accrued workers'
compensation costs on a quarterly basis. For each reporting period, changes in the actuarial methods and assumptions resulting
from changes in actual claims experience and other trends are incorporated into the accrued workers' compensation costs.
Adjustments to previously established accrued costs estimates are reflected in the results of operations for the period in which
the adjustment is identified. Such adjustments could be significant, reflecting any variety of new adverse or favorable trends.
Accordingly, final claim settlements may vary materially from the present estimates, particularly when those payments may not
occur until well into the future. In our experience, plan years related to workers' compensation programs may take ten years or
more to be settled. We do not discount accrued workers' compensation costs. Costs expected to be paid within one year are
recorded as accrued workers' compensation costs. Costs expected to be paid beyond one year are included in accrued workers'
compensation costs, less current portion. TRINET69 2023 FORM 10- K We have collateral agreements with various insurance
carriers where either we retain custody of funds in trust accounts which we record as restricted cash and cash equivalents, or
remit funds to carriers. Collateral whether held by us, or the carriers, is used to settle our insurance and claim deductible
obligations to them. Collateral requirements are established at the policy year and are re- assessed by each carrier annually.
Based on the results of each assessment, additional collateral may be required for or paid to the carrier or collateral funds may
be released or returned to the Company. In instances where we pay collateral to carriers and the agreement permits net
settlement of obligations against collateral held, we record our accrued costs net of that collateral (Carrier Collateral Offset). We
offset Carrier Collateral Offset against our obligation due within the next 12 months before applying against long- term



obligations. Collateral balances in excess of accrued costs are recorded in other assets. We sponsor and administer a number of
employee benefit plans for our PEO WSEs, including group health, dental, and vision as an employer plan sponsor under section
3 (5) of the ERISA. In 2622-2023 , the majority of our group health insurance costs related to risk- based plans. Our remaining
group health insurance costs were for guaranteed- cost policies. Accrued health insurance costs are established to provide for the
estimated unpaid costs of reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with risk- based
health insurance policies. These accrued costs include estimates-forreperteddosses;phus-estimates for claims incurred but not
paid. We assess accrued health insurance costs regularly based upon actuarial studies that include other relevant factors such as
current and historical claims payment patterns, plan enrollment and medical trend rates. In certain carrier contracts we are
required to prepay our obligations for the expected claims activity for subsequent periods. These prepaid balances by agreement
permit net settlement of obligations and offset the accrued health insurance costs. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-262+
, prepayments and miscellaneous receivables offsetting accrued health insurance costs were $ 58 million and $ 57 mithen-and-$
S4-million, respectively. When the prepaid amount is in excess of our recorded liability the net asset position is included in
prepaid expenses. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, accrued health insurance costs offsetting prepaid expenses
were $ 68 million and $ 73 million and-$F9-mithon-, respectively. FRINEF692022-FORMIO-K-We determine if a new
contractual arrangement is a lease at contract inception. If a contract contains a lease, we evaluate whether it should be classified
as an operating or a finance lease. If applicable as a lease, we record our lease liabilities and right- of- use (ROU) assets based on
the future minimum lease payments over the lease term and only include options to renew a lease in the future minimum lease
payments if it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. For certain leases with original terms of twelve months or
less we recognize the lease expense as incurred and we do not recognize lease liabilities and ROU assets. We measure our lease
liabilities based on the future minimum lease payments discounted over the lease term. We determine our discount rate at lease
inception using our incremental borrowing rate, which is based on our outstanding term-debts that are collateralized by certain
corporate assets. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2621-, the weighted- average rate used in discounting the lease
liability was 4.2 % and 3. 9 % , respectively . We measure our ROU assets based on the associated lease liabilities adjusted for
any lease incentives such as tenant improvement allowances and classify operating ROU assets in other assets in our
consolidated balance sheets. For operating leases, we recognize expense for lease payments on a straight- line basis over the
lease term. Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits and short- term, highly liquid
investments. Investments with original maturity dates of three months or less are considered cash equivalents. Restricted Cash,
Cash Equivalents and Investments Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments presented on our consolidated balance
sheets include: « cash and cash equivalents in trust accounts functioning as security deposits for our insurance carriers, * payroll
funds collected representing cash collected in advance from clients which we designate as restricted for the purpose of funding
WSE payroll and payroll taxes and other payroll related liabilities, and TRINET70 2023 FORM 10- K * amounts held in trust
for current and future premium and claim obligations with our insurance carriers, which amounts are held in trust according to
the terms of the relevant insurance policies and by the local insurance regulations of the jurisdictions in which the policies are in
force. Our marketable investments are primarily classified as available- for- sale and are carried at estimated fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred income
taxes. The amortized cost of debt investments is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts from the date
of purchase to the earliest call date for premiums or the maturity date for discounts. Such amortization is included in interest
income as an addition to or deduction from the coupon interest earned on the investments. We use the specific identification
method to determine realized gains and losses on the sale of available- for- sale securities. Realized gains and losses are
included in interest expense, bank fees, and other in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. We assess our investments for credit impairment. We review several factors to determine whether an unrealized loss is
credit related, such as financial condition and future prospects of the issuer. To the extent that a security' s amortized cost basis
exceeds the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the security, an allowance for credit losses will be
recognized. If management intends to sell or will more likely than not be required to sell the security before any anticipated
recovery, a write down will be recognized in earnings measured as the entire difference between the amortized cost and the
then- current fair value. We have investments within our unrestricted and our restricted accounts. Unrestricted investments are
recorded on the balance sheet as current or noncurrent based upon the remaining time to maturity, and investments subject to
restrictions are classified as current or noncurrent based on the expected payout of the related liability. FRINEFF62022-FORM
+0-3—Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive (loss) income
includes those gains and losses included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income, in accordance with GAAP.
Other comprehensive (loss) income is primarily comprised of net unrealized gains or losses arising on available- for- sale
investments, net of deferred taxes. Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. As such, fair value is a market- based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. Our financial assets recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are
comprised of cash equivalents, available- for- sale marketable securities and certificates of deposits. We measure certain
financial assets at fair value for disclosure purposes, as well as on a nonrecurring basis when they are deemed to be other- than-
temporarily impaired. Our other current financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate their carrying value due
to their short- term nature. Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are measured and classified in accordance with a three-
tier fair value hierarchy based on the observability of the inputs available in the market to measure fair value, summarized as
follows: * Level 1 — observable inputs for identical assets or liabilities, such as quoted prices in active markets, * Level 2 —
inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly, * Level 3 — unobservable
inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires that we develop our own assumptions. The fair value hierarchy



requires us to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
We classify our cash equivalents, investments and long- term debt in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. TRINET71 2023 FORM 10- K Accounts Receivable Our accounts
receivable represents outstanding gross billings to clients, net of an allowance for estimated credit losses. We require our clients
to prefund payroll and related liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. If a client fails to fund payroll or misses
the funding cut- off, at our sole discretion, we may pay the payroll and the resulting amounts due to us are recognized as
accounts receivable. When client payment is received in advance of our performance under the contract, such amount is
recorded as client deposits. We establish an allowance for credit losses based on the credit quality of clients, current economic
conditions, the age of the accounts receivable balances, historical experience, and other factors that may affect clients’ ability to
pay, and charge- off amounts against the allowance when they are deemed uncollectible. The allowance was immaterial at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-2624. Property and Equipment We record property and equipment at historical cost and
compute depreciation using the straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease terms, generally
five years to seven years for office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and the shorter of the asset life or the remaining lease term
for leasehold improvements. We expense the cost of maintenance and repairs as incurred and capitalize leasehold improvements.
We periodically assess the likelihood of unsuccessful completion of projects in progress, as well as monitor events or changes in
circumstances, which might suggest that impairment has occurred, and recoverability should be evaluated. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds the future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. TRINEFH2622FORMI0-K-We evaluate our long- lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An asset is
considered impaired if the carrying amount exceeds the undiscounted future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. An
impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its fair value. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less selling costs. Goodwill, Software and Other
Intangible Assets Our goodwill and identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for
impairment on an annual basis or when an event occurs or circumstances change in a way to indicate that there has been a
potential decline in the fair value of the reporting unit. Goodwill impairment is determined by comparing the estimated fair
value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. All goodwill is associated with one reporting unit within
our one reportable segment. Annually, we perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of the reporting unit has declined below its carrying value. This assessment considers various financial,
macroeconomic, industry, and reporting unit specific qualitative factors. We perform our annual impairment testing in the fourth
quarter. Based on the results of our reviews, no impairment loss was recognized in the results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2023, 2022 --and 2021 and-2626-. Intangible assets and software with finite useful lives are amortized over their
respective estlmated useful lives ranging from one year to ten years using either the straight- line method or an accelerated
method. Intangible assets aequired-in-business-eombinations-arc reviewed for indicators of i 1mpa1rment at least annually and

evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in c1rcumstances 1ndlcate that the carrylng amount of an asset may not be

-Beeeﬁaber—3—l—292—2—aﬁd—29%9—We capltahze 1nternal and external costs 1ncurred to develop 1nterna1 use computer software
during the application development stage. Application development stage costs include software configuration, coding, and
installation. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life, typically ranging from three
years to five-six years, commencing when the software is placed into service. We expense costs incurred during the preliminary
project stage, as well as general and administrative, overhead, maintenance and training costs, and costs that do not add
functionality to existing systems. TRINET72 2023 FORM 10- K Advertising Costs We expense the costs of producing
advertisements at the time production occurs, and expense the cost of running advertisements in the period in which the
advertising space or airtime is used as sales and marketing expense. Advertising costs were $ 37 million, $ 29 million, and $ 21
mihen-and-$49-million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and2626-, respectively. Stock Based
Compensation Our stock- based awards to employees 1nclude time based and performance based restricted stock units and
restricted stock awards, stock options and an employee stock purchase plan. Compensation expense associated with restricted
stock units and restricted stock awards is based on the fair value of common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense
associated with stock options and employee stock purchase plan are based on the estimated grant date fair value method using
the Black- Scholes option pricing model. Expense is recognized using a straight- line amortization method over the respective
vesting period for awards that are ultimately expected to vest, with adjustments to expense recognized in the period in which
forfeitures occur. Income Taxes We account for our provision for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under
which we recognize income taxes payable or refundable for current year and deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
effect of events that have been recognized in either our financial statements or tax returns. We measure our current and deferred
tax assets and liabilities based on provision of enacted tax laws of those jurisdictions in which we operate. FRIENEFF22622
FORM1H6-K-The effect of changes in tax laws and regulations, or interpretations, is recognized in our consolidated financial
statements in the period that includes the enactment date. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for income
tax purposes, as well as the expected benefits of using net operating loss and other carryforwards. We are-required-to-establish a
valuation allowance when it is determined more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Provision for
income taxes may change when estimates used in determining valuation allowances change or when receipt of new information
indicates the need for adjustment in valuation allowances. Changes in valuation allowances are reflected as a component of the
provision for income taxes in the period of adjustment the-ehange-isenaeted-. We recognize a reserve for uncertain tax



positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return when it is concluded that tax positions are not more likely than not to be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on
the technical merits of the positions. Assumptions, judgment and the use of estimates are required in determining if the more
likely than not standard has been met when developing the provision for income taxes and in determining the expected benefit.
The tax benefits of the position recognized in the financial statements are then measured based on the largest amount of benefit
that is greater than 50 % likely to be realized upon settlement with a taxing authority. Unrecognized tax benefits due to tax
uncertainties that do not meet the minimum probability threshold are included as other liabilities and are charged to earnings in
the period that such determination is made. We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component
of income tax expense. Accrued interest and penalties are included in other non- current liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet-sheets . Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments subject to concentrations of credit risk include cash, cash
equivalents and investments (unrestricted and restricted), accounts receivable, and amounts due from insurance carriers. We
maintain these financial assets principally in domestic financial institutions. We perform periodic evaluations of the relative
credit standing of these institutions. Our exposure to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institutions holding these
funds is limited to amounts currently held by the institution in excess of insured amounts. Under the terms of professional
services agreements, clients agree to maintain sufficient funds or other satisfactory credit at all times to cover the cost of their
current payroll, all accrued paid time off, vacation or sick leave balances, and other vested wage and benefit obligations for all
their work site employees. We generally require payment from our clients on or before the applicable payroll date. TRINET73
2023 FORM 10- K For certain clients, we require an indemnity guarantee payment (IGP) supported by a letter of credit, bond,
or a certificate of deposit from certain financial institutions. The IGP typically equals the total payroll and service fee for one
average payroll period. No client accounted for more than 10 % of total revenues in the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 5
and 2021 ard2020- Bad debt expense, net of recoveries was $ 3 million and $ 2 million for the year-ended-Deeember3+t;
2022-and-was-immaterial-for-the-years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and was immaterial for the year

ended 2021 aﬂd—29%9— Recently adopted accountlng gu1dance TRINEF732622FORMI0-K-Credit Losses—We-adopted-ASY

Recognizing and Measurlng Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities F rom Contracts With Customers Acqulred na Busmess
Combination — We early adopted ASU 2021- 08 — Business Combinations (Topic 805) effective January 1, 2022. ASU 2021- 08
amends ASC 805 to add contract assets and contract liabilities to the list of exceptions to the recognition and measurement
principles that apply to business combinations and requires that we recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities
acquired in a business combination in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers . The
adoption of ASU 2021- 08 did not have a material effect on our financial statements. NOTE 2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND INVESTMENTS- UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED Under the terms of the agreements with certain of our workers'
compensation and health benefit insurance carriers, we are required to maintain collateral in trust accounts for the benefit of
specified insurance carriers and to reimburse the carriers’ claim payments within our deductible layer. We invest a portion of the
collateral amounts in marketable securities. We report the current and noncurrent portions of these trust accounts as restricted
cash, cash equivalents and investments on the consolidated balance sheets. We require our clients to prefund their payroll and
related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. This prefund is included in
restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as payroll funds collected, which is designated to pay pending payrolls, payroll
tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings. We also invest available corporate funds, primarily in fixed income securities
which meet the requirements of our corporate investment policy and are classified as avaitable-forsale-AFS ¥. Our total cash,
cash equivalents and investments are summarized below: December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 26242022 (in
millions) Cash and cash equivalentsAvailable- for- sale marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalentsAvailable- for- sale
marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalents § 287 $ — $ 287 $ 354 § — $ 354 Investments $612-$— 65 65 $-612
nvestments-— 760 76 —135435-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmentsPayroll funds collected!, 067 — 1, 067 1,
062 — 1, 062 H5042—3+-042-Collateral for health benefits elatms29-claims31 113 144 29 110 139 2598423-Collateral for
workers' compensation elatms58-claimsS4 —58-2 56 58 — 58 Other security depesits4-deposits2 —2 4 — 4 2—2-Total
restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments1, 154 115 1,269 1, 153 110 1, 263 4;-89798+395-Investments, noncurrent
— 143143 — 151 151 —368468-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, noncurrentCollateral for workers'
compensation elaims27-claims25 133 158 27 123 150 29437466-Other security depestts3— deposits —— — 3 — 3
Total $1,466 $456 $1,922 5 1,537 $ 460 § 1, 997 $H738-$-538-52,276- FRINEF742022—--- TRINET74 2023 FORM 10-
K NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS The following tables summarize our financial instruments by significant categories and fair value
measurement on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2822-2023 and December 31, 2024-2022 and the amortized cost, gross
unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and fair value of our AFS investments: (in millions) Fair Value LevelAmortized
CostGross Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair ValueCash and Cash EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash,Cash
Equivalents and InvestmentsDecember 31, 2023€askh-2021Cash equivalents:Money market mutual fundsLevel 1 $ 48397 § —
$§— 8548397 $964 § — §8793 U.S.treasuriesLevel 27222 — — 2221 75— 2-1 Total cash equivalentst99-- equivalents119
— —1964+6+-11925 — 89-94 AES Investments:Asset- backed securitiesLevel 244249 — — 49 — 49 — Corporate
bondsLevel 2167 1 (1) 46-167 — 137 30 46—Cerporate-bondsbevel2435+—136—103-33-Agency securitiesLevel 248
217 — H39- 462917 — 2 15 U.S.treasuriesLevel 22342285 1 (1) 234285 — 47484-106 179 Certificate of depositLevel




22211 — — 211 — — 211 Other debt securitiesLevel 2829 — — 89 — 89 — Total AFS Investments $ 457538 $ 2 § (3-2
) $456-538 $ — $ 303 $ 235 (in millions) Fair Value Level Amortized CostGross Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair
ValueCash and Cash EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and InvestmentsDecember 31, 2022Cash
equivalents: Money market mutual fundsLevel 1 $ 314§ — $ —$ 314 §225$§ — § 89 U. S. treasuriesLevel 218 — — 1818 +&
48— — Total cash equivalents332 — — 332243 — 89 AFS Investments: Asset- backed securitiesLevel 242 — (2) 40 — 40 —
Corporate bondsLevel 2140 — (1) 139 — 112 27 Agency securitiesLevel 233 — (1) 32 — 5 27 U. S. treasuriesLevel 2229 —
— 229 — 62 167 Certificate of depositLevel 212 — — 12 — — 12 Other debt securitiesLevel 28 — — 8 — 7 1 Total AFS
Investments $ 464 $ — § (4) $ 460 $§ — $ 226 § 234 (in millions) Fair Value LevelAmortized...... 538 $ — $ 303 § 235 We use
an independent pricing source to determine the fair value of our securities. The independent pricing source utilizes various
pricing models for each asset class, including the market approach. The inputs and assumptions for the pricing models are
market observable inputs including trades of comparable securities, dealer quotes, credit spreads, yield curves and other market-
related data. We have not adjusted the prices obtained from the independent pricing service and we believe the prices received
from the independent pricing service are representative of the prices that would be received to sell the assets at the measurement
date (exit price). FRINEFF52022----- TRINET75 2023 FORM 10- K The carrying value of the Company' s cash equivalents
and restricted cash equivalents approximate their fair values due to their short- term maturities. We did not have any Level 3
financial instruments recognized in our balance sheets as of December 31, 2022-2023 and December 31, 26242022 . There were
no transfers between levels as of December 31, 2022-2023 and December 31, 206242022 . Sales and Maturities The fair value of
debt investments by contractual maturity are shown below: (in millions) December 31, 20220s1e-20230ne year or less $ $36-93
Over one year through five years293--- years332 Over five years through ten yearst2-yearsl1 Over ten years25-years20 Total
fair value $ 468-456 The gross proceeds from sales and maturities of AFS securities for the years ended December 31, 2023,
2022, and 2021 ;and2026-are presented below. We had immaterial gross realized gains and losses from sales of investments
for the years— year ended December 31, 2021 and2626-. Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 262226242620Gress—---
202320222021Gross realized losses $ (1) $ (18) $ — $——GCGross proceeds from sates227-sales150 227 162 93-Gross proceeds
from matartttes253-maturities137 253 187 434+-Total $ 286 $ 462 $ 349 $224-Unrealized Losses on AFS Investments
Unrealized losses on fixed income securities are principally caused by changes in market interest rates and the financial
condition of the issuer. In analyzing an issuer' s financial condition, we consider whether the securities are issued by the federal
government or its agencies, whether downgrades by credit rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts' reports. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without
prepayment penalties. As of December 31, 2022, management recorded an impairment loss of $ 7 million on fixed income
securities due to the probability that management could sell these securities before they recover in value. None of this
impairment was credit- related. After this recognized impairment, gross unrealized losses related to AFS investments in an
unrealized loss position were $ 4 million. Gross unrealized losses were immaterial at December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2021. Fair Value of Long- Term Debt The fair value of our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes was obtained from a third- party pricing
service and is based on observable market inputs. As such, the fair value of the senior notes is considered Level 2 in the
hierarchy for fair value measurement . As of December 31, 2023, our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes were carried at their cost,
net of issuance costs, and had a fair value of $ 443 million and $ 414 million, respectively . As of December 31, 2022, our
2029 Notes were carried at their cost, net of issuance costs, and had a fair value of $ 413 million. Our 2648 2021 FermFeoan
syas-Revolver is a floating rate debt prior-to-beingrepaid-and-terminated-in-. At December 31, 2023, the fair value of our 2021
Revolver approximated its carrying value (exclusive of issuance costs) . The fair value of our floating rate debt is
estimated based on a discounted cash flow, which incorporates credit spreads, market interest rates and contractual
maturities to estimate the fair value and is considered Level 3 in the hierarchy for fair value measurement.
FRINEFF62622—--- TRINET76 2023 FORM 10- K NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET Property and equipment,
net, consists of the following: (in millions) December 3 1, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 202+64fiee-20220ffice
equipment, including data processing eguipment36—- equipment 3+8 37 $ 36 Leaschold improvements2t- improvements19
25-21 Furniture, fixtures, and eqaipmentté-equipment14 +7-16 Projects in progress4-progress2 +4 Total77-Total72 74-77
Less: Accumulated depreciation (56-55) (50) Less: Impairments (1) $ — (3) —Property and equipment, net $ 24-17 § 24 (1)
Amount includes impairment of leasehold improvements in leased office space that we have exited. Refer to Note 7 in Part II,
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Depreciation of property and equipment was $ 9
million, $ 10 mitlen;-$9-million, and $ 9 million for years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 ;and2020-, respectively.
NOTE 5. GOODWILL, SOFTWARE AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET Changes in goodwill for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2024-are as follows: (in millions) AmountBalance atBeeember342020-$294-Additions—
Balanee-at December 31, 2021 § 294 Additions168 Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 462 Additions — Balance at December
31,2023 $ 462 The followmg summarizes software and other intangible assets: December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December
31,2024-2022 (in millions) Weighted Average Amortization PeriodGross Carrying AmountAccumulated
AmortizationNetCarrying AmountGross Carrying AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying AmountAmortizable
intangibles: Software3 years278-years350 (255) 95 278 (213) 65 236-Customer relationships6 years49 ( 48+ 18 ) 31 135 55
Customerrelationships9-yearsi35-(93) 42 98-Developed technology6 years65 ( 92-19 ) 46 65 6-Developed-technotogy?
years65{9) 56 —————Total $464 $ (292) $ 172 $ 478 $ (315) $ 163 $334-$-273)-$61-Amortization of intangible assets
during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 +-and 2021 and2620-was $ 63 million, $ 54 million -and $ 50 mitherand-$
38&-million respectively. We evaluate the remaining useful life of intangible assets annually to determine whether events and
circumstances warrant a revision to the estimated remaining useful life. During the year ended December 31, 2021, we
recognized a § 7 million impairment of a customer relationship intangible due to higher than expected attrition. There were no
impairment charges recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. FRINEF772622—--- TRINET77 2023



FORM 10- K The following table summarizes our capitalized internally developed software costs and related depreciation
expense. Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202220212620€apitalized—--- 202320222021 Capitalized internally developed
software eests48-costs69 48 33 36-Depreciation expense for capitalized internally developed software eests35-costs42 35 33 3+
Expense related to intangibles amortization in future periods as of December 31, 20222023 is expected to be as follows: Year
ending December 31: Amount (in millions) 2623-2024 § 59 202546 53-202446-262528-202618- 202631 202717202723 2628
20287 2029 and thereafter?thereafter3 Total § +63-169 NOTE 6. ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION COSTS The
following table summarizes the accrued workers’ compensation cost activity for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 5
and 2021 and26206- Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202220242020Fetal----- 202320222021 Total accrued costs,
beginning of year $ 189 $ 198 § 205 -$%1-4—ImurredCurrent year68-year66 68 66 64-Prior years (36) (32) (23) €6)-Total
tneurred36-incurred30 36 43 44-PaidCurrent year (10) (10) (810 ) Prior years (34) (35) (40) ¢45)-Total paid (44) (45) (50)
533 Total accrued costs, end of year $ 175 $ 189 $ 198 $265-The following tables summarize workers' compensation liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets: (in millions) December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 2624+ Fotal-2022Total
accrued costs, end of year $ 175 $ 189 $398-Collateral paid to carriers and offset against accrued costs (75 ) (87 ) Total
accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset $ 170 $ 182 $199-Payable in less than 1 year (net of collateral paid to carriers of $
2-1 and $ 2 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively) $ 54-50 S5Payable-S4Payable in more than | year (net
of collateral paid to carriers of $ 4 and $ 5 and-$-6-as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively) 120 128 435
Total accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset $ 170 $ 182 $H90-FRINEFF82622-TRINET782023 FORM 10- K Incurred
claims related to prior years represent changes in estimates for ultimate losses on workers' compensation claims. For the years
ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2826-, the favorable development is due to lower than expected reported claim
frequency and severity for the more recent years. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, we had $ 32 million and $ 43
million of collateral held by insurance carriers of which $ 5 million and $ 7 milltenand-$-8-million, respectively, was offset
against accrued workers' compensation costs as the agreements permit and are net settled of insurance obligations against
collateral held. NOTE 7. LEASES Our leasing activities predominantly consist of leasing office space that we occupy, which we
have classified as operating leases. Our leases are comprised of fixed payments with remaining lease terms of 1 to 6 7-years;one
ofwhich-ineludes-an-optionto-extendforupto-S-years. As of December 31, 26222023 , we have not included any options to
extend or cancel in the calculation of our lease liability or ROU asset. We do not have any significant residual value guarantees
or restrictive covenants in our leases. We recognized operating lease expense of $ 11 million, $ 15 million ;-and $ 13 mithen
and-$3F-million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 arnd-2020-, respectively. For the sear-years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, we recognized $ 6 million and $ 20 million , respectively, of lease impairment due to the
closing of several offices. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-20824, the weighted average remaining lease term on our
operating leases was 3. 8 years and 4. 4 years-and-5—2-years, respectively. Future minimum lease payments as of December 31,
2022-2023 were as follows: (in millions) December 31, 20222623-20232024 § 15 +7262415202512-202513 20267202762028
20268 20277 20285 2029 and thereafterS—- thereafter — Total future minimum lease payments $ 62-48 Less: imputed interest (
64 ) Total operating lease liabilities $ 56-44 Current pertiont5-portion14 Non- current pertiendtportion30 TRINET792023
FORM 10- KNOTE 8. LONG- TERM DEBT AND REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT BORROWINGS As-The
following table summarizes our long- term debt and revolving credit agreement borrowings as of December 31, 2023 and
2022 and262+1eng-. (Dollars in millions) Annual contractual interest rateEffective interest ratePrincipal
amountDeferred issuance costsLess: current portionLong - term debt eonsisted-of the-feHowing:, noncurrentDecember
31, 2023December 31, 20222021 Revolver6. 58 % 7. 07 % $ 200 $ — $ ( 109 irmitions-) Deeember31+2022Deecember3+;
2021 Prineipal-amount506-$ 91 $§ — 2029 Notes3. 50 % 3. 67 % $ 500 Deferred-issuance-eosts-$ (3) $ — $ 497 $ 496 2031
Notes7.13 % 7.30 % $ 400 $ (4) $ 5)yEess—eurrentportionr— $ 396 $ — In March 2023 Eeng—termdebt-, noneurrent $496
as a precaution to ensure we maintained liquidity during the uncertainty of the banking crisis that followed the failure of
Silicon Valley Bank, we drew down the available $ 495 Annual-eontractaal-interestrate3-million of capacity under our 2021
Revolver . 56-%3-As concerns about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $ 200 million in March and the remaining $
295 million in April . 56-%Effeetive-interestrate3-In September of 2023, we drew down $ 200 million of this revolver to
partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases . 67-%3—67%In February 2021, we issued $ 500 million
aggregate principal of 3. 50 % senior unsecured notes maturing in March 2029 (our 2029 Notes). Fhre-In August 2629-2023
Notes-are-a-, we 1ssued $ 400 mllllon aggregate prlnclpal of 7. 125 % semor unsecured notes maturlng in August 2031 (our
2031 Notes) oblig ; d
Interest payments on the %9%9—2031 Notes are due semi- dnnually in arrears on Ma-reh—l—F ebruary 15 and -September—l—August
15, beginning on September+-February 15 , 2624-2024 . The-We used the net proceeds to fund an equity tender offer and a
private share repurchase, each of whlch were ﬁsed-te—repa-y—executed in the th1rd quarter of 2023 (including the related
fees and expenses) term o 0

voluntarily redeem all or a part of the %9%9—2031 Notes on —rn—w-he{e—or tn—paﬁ—after August 15 ., {52026, on any one or
more occasions, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 2031 Notes, plus, in each case, accrued
and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the applicable redemption date. In addition, at any time prior to
Mareh1+-August 15 , 2624-2026 at(a)160-, we may on any one or more occasions redeem up to 40 % of their—- the
aggregate principal amount ;phas-a"-make-whoele > premium-or{b)-of the 2031 Notes outstanding under the indenture
governing the 2031 Notes with the net cash proceeds reeetved-frorran-of one or more cquity offering-offerings at a
redemption price equal to +83-107 . 56-125 % of the principal amount ;-previded-of the 2031 Notes the-then aggregate
outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding the applicable redemption date. At any
time prior to August 15, 2026, we may also redeem all or a part of the 2031 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100 %

of the principal amount of all-stehredemptions-doesnotexeced40-%ofthe 2031 eriginal-aggregateprineipal-amountofthe




2629-Notes redeemed plus —@—&t—&&y—ﬁme-eﬁ—er—a-fter—Mafeh—l—Z-e%—a{—a “ make- whole ” premium as pfepaymeﬁt-pﬂee

a-mem%t’—in—eaeh—ease,—pl-us—accmed and unpaid interest, 1f any, to but excludlng, the apphcable redemption datc efredemption
. In February 2021, concurrently with the closing of the 2029 Note% offering, we entered into a new $ 500 million revolving
facility (our 2021 Revolvel) under a new credit agreement (our 2021 Credit Agreement) and our 2018 Credit Agreement was
terminated. Letters of credit issued pursuant to the revolving facility reduce the amount available for borrowing under the 2021
Revolver. In August As-eofDeeember3+2622-2023 , concurrently with the issuance of the 2031 Notes , we had-remaining
amended certain provisions of our credit agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as amended, to, among other things (1)
increasing the aggregate capacity efunder our 2021 Revolver from $ 495-500 million #nder-to $ 700 million and (2)
extending the maturity date of our 2622-2021 Revolver to August 16, 2028 . The annual interest rate for borrowings under our
2021 Revolver 1s-was previously calculated based on an applicable LendenInterbankOfferedRate-LIBOR ytenor of our
choosing, plus a margin of 1. 25 % to 2. 00 %, or, at our option, the alternative base rate (ABR), plus a margin of 0. 25 % to 1.
00 %. In the second quarter of 2023, we replaced the interest rate based on LIBOR and related LIBOR- based mechanics
with an interest rate based on the forward- looking Secured Overnight Financing Rate (Term SOFR). Term SOFR loans
will be charged interest at the Term SOFR rate (subject to a 0. 00 % floor), plus a margin between 1. 25 % and 2. 00 %,
depending on the Company’ s total net leverage ratio, plus a credit adjustment spread of 10 basis points for all tenors
(such Term SOFR rate plus the credit adjustment spread, the' Adjusted Term SOFR Rate'). The applicable HHBOR
Term SOFR or ABR margin is based on our Total Leverage Ratio, as defined in the 2021 Credit Agreement. The ABR is the
highest of (a) the applicable Federal Reserve Bank of New York rate in effect on such day (which rate is the greater of the
Federal funds Effective Rate in effect on such day and the Overnight Bank Funding Rate in effect on such day) , as
defined in our 2021 Credit Agreement plus 0. 50 % (b) the prime rate in effect on such day , and (c) the Adjusted Term SOFR
Rate for a one month HIBOR-adjusted-interest period, as published by two U. S. Government Securities Business Days
prior to such day daily plus 1. 00 % . The interest rate TRINET802023 FORM 10- K for 2023 borrowings under our 2021
Revolver was 6. 582 %- 8. 125 %. As of December 31, 2023, we had remaining capacity of $ 494 million under our 2021
Revolver . In the event TriNet Group, Inc. receives a Corporate Issuer Credit Rating that is one level below investment grade
rating or higher from at least two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations, then rating based pricing applies and,
for so long as rating- based pricing applies, urespeetlve of the Total Leverage Ratlo the -I:I-B%Term SOFR margln Wlll be 1.
125 % and the ABR margln Wlll be 0 125 % —1h SOV g

Agreement 1ncludeq negative covenant% that hmlt our ab111ty to incur 1ndebtedne§§ and hen@ sell assets and make restricted
payments, including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, the 2021 Credit Agreement also
contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of default. The 2021 Credit Agreement also
contains a financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum total net leverage ratios. We were in
compliance with all financial covenants under the 2021 Credit Agreement , 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes at December 31, 2622
2023 . NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Contingencies On September 29, 2020, a class action was filed in
the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida against the directors of certain TriNet subsidiaries and other
TriNet employees on behalf of a putative class of participants in two retirement plans available to TriNet’ s eligible worksite
employees, the TriNet 401 (k) Plan and the TriNet Select 401 (k) Plan. The complaint is similar to claims recently brought
against a number of employers including PEOs and generally alleges that the defendants violated certain fiduciary obligations to
Plan participants under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 with respect to overseeing plan investment and
recordkeeping fees. On October 21, 2022, the court issued an order declining to certify a class with respect to claims against the
TriNet 401 (k) Plan, but certified a class with respect to claims against the TriNet Select 401 (k) Plan. Fhe-partieshave-filed
etoss-On April 26, 2023, the court entered an order granting TriNet' s motion for iummary Judgment ﬁ&eﬁeﬁs—&nd—a{—t-his
on all remaining claims. No appeal was time-timely filed and the We-a 6
range-oftoss;-with-respeetto-this-matter is closed . W e aims-are-withoutn
are and, from time to time, have been and may in the future become 1nvolved in various htlgatlon matters, legal proceedmgq and
claims arising in the ordinary course of our business, including disputes with our clients or various class action, collective action,
representative action, and other proceedings arising from the nature of our co- employment relationship with our clients and
WSESs in which we are named as a defendant. In addition, due to the nature of our co- employment relationship with our clients
and WSEs, we could be subject to liability for federal and state law violations, even if we do not participate in such violations.
While our agreements with our clients contain indemnification provisions related to the conduct of our clients, we may not be
able to avail ourselves of such provisions in every instance. We have accrued our current best estimates of probable losses with
respect to these matters, which are individually and in aggregate immaterial to our consolidated financial statements. While the
outcome of the matters described above cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently does not believe that any such
claims or proceedings will have a materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows. However, the unfavorable resolution of any particular matter or our reassessment of our exposure for any of the above
matters based on additional information obtained in the future could have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows. NOTE 10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION Equity Based Incentive Plans Our
2019 Equity Incentive Plan and as amended and restated (the 2019 Plan), approved in May 2019, provides for the grant of
stock awards, including stock options, RSUs, RSAs, and other stock awards. There were approximately +5 million shares




available for grant under the 2019 Plan as of December 31, 26222023 . The 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan), was
replaced by the 2019 Plan, except that any outstanding awards granted under the 2009 Plan remain in effect pursuant to their
terms. TRINET812023 FORM 10- K Stock Options Stock options are granted to employees at exercise prices equal to the fair
market value of our common stock on the dates of grant. Stock options generally have a maximum contractual term of 10 years.
Stock options generally vest over 4 years, and are generally forfeited if the employee terminates service prior to vesting. The
following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 : Numberof
SharesWeightedAverageExercisePriceWeightedAverageRemainingContractual Term (in years) AggregatelntrinsicValue (in
millions) Balance at December 31, 2024306-2022190 , 867275 $ +6-20 . 22250 1 . 2-5 $ 24-9 Exercised (H6-182 , 592-067 ) 9
20 . 30-8-50 14 Balance at December 31, 2022-2023 (1) $99-8 , 275-208 $ 26-19 . 50 0. 45 $ | -5-$9-(1) All options are vested
and exercisable. Year Ended December 31 Additional Disclosures for Stock Options (in millions) 26222024+2020Fetal—--
202320222021Total f&tﬁ&}t&eﬁ@pﬁeﬂs—\*eﬁed%%%%mtrmﬂc value of options exercised 14 8 6 4-Cash recelved
from options exercised 4 | | +FRINEF812022FORMA0-IK-Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) and-Restrieted-StoekAwards
RSAs)-Time- based RSUs and-RSAs-generally vest over a four- year term. Performance- based RSUs and-RSAs-are subject to
vesting requirements and are earned, in part, based on certain financial performance metrics as defined in the grant notice.
Actual number of shares earned may range from 0 % to 200 % of the target award. Performance- based awards granted in 2023,
2022 ;and 2021 and-2820-are earned based on a single- year performance period subject to %ub%equent multi- year time- based
vesting Wlth 50 % of the shares earned Ve%tlng in one year after the performance period and the remaining shares in the year
after. Fhe ance—based-awardserantedin2019-were-previoustyeaneeHe d-RSUs and-RSAs-are generally forfeited if the
participant terminates service prior to Ve%tlng The followmg tables summarize RSU aﬁd—RSA—actlvny for the year ended
December 31, 2622-2023 : Total Numberof RSUsFotal-Nu 6 b Wetghted-RSUsWeighted -
AverageGrant DateFair ValueNonvested at December 31 %92—1—1—~ 20221, 998—198 561 92—7’%—744—1—9—1-4—67—1—35 68-80 . 74-75
Granted979--- Granted769 , +62—9579,162-86-286 78 . 41-27 Vested ( 589-617 , 625937 ) 76 (5-744(595;369)-76-. 25
Forfeited (499-120 , 843-708 ) 82 —(199;,-8433-77-. 63-58 Nonvested at December 31, 20224-20231 , +98-229 , 202 56+—1;
198,-564-5 80. #5-88 Year Ended December 31, Additional Disclosures for equity- based plans 202220242020F otal-—--
202320222021 Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in millions) $ 60 $ 85 $ 47 $58-Total grant date fair value of shares
vested (in millions) $ 47 $ 42 $ 34 $3+-Shares withheld to settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by
employees264-employees213 , 569 204 , 191 207, 603 236;569-TRINET822023 FORM 10- K Performance- based RSUs
Total Namberef RSYsTFotal-Number SharesWeighted- AverageGrant DateFair ValueNonvested at December 31, 2024255
2022202 , 586 224-255;224-5 86. 82 Granted177, 67067 79 . 05 +6-Granted245,-868-245;-808-84-—88-Vested (252—156 236
642 ) 86. 252 22 ;236)-65F8Forfeited(46;21H0)(46;210)-82—F8-Nonvested at December 31, 2022262-2023223 ., 011 586
202-586-% 86-81 . 82-08 Year Ended December 31, Additional Disclosures for equity- based plan% %929%92—1%9%9%%&1»
202320222021 Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in millions) (1) $ 14 $ 20 $ 16 $3406-Total grant date fair value of
shares vested (in millions) $ 14 $ 17 $ 8 $5-Shares withheld to settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by
employeesH9-employees74 , 923 119 , 901 77 78748, 787 (1) Amount includes fair value of finalized additional grant related
to the most recently ended performance period. FRINEF822622FORMI0-—I-Employee Stock Purchase Plan Our 2014
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) offers eligible employees an option to purchase shares of our common stock through
payroll deductions. The purchase price is equal to the lesser of 85 % of the fair market value of our common stock on the
offering date or 85 % of the fair market value of our common stock on the applicable purchase date. Offering periods are
approximately six months in duration and will end on or about May 15 and November 15 of each year. The plan is considered to
be a compensatory plan. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , approximately 5 million shares were reserved for future issuances
under the ESPP. In applying the Black Scholes option valuation model for the ESPP options, we use the following assumptions:
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202220242620Expeeted—--- 202320222021Expected Term (in Years) 0. 50. 50.
SExpected Volatdity2+-Volatility29 - 35 % 21 - 39 % 21- 35 % 40-83-%-Risk- Free Interest Rate6-Rate5.3-5.4% 0. 7-4.5
% 0. 4- 0. 7 %6216 Expected Dividend Yield0 % 0 % 0 % Shares Issued under ESPP458-- ESPP175 , 446 158 , 134 136,
861 236;-887Stock based compensation expense is measured based on the fair value of the stock award on the grant date and
recognized over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the stock award. Stock based compensation
expense and other disclosures for stock based awards made to our employees pursuant to the equity plans were as follows: Year
Ended December 31, (in millions) 202220242026Cest---- 202320222021Cost of providing services $ 14 $ 13 § 12 $9-Sales
and marketing7-marketing8 6-7 6 General and admintstrative38-administrative33 38 29 26-Systems development and
programming costs4 4 3 2-Total stock based compensation expense $ 59 $ 62 $ 50 $43-Total stock based compensation
capitalized $4+3 $ 1 $ 1 Income tax benefit related to stock based compensation expense $ 13 $ 13 $ 10 $9-Tax benefit realized
$19 ffeﬁa—sfeeleepﬁeﬁs—e*efese%aﬂd-s*&n-larﬁfafds—$ 14 $ 16 $4-TRINET832023 FORM 10- K The table below
summarizes unrecognized compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 20222023 associated with the following:
Amount (in millions) Weighted- Average Period (in Years) Nonvested time based RSUs andRSAs-$ 89-92 2. 62Nenvested
47Nonvested performance based RSHs-RSUs10 and-RSAst71. 66-66 NOTE 11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY The following
table shows the beginning and ending balances of our issued and outstanding common stock for the year ended December 31,
2023, 2022, and 2021 ;and-2026- FRINETS32022FORMI0-K—Y car EndedDecember 31, 202226242626Shares—---
202320222021Shares issued and outstanding, beginning balaneeé5-balance60 , 555, 661 65 , 968, 224 66, 456, 663 69-065;
49+-Issuance of common stock from vested restricted stock untts84d— units774 , 579 841 , 861 748, 881 659:689-Issuance of
common stock from exercise of stock eptienstH6-options182 , 067 116 , 592 73, 118 8+-626-Issuance of common stock for
employee stock purchase plant58- planl75 , 446 158 , 134 136, 861 236;-88F[ssuance of common stock for the acquisition of
Zenefitst93---- Zenefits — 193 , 221 — —Repurchase of common stock (10, 734, 790) (6, 398, 279) (1, 161, 909 H3;36%-674
) Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes ( 288, 492) (1324, 092) (285, 390) #9;356)-Shares




issued and outstanding, ending balanee66-balance50 , 664, 471 60 , 555, 661 65, 968, 224 66;456,-663-Stock Repurchases In
February 2020, our board of directors authorized a $ 300 million incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program.
In February 2022 and November 2022, our board of directors authorized a further $ 300 million and $ 200 million, respectively,
incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. In February 2023 and July 2023 , our board of directors authorized a
further $ 300 million and $ 1 billion, respectively, incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. This repurchase
authorization has no expiration. On March 17, 2022, we completed a tender offer through which we repurchased 3, 653, 690
shares of common stock at a price of $ 86. 50 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 319 million, which includes
costs directly attributable to the purchase. On December 6, 2022. we completed a second tender offer and purchased 1, 515, 258
shares of common stock at a price of $ 72. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 111 million, which includes
costs directly attributable to the purchase. In August 2023, we completed a tender offer through which we repurchased S,
981, 308 shares of common stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 640 million.
In September 2023, we repurchased 3, 364, 486 shares of common stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total
consideration of approximately $ 360 million, through a purchase agreement with our largest stockholder, Atairos
Group, Inc. Atairos Group, Inc. agreed to proportionally sell additional shares so as to continue to beneficially own
approximately 36 % of the outstanding Shares immediately following the completion of the Closing. We retire shares in
the period they are acquired and account for the payment as a reduction to stockholders' equity (retained deficit) .
TRINETS842023 FORM 10- K The following table summarizes the share repurchases under this program for the years ended
December 31, 2023, 2022 ;and 2021 and20626- Year EndedDecember 31, 262220242020Fetal—--- 202320222021 Total cost
(in millions) $ 1, 112 $ 519 $ 94 $3478-Total sharesé-shares10 , 734, 790 6 , 398, 279 1, 161, 909 3;36%-674-Average price per
share $ 103.59 $ 81. 07 $ 81. 13 $53—85-As of December 31, 2622-2023 , $ 245-433 million remains available for repurchase
under all authorizations approved by the board of directors. Dividends In February 2024, our board of directors authorized
a dividend of $ 0. 25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $ 13 million to be paid in the second quarter of
2024. TRENET842022-TRINET852023 FORM 10- K NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES We are subject to tax in U. S. federal and
various state and local jurisdictions, as well as Canada and India. We are open to federal and significant state income tax
examinations for tax year 2646-2018 and subsequent years. The provision for income taxes consists of the following: Year
Ended December 31, (in millions) 202220242020Current—--- 202320222021Current : Federal $96 $ 112 $ 86 State24 36 $96
State36-28 30-FeretgnrForeign2 — | +Total Currentt48-Currentl22 148 115 27-Deferred: Federat-Federall (17) (7) 3y
State-State3 (0) (3) {9 Foretgn2— Foreign — 2 (2) —Total Deferred-Deferred4 (21) (12) 423-Total $126 $ 127 $ 103 $85
The U. S. federal statutory income tax rate reconciled to our effective tax rate is as follows: Year Ended December 31,
202226212626-202320222021 (in millions, except percent) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense / (Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax
Income (Loss) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense / (Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax Income (Loss) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense /
(Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax Income (Loss) $ 501 $ 482 $ 441 $357-U. S. federal statutory tax rate $ 10521 % $ 101 21 % $
93 21 % $F52+%State income taxes, net of federal benefit34 7 34 7 32 725-7 Tax rate ehange-changel — — — (1) —
Nondeductlble meals, entertainment and penalties3-penalties2 —3 1 2 — Stock based eompensation3— compensation +

(2) — 31 (2) — Uncertain tax positions — — —— (1) — +—Tax credits (6) (1) (8) (2) (7) (2) State and tax return to
provision adjustments ( 6-11 ) (2) State-and-tax—retarnto-provistenadastments-(9) (2) (10) (2) €H2)y-Other3 —3 — (3) (1)
H—Total $126 25 % $ 127 26 % $ 103 23 % $8524%Our effective income tax rate inereased-decreased by 3-1 % to 25 %
1n 2023 from 26 % in 2022 frem23-%12624 The inerease-decrease was primarily attributable-due to an inereases— increase

in nondeduetible-expenses-excludable income for state tax purposes and and- an eharges-to-valuation-allowanees—In
add-rt—teﬁ—t-hefe—ts—a—deefe&se—lncrease in tax benehts related to stock based compensatlon —"Phe—%@%l—effeet—we—ta*f&te—was—a-}se

mpaeted-by-a-one with-a-fave e e . The

lnﬂatlon Reductlon Act enacted on Auoust 16 2022 1ntr0duced new provisions 1nclud1ng a—eefpefafe—beelem—rmmu—m—ta*ﬂef
appheableto-us-and-an excise tax on net stock repurchases made after December 31, 2022. Global tax We-eentinte-to-monitor
developments from the Organization for Economic Cooperation and eva-l-ua-te—Development proposes implementation of a
global minimum tax under the Pillar Two model rules. Management has determined this development applicable to
multinational businesses does not have a material impaets— impact if-any-ofthese-previstons-to our business, cash flows,
our-- or financial results efoperations-. TRINET852022-TRINET862023 FORM 10- K Deferred Income Taxes Significant
components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 20222024 Deferred—
--- 20232022Deferred tax assets: Net operating losses (federal and state) $ 6 $ 7 $3-Accrued expensest7expenses18 26-17
Accrued workers' compensation eests8-costs9 9-8 Recovery eredit26- credit2 43-20 Operating lease habilittest4-liabilities11
+3-14 Stock based eompensation3-compensation2 3 Tax benefits relating to uncertain positions1 1 Tax credits (federal, state
and foreign) 7 6-7 Section 174 Capitalized R & D21 P43— 13 —Other3-Other2 —Fotal93— 3Total79 68-93 Valuation
allowance (8) (5-8 ) Total deferred tax assets&5-assets71 63-85 Deferred tax liabilities: Depreciation and amortization (54-48 ) (
3754 ) Prepaid commission expenses ( 24-26 ) (24) Operating lease right- of- use assets (+8-5 ) (10 >Other—-) Total

deferled tax 11ab111t1e§ ( -8-8—79 ) ( —7’2—88 ) Net defelred tax liabilities $ (3—8 ) $ (9—3 ) As a—festl-l-t—ef—t-l‘te—Zeﬂeﬁ-ts—&eqtus—rﬁeﬂ,—we

fab}e-&s—ﬂ&ey—afe-éeemed—weﬁh%ess-af&rbtﬁesﬂ*s-of December 31 2023 and 2022 we have a-n—&equtfed-federal net operatln,(a
loss of $ 1 million and $ 2 million , respectively, which can be camed forward indefinitely. In202+-we-have-animmatertal
amount—\We have capital loss carryforwcuds of $ 3 million which will expire in 2027. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and
2024 we have various state net operating loss carryforwards of $ 91 million and $ 94 million and-$45-millien-, respectively,
most of which, if unused, will expire in years 2623-2024 through 2642-2043 . As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, we



have state tax credit carryforwards (net of federal benefit) of $ 5 million aﬁd—$—6—m-1-l-lien—1=espeeﬁ¥el-y—that will begin expiring in
2026. In addmon Canada tax credit carryforwards of $ 2 n’lllllOIl Wlll begm expmng in 2936—2037 The—pfeﬁsteﬁ—fer—meeme

aeﬁ*v-rt—tes—'PRlN—E—'PSé%QQQ—TRINET872023 FORM 10-K Valuatlon Allowance We have recorded a Valuat10n allowance to
reflect the estimated amount of deferred tax assets that may not be realized, related to state tax credits, state net operating loss
and capital loss carryforwards. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the valuation allowance is presented in
the table below: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 262220242020Valuation—--- 202320222021 Valuation allowance at
January 1 $5-8 $ 5 $ 5 Charged to net ineeme3— income — 3 — Valuation allowance at December 318 5-8 5 Uncertain Tax
Positions A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and penalties)
related to uncertain income tax provisions, which would affect the effective tax rate if recognized, is presented in the table

below: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 262226242626Unreeognized—--- 202320222021Unrecognized tax benefits at

January 1$7$78$8 -$—7—Add1t10ns for tax positions of prier-periods———Additions-for-taxpositions-efcurrent period2 +2 |

Reductions for tax positions of prior period: Settlements-with-taxing-atthorittes———H-Lapse of applicable statute of
limitations (2) (2) (1) —Adjustments to tax positions — — (1) —Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 $ 7 $ 7 $ 87 As

of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, the total amount of gross interest and penalties accrued were immaterial. The
unrecognized tax benefit, including accrued interest and penalties, is included in other non- current liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets. It is reasonably possible the amount of the unrecognized benefit could increase or decrease within the next
twelve months, which would have an impact on net income. FRINEF872622-TRINET882023 FORM 10- K NOTE 13.
EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average shares of common stock outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on those shares used in the basic EPS computation, plus potentially dilutive shares
issuable under our equity- based compensation plans using the treasury stock method. Shares that are potentially anti- dilutive
are excluded. The following table presents the computation of our basic and diluted EPS attributable to our common stock: Year
Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share data) 202220242626Net202320222021Net income $ 375 $ 355 $ 338 $292
Weighted average shares of common stock eutstandingé3-outstanding57 63 66 67-Basic EPS $ 6. 61 $ 5. 66 $ 5. 13 $4-03-Net
income $375 $ 355 $ 338 $272-Weighted average shares of common stock eutstandingé3-outstanding57 63 66 67-Dilutive
effect of stock options and restricted stock wnttst— units — 1 1 Weighted average shares of common stock eutstandingé4
outstanding57 64 67 68-Diluted EPS $6.56 $ 5. 61 $ 5. 07 $3-99-Common stock equivalents excluded from income
perdiluted share because of their anti- dilutive effeet2-effectl +2 1 NOTE 14. 401 (k) PLAN The Company maintains a defined
contribution 401 (k) plan for the benefit of corporate employees. Under our 401 (k) plan, eligible employees may elect to
contribute based on their eligible compensation. The Company matches a portion of employee contributions, which amounted to
$ 17 million, $ 14 million, and $ 15 mitten;and-$32-million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 ;and
2626-, respectively. We also maintain multiple employer defined contribution plans, which cover WSEs for client companies
electing to participate in the plan and for their internal staff employees. We contribute, on behalf of each participating client,
varying amounts based on the clients’ policies and serviced employee elections. NOTE 15. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS We have service agreements with certain stockholders that we process their employees' payrolls and payroll
taxes. From time to time, we also enter into sales and purchases agreements with various companies that have a relationship with
our executive officers or members of our board of directors. The relationships are typically equity investment firm clients on
which a board member serves in an executive role, an equity investment by those firms in a client / vendor company, or other
clients / vendors on which our executive officer or board member serves as a member of the client / vendor company' s board of
directors. We have received $ 12 million, $ 16 million, and $ 14 mithe;and-$22-million in total revenues from such related
parties during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2626-, respectively. We have also entered into various
software license agreements with software service providers who have board members in common with us. We paid the software
service providers $ 2-3 million, $ 2 million, and $ 42 million during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and
2026-, for services we received, respectively. FRINEFE82022-TRINET892023 FORM 10- K NOTE 16. ACQUISITIONS On
February 15, 2022, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity of Zenefits, a leading cloud HR platform which provides
innovative and intuitive HR, benefits, payroll and employee engagement software purpose- built for small and medium- size
businesses. We believe the acquisition of Zenefits and its cloud- based HRIS software allows us to diversify our product and
service offerings to all SMBs without using a co- employment model, and enables us to dynamically service SMBs throughout
their lifecycle and expand the customers we serve. The Company recorded the acquisition using the acquisition method of
accounting for business combinations in accordance with ASC 805 and recognized identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their fair value as of the date of acquisition. We measure goodwill as the excess of the cash and stock consideration
transferred, which we also measure at fair value, over the net of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The purchase price was as follows: (in millions) AmountCash and stock consideration per
agreement $ 220 Closing adjustments3 Total consideration payable223 Less: Unvested Zenefits restricted stock (14) Total
purchase price $ 209 The purchase price consisted of cash consideration paid of $ 192 million and 193, 221 shares of TriNet
common stock with a fair value of $ 17 million. In accordance with the merger agreement, certain holders of Zenefits stock
received cash in lieu of stock. Holders of unvested Zenefits restricted stock swi-reeetve-received their pro- rata share of the
consideration, payable in cash quarterly over 18 months, and +s-was generally forfeited if the employee terminates-terminated
service prior to vesting. This amount will be recorded as G & A expense over the 18- month service period. Acquisition- related
costs are recorded as G & A expense for the year-years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and were not material.
FRINETS92022-- TRINET902023 FORM 10- K The following table summarizes the fair value of the net assets acquired and
allocation of the purchase price: (in millions) AmountTotal purchase price $ 209 Asset Acquired: Cash $ 4 Restricted cash 5
Accounts receivable, net4 Intangible assets96 Operating lease right- of- use asset9 Deferred tax asset2 Other assets5 Total assets



acquired125 Liabilities AssumedAccounts payable and other current liabilities $ 9 Deferred revenuel3 Operating lease
liabilities15 Deferred taxes18 Total liabilities assumed55 Net assets acquired $ 70 Goodwill at acquisition $ 139 Measurement
period adjustments (3) Goodwill at December 31, 2022 § 136 Goodwill represents future economic benefits we expect to
achieve as a result of the acquisition, including revenue and cost synergies from our complementary business models. The
results of Zenefits have been included in our consolidated financial statements since the closing of the acquisition. Pro forma
financial information was not presented because the effect of the acquisition was not material to our results of operations and
financial condition. The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not deductible for income tax purposes. The intangible
assets acquired were as follows: (in millions) AmountEstimated Useful LifeAcquired technology $ 56 6 yearsCustomer
relationships40 7 yearsTotal intangible assets $ 96 On September 1, 2022, the Company acquired all of the shares outstanding of
Clarus R D, a provider of technology enabled tax expertise and services to SMBs claiming state and federal R & D tax credits.
We believe the acquisition of Clarus R D and its cloud- based software will allow us to provide additional services to our PEO
Services and HCM Cloud Services customers. FRENEF992622-TRINET912023 FORM 10- K The Company recorded the
acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations in accordance with ASC 805 and recognized
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair value as of the date of acquisition. We measure goodwill as the
excess of the cash and stock consideration transferred, which we also measure at fair value, over the net of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are based on preliminary estimates of fair value available as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10- K and may
change over the measurement period as the analysis of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is finalized and additional
information is received. The measurement period swiH-has end-ended as of December 31, 2023 no-tater-than-one-year-from-the
aequisitiendate-. The total purchase price consisted of cash consideration paid of $ 48 million. Acquisition- related costs are
recorded as G & A expense for the year-years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and were not material. In connection with
the acquisition, we issued an immaterial amount of RSUs to the Clarus R D employees who are required to provide ongoing
services to vest. The following table summarizes the fair value of the net assets acquired and preliminary allocation of the
purchase price: (in millions) AmountTotal purchase price $ 48 Asset Acquired: Cash $ 3 Accounts receivable, net3 Intangible
assets14 Total assets acquired20 Liabilities AssumedAccounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1 Deferred taxes3 Total
liabilities assumed4 Net assets acquired $ 16 Goodwill at acquisition $ 32 Goodwill at December 31, 2022 $ 32 Goodwill
represents future economic benefits we expect to achieve as a result of the acquisition, including revenue and cost synergies
from our complementary business models. The results of Clarus R D have been included in our consolidated financial statements
since the closing of the acquisition. Pro forma financial information was not presented because the effect of the acquisition was
not material to our results of operations and financial condition. The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not deductible
for income tax purposes. (in millions) AmountEstimated Useful LifeAcquired technology $ 9 6 yearsCustomer relationships5 3-
5 yearsTotal intangible assets $ 14 FRINEFH2622-TRINET922023 FORM 10- K DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURESItem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. Item 9A.
Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We have, with the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
December 31, 28222023 , as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act). Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 26222023 ,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company”’ s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31, 2622-2023 in ensuring that i. information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports
that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’ s management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and ii. such
information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission' s rules and forms. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) promulgated under the Exchange Act to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with GAAP. Due to inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance
that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. We have performed an assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 26222023 based upon criteria set forth in
Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, we determined that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2622-2023 . Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report
on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022-2023 . This audit report appears in
Part II, Item 8. F inancial Statements and Supplelnentary Data, of this Form 10- K. Changes in lnternal Control Over F 1nanc1a1

There were no changes in our 1nterna1 control over ﬁnancral reportrng that occurred durlng the three months ended December
31, 2622-2023 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting. FRINET922022FORM1H6-K-Item 9B. Other Information. On Nevember 6, 2023, Paul Chamberlain, a member



of the Board of Directors, adopted a new written trading plan intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of
Rule 10bS- 1 (c) under the Exchange Act (the “ Chamberlain Plan ). The first possible trade date under the

Chamberlain Plan is February 43-20 , 2623-2024 , ineonneetion-with-the Board™s-approval-of-an-and inerease-the end date of

the Chamberlain Plan is November 10, 2024 (subject to customary exceptions), for a duration of approximately one year.
The Chamberlain Plan pr0v1des for the sale of up to 2, 875 shares of the Company s share-repurehase-program;-we-entered

eutstanding-common stock whiekrepresents-an

TRINET932023 FORM 10 K Hradditt G

61:'1&61“8{661&16'}&6148—“611’1 9C quclmure Reoaldlng Forelgn Jurl@dlctlonq that Plevent ln@pectlonq Not apphcable
FRINEF932622-TRINETY942023 FORM 10- K MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERSPART III Item 10.
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to
TriNet Group Inc.” s Proxy Statement for its 2623-2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120
days after the end of the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . Item 11. Executive Compensation. Item 12. Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence. Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. FRINEF342622-TRINET952023
FORM 10- K FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULESPART IV Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. (a) The
following documents are filed as a part of the report: (1) The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the
Index to Financial Statements ” under Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. (2) Financial statement
schedules have been omitted, since the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included in this Form 10- K. Item 16. Form 10- K Summary. FRINEF952622-TRINET962023 FORM 10-
K EXHIBITSEXHIBIT INDEX Incorporated by Reference ExhibitNo. Description of ExhibitForm File No. Exhibit Filing
FiledHerewith3. 1Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of TriNet Group, Inc. 8- K0O1- 363733.+4-15 /430 /
2644-2023 3. %eeﬁrﬁeate-e#eeﬁeeﬁeﬂ—ef—&menéed-ZAmended and Reqtated Bylaws Geﬁrﬁeate—ef—}neefpef&&en—of TrlN et
Group, Inc. +6-8 - Q66+K001 - 363733 - 3 Ne otp—te
1924653~ 4 3 /427 / 2644-2023 4. 1 Registration nght% Agreement by and between TrlNet Group, Inc. and AGI T,L. P,

dated as of February 1, 2017. 8- KOO1- 363734. 12 /2 /20174. 2Description of the Registrant’ s Securities Registered Pursuant
to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 10- KOO1- 363734.2 2 /13 /20204. 3Indenture, dated February 26, 2021,
among the Company, the guarantors listed therein and U. S. Bank National Association, as trustee. 8- KOO1- 363734.12/26/
20214. 4Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, among the Company, the guarantors listed therein and U. S. Bank Trust
company, National Association, as trustee. 8- K001- 363734. 18 / 16 / 20234. 4Ferm-SForm of 3. 500 % Senior Notes due
2029 (included in exhibit 4. 3). 8- K0O1- 363734.22 /26 /20214. 6Form of 7. 125 % Senior Notes due 2031 (included in
exhibit 4. 1) 8- K001- 363734. 28 / 16 / 20234. 5Credit-7Credit Agreement dated as of February 26, 2021, among TriNet USA,
Inc. as Holdings, the lenders from time- to- time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A., as Administrative Agent. 8-
KO001-3637310. 12 /26 /20214. 8Third Amendment, dated as of May 22, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the
Borrower, the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent. 8- K001-
363734.15/26/20234. 9Fourth Amendment, dated as of August 16, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the
Borrower, the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent. 8- K001-
3637310. 18 /16 / 20234. 10First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, to Indenture dated February 26, 2021,
among the guarantors listed therein and U. S. Bank Trust Company, National Association as trustee10- Q001- 363734.
310/25/202446-202310 . 1 * Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 1 / A333- 19246510. 33 /14 /201410. 2 *
Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 1 / A333-
19246510.4 3 /4/201410. 3 * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under
the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. 10- Q001- 3637310. 1 4 /30 / 2648+0--- 2018 TRINET972023 FORM
10- K Incorporated by Reference ExhibitNo. Description of ExhibitForm File No. Exhibit Filing FiledHerewith10 . 4 *
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009
Equity Incentive Plan. 10- Q001- 3637310.2 4 /29 /201910. 5 * TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2019 Equity
Incentive Plan. DEF- 14A001- 36373 Appendix A4 /12 /202210. 6 * Form of Non- Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit
Grant Notice and Non- Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity
Incentive Plan effective as of January 15, 2020. 10- Q001- 3637310. 4 4 /28 /202010. 7 * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Notice under the TrlNet Group, Inc 2019 Equ1ty Incentive Plan effectlve as of March 4, 2021 10- QOOl 3637310 44 126/
2021202110 N 6 S efe e A eNo- ibt
-F-rl-rﬁg—F—rledHefewrt-h-l-G- 8 * F01m ofPerformance Baied Re@trlcted Stock Unlt Grant Notlce and Performance Ba@ed
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan effective as of March 4, 2020.
10- Q001-3637310. 54 /26 /202110. 9 * 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. S- 1/ A333-19246510. 73 /14 /2014 10. 10 *
2015 Executive Bonus Plan. 8- K001- 36373N /A3 /11/201510. 11 * Amended and Restated Non- Employee Director
Compensation Policy. 10- Q001- 3637310. +46-27 / 25-26 / 202246-202310 . 12 * TriNet Group Inc. Amended and Restated
Executive Severance Benefit Plan10- Q001- 3637310. 54 /30/201810. 13Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and
between TriNet Group, Inc. and each of its directors and executive officers. S- 1 / A333- 19246510. 83 /4/201410. 14 *




Employment Agreement, dated November 9, 2009, between Burton M. Goldfield and TriNet Group, Inc. S- 1/ A333-
19246510.92 /13 /201410. 15 * Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated March 28, 2022, by between Samantha
Wellington and TriNet USA, Inc. 8- K0O1- 3637310. 13/29/202210. 16 * Second Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement dated July 25, 2020 between TriNet USA, lnc and Olivier Kohler 8- KOOl 3637310 211/19/202010. 17-*-

%92—2—1—9—1—8— Employment Agreement dated Augu%t 13, 2020 between TrlNet Group, lnc and Kelly Lee Tummelh 10- Q001-
3637310. 110 /26 /202010. +49-18 * Executive Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2022, by and between Jay Venkat and
TriNet USA, Inc. 8- KOO1- 3637310. 16/ 15 /202210. 26-19 * Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated
November 15,2022, by and between Alex Warren and TriNet USA, Inc. X4+0- 10- K001- 3637310. 202 / 15/202310. 20 *
TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Compensation Clawback Policy10- Q001- 3637310. 17 /26 / 2023
TRINET982023 FORM 10- K Incorporated by Reference ExhibitNo. Description of ExhibitForm File No. Exhibit Filing
FiledHerewith10 . 21 * Stockholder Agreement, by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI- T, L. P., dated as of December
21,20168- K 001-3637310. 112 /22 /201610. 22Amendment No. 1 to the Stockholder Agreement, by and between TriNet
Group, Inc. and AGI- T, L. P, dated as of February 13, 202310- K001- 3637310. 222 / 15 /202310. 23Repurchase Agreement
by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI- T, L. P., dated as of July 30, 20238- K001- 3637310. 17 / 31 / 2623X2+
202321 . 1 List of Subsidiaries. X23. 1Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm. X24.
1 Power of Attorney (1ncluded on the ergnature page of thls report) 31 5PRI-NE¥97%92—2—F9RM—1—9——I€I-neefpefated-by

] sFile h31-. [ Certification of Principal
Executive Ofﬂeer pur%uant to Sectlon 302 ofthe Sarbanes Oxley Act of2002 X31 2Cert1ﬁcat10n of Principal Financial
Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. X32. 1 * * Certification of Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. X101. INS Inline XBRL Instance
Document- the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the
Inline XBRL document. X101. SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. X101. SCHCAL Inline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Schema Calculation Linkbase Document. X101. CALDEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Calculation Definition Linkbase Document. X101. DEFLAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Label Linkbase
Document. X101. LABPRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Presentation Linkbase Document. X101. PRE104XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document. Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded with the Inline XBRL
document). X * Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. * * Document has been furnished, is
deemed not filed and is not to be incorporated by reference into any of the Company’ s filings under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained
in any such filing. FRENEFS82622-TRINET992023 FORM 10- K SIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or
15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Dublin, State of California, on the day of 15th February, 2023. TRINET
GROUP, INC. Date: February 15, 2823-2024 By: / s / Burton M. Goldfield Burton M. Goldfield Chief Executive Officer Date:
February 15, 2623-2024 By: / s / Kelly Tuminelli Kelly Tuminelli Chief Financial Officer KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE
PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Burton M. Goldfield ;-and Kelly
Tuminelli and-Samantha-WeHingtonand-each-ofthem-, as his or her true and lawful attorneys- in- fact and agents, each with the
full power of substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place or stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that any of said attorneys- in- fact and agents, or their
or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. FRIENEF392622-TRINET1002023
FORM 10- K Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. SignatureTitleDate / s / Burton M.
GoldfieldChief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) February 15, 2023Burten-2024Burton M. Goldfield /s / Kelly
TuminelliChief Financial Officer (principal financial officer and principal accounting officer) February 15, 2023KeHy
2024Kelly Tuminelli /s / Michael J. AngelakisDirectorFebruary 15, 2023Miehaet-2024Michael J. Angelakis /s / Paul
ChamberlainDirectorFebruary 15, 2623Paut-2024Paul Chamberlain /s / Ralph ClarkDirectorFebruary 15, 2023Ralph
2024Ralph Clark /s / Maria Contreras- SweetDirectorFebruary 15, 2023Marta-2024Maria Contreras- Sweet /s / David C.
HodgsonDirectorFebruary 15, 2623Bawid-2024David C. Hodgson /s / Dr. Jacqueline KosecoffDirectorFebruary 15, 2623Br
2024Dr . Jacqueline Kosecoff /s / Wayne B. LowellDirectorFebruary 15, 2023Wayne-2024Wayne B. Lowell /s / Myrna
SotoDrrectorF ebruary 15, 2—92—?;M—y-ma—2024Myrna Soto ?RI-N-E—T—I—G@%@QQ—TRINETIOIZOB F ORM 10 K ?RI-N-E—T—U—SA—I—NG

























Exhibit 21. 1 SUBSIDIARIES OF TRINET GROUP, INC. Company Name IncorporationJurisdictionAmbrose Advisory
Services, LLC New YorkApp7, Inc. DelawareArchimedes Risk Solutions, Ltd. BermudaClarus R & D Solutions,
LLCOhiolnsureY ourPeople, LLCDelawareManageY ourPeople, LLCDelawarePayY ourPeople, LLCDelawareTriNet
Commercial Services, Inc. DelawareTriNet Employer Group Canada, Inc. OntarioTriNet Enrich Administration, Inc.
DelawareTriNet HR I, Inc. OklahomaTriNet HR II, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR II Holdings, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR II- A, Inc.
FloridaTriNet HR III, Inc. CaliforniaTriNet HR III- A, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR III- B, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR IV, LLC New
YorkTriNet HR X, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR XI, Inc. DelawareTriNet Insurance Brokerage, Inc. DelawareTriNet MSB, In¢.

.............. dea an a




DelawareTriNet Professional Employer Services, Inc. DelawareTriNet SMB Services, Inc. DelawareTriNet TrustDelaware
TriNet USA, Inc. DelawareY ourPeople, Inc. DelawareZenefits Development, Inc. British ColumbiaZenefits Technologies
India Private LimitedKarnataka Exhibit 23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm We consent to the
incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333- 238315271469 on Form S- 3 and Registration Statement Nos.
333- 194880, 333- 203134, 333- 210558, 333- 216403, 333- 223312, 333- 231393, 333- 231396, 333- 236456 and-, 333- 253147
,333-262716, and 333- 269817 on Form S- 8 of our reports dated February 15, 2023-2024 | relating to the financial statements
of TriNet Group, Inc., and the effectiveness of TriNet Group, Inc.” s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Burton M.
Goldfield, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of TriNet Group, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge,
this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant' s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a)
designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; (b) designed such
internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) evaluated the effectiveness of
the registrant' s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and (d) disclosed
in this report any change in the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant' s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant' s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant' s other
certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant' s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant' s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions): (a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant' s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and (b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting. Date: February 15, 2623-2024 / s / Burton M.
GoldfieldBurton M. GoldfieldPresident and Chief Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 2 CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL
FINANCIAL OFFICER 1, Kelly Tuminelli, certify that: Date: February 15, 2623-2024 / s / Kelly TuminelliKelly
TuminelliChief Financial Officer Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 In connection with the Annual Report of TriNet Group, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “ Company ), on Form 10- K for the year ending December 31, 2022-2023 as filed with the U. S. Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the *“ Report ), each of the undersigned officers of the Company does hereby
certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002), that: (1) The Report fully complies
with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The information contained in
the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. The
foregoing certification (i) is given to such officers’ knowledge, based upon such officers’ investigation as such officers
reasonably deem appropriate; and (ii) is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002) and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document and is not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing. Date: February 15, 2623-2024 / s / Burton M. GoldfieldBurton M. GoldfieldChief Executive
OfficerDate: February 15, 2023-2024 / s / Kelly TuminelliKelly TuminelliChief Financial Officer



